Greer, Leslie

From: Martone, Kim

Sent: Wednesday, May 30, 2012 3:45 PM

To: Lazarus, Steven; Greer, Leslie

Subject: FW: Diagnostic Endoscopy LLC /AMSURG, Corp (Legal Notice of CON Application
published)

Attachments: OrderConf.pdf

Kimberly R. Martone
Director of Operations

Office of Health Care Access
860-418-7029

From: Bettyanne Toole [mailto:bettyanne@bvmlaw.com]

Sent: Wednesday, May 30, 2012 3:38 PM

To: Martone, Kim

Cc: Michele AOL

Subject: Diagnostic Endoscopy LLC /AMSURG, Corp (Legal Notice of CON Application published)

Dear Kim: Just as a courtesy, we want to provide you with the attached confirmation of publishing from The
Advocate. The Applicants, Diagnostic Endoscopy LLC and AMSURG Corp., are publishing notice in The Advocate of their
intent to file a Certificate of Need application seeking approval for the transfer of ownership of the ASC located at 778
Long Ridge Road in Stamford from Diagnostic Endoscopy LLC to AMSURG, Corp. The Legal Notice began running today
and will run through Friday (May 30-June 1).

Of course, please let us know if you have any questions.

Thank you,
Betty Anne

Betty Anne Toole-Teasley

Paralegal

Bershtein, Volpe & McKeon P.C.

105 Court Street, 3rd Floor

New Haven, Connecticut 06511-6957
Telephone: (203) 777-5800 (ext. 104)
Facsimile: (203) 777-5806

This transmittal may be a confidential attorney-client communication or may otherwise be privileged or confidential. If it is not clear
that you are the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you have received this transmittal in error; any review,
dissemination, distribution or copying of this transmittal is strictly prohibited. If you suspect that you have received this
communication in error, please notify us immediately by telephone at 1-203-777-5800, or e-mail at bettyanne@bvmlaw.com and
immediately delete this message and all its attachments.

IRS CIRCULAR 230 DISCLAIMER: Any tax advice contained in this e-mail is not intended to be used, and cannot be used by any
taxpayer, for the purpose of avoiding Federal tax penalties that may be imposed on the taxpayer. Further, to the extent any tax
advice contained in this e-mail may have been written to support the promotion or marketing of the transactions or matters
discussed in this e-mail, every taxpayer should seek advice based on such taxpayer's particular circumstances from an independent
tax advisor.



From: Housey, SaRan [mailto:legal.notices@scni.com]
Sent: Tuesday, May 29, 2012 4:54 PM

To: Bettyanne Toole

Subject: 1769252




Order Confirmation
Ad Content Proof
Ad Order Number Customer Payor Customer ———
0001769252 BERSHTEIN, VOLPE & MCKEON P.C.BERSHTEIN, VOLPE & MCKEON P.C. PUBLIC NOTICE
The Applicants, Diagnostic
Sales Rep. Customer Account Payor Account Endoscopy LLCand AMSURG
Corp.,are applying for a Certifi-
shousey 210653 210653 cate of Need pursuant to Section
19a-638 of the Connecticut Gener-
Order Taker Customer Address Payor Address al Sta’tuilefs- metﬂppilfiatffn seeks
shousey 105 COURT STREET,3RD FLOOR 105 COURT STREET,3RD FLOOR ship of the ambulatory surgical
NEW HAVEN CT 06511-6957 USA NEW HAVEN CT 06511-6957 USA center located at 778 Long Ridge
Ordered B Road, Stamford, Connecticut from
2rgerec By Diagnostic Endoscopy LLC to
BETTY Customer Phone Payor Phone AMSU;‘_tG Corfh T&e total _cgtpltfil
expenditure for the project is
Order Source 203-777-5800 203-777-5800 $13,833,950.00.
E-mail
PO Number Customer Fax Customer EMail
bettyanne@bvmlaw.com

Tear Sheets Proofs Affidavits Special Pricing Promo Type
0 0 0 None
Order Notes:
Invoice Text:
Blind Box Materials Payment Method
Net Amount Tax Amount Total Amount Payment Amt Amount Due
$119.96 $0.00 $119.96 $0.00 $119.96
Ad Number Ad Type Ad Size Pick Up Number
0001769252-01 Legal Liners 1.0 X 18 Li
External Ad # Ad Released Ad Attributes
No
Color Production Method Production Notes
<NONE> AdBooker
Product Placement/Class # Inserts Cost
Run Dates
Sort Text
Run Schedule Invoice Text
Stamford Advocate:: Public Notices 3 $99.96

5/30/2012, 5/31/2012, 6/1/2012
PUBLICNOTICETHEAPPLICANTSDIAGNOSTICENDOSCOPYLLCANDAMSURGCORPAREAPPL'
Public Notice The Applicants, Diagnostic Endoscopy LLCand AMSUR

stamfordadvocate.com:: Public Notices 3
5/30/2012, 5/31/2012, 6/1/2012

PUBLICNOTICETHEAPPLICANTSDIAGNOSTICENDOSCOPYLLCANDAMSURGCORPAREAPPL'
Public Notice The Applicants, Diagnostic Endoscopy LLCand AMSUR

5/29/2012 4:53:58PM 1



BERSHTEIN, VOLPE & McKEON P.C.
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
105 COURT STREET, THIRD FLOOR
NEW HAVEN, CONNECTICUT 06511
203-777-5800
Fax: 203-777-5806

Michele M. Volpe
Direct Dial (203) 777-6995

June 26, 2012
Via Hand Delivery

Kimberly R. Martone

Director of Operations

State of Connecticut

Office of Health Care Access

410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA
Hartford, Connecticut 06134-0308

Re:  Certificate of Need Application — Change of Ownership
Applicants: Diagnostic Endoscopy LLC and AmSurg Corp.

Dear Ms. Martone:

Tinclosed please find the original Certificate of Need Application for the change of ownership of
Diagnostic Endoscopy LLC located at 778 Long Ridge Road in Stamford, Connecticut. Also
enclosed are four (4) copies of the application and a CD of the scanned application and
documents in MS format.

I look forward to working with you and your staff during the review process.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or require additional information.

MMV/bt

Enclosures
$adoct12 5701-575001 25728 DEC (CON re AmSurg Transaction}iLtr to OHCA {Transmitting CON Application 6.26.12).doc



Instructions:

Application Checklist

1. Please check each box below, as appropriate; and
2. The completed checklist must be submitted as the first page of the
CON application.

I

Attached is the CON application filing fee in the form of a
certified, cashier or business check made out to the “Treasurer
State of Connecticut” in the amount of $500.

For OHCA Use Only:

Note:

4 gy BN . ‘
Docket No.; _{ A~ 51 14 QW ce Check No.:/ TeACN 351
OHCA Verified by: éé'ﬁ”‘“"f Date: _ [ /74 / i
o

Attached is evidence demonstrating that public notice has been
published in a suitable newspaper that relates to the location of
the proposal, 3 days in a row, at least 20 days prior to the
submission of the CON application to OHCA. (OHCA requests
that the Applicant fax a courtesy copy to OHCA (860) 428-
7053, at the time of the publication)

Attached is a paginated hard copy of the CON application
including a completed affidavit, signed and notarized by the
appropriate individuals.

Attached are completed Financial Attachments I and II.

Submission includes one {1) original and four {(4) hard
copies with each set placed in 3-ring binders.

A CON application may be filed with OHCA electronically
through email, if the total number of pages submitted is 50
pages or less. In this case, the CON Application must be

emailed to ohca@ct.gov.

Important: For CON applications(less than 50 pages) filed

&

electronically through email, the singed affidavit and the check
in the amount of $500 must be delivered to OHCA in hardcopy.

The following have been submitted on a CD
1. A scanned copy of each submission in its entirety, including
all attachments in Adobe (.pdf) format.

2. An electronic copy of the documents in MS Word and MS
Excel as appropriate.
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AFFIDAVIT

AFFIDAVIT

Applicant: Diagnostic Endescopy LLC

Project Title: Change of Qwnership ~ Diagnnsﬁc Endoscopy LEC

{, Stuart Waldsireiches, Member _
(Individual's Name) {Position Title - CEQ or CFQ)

of Diagnostic Endoscopy LLC being duly sworn, depose and state that
(Hospitat or Facility Name)

Disgnostic Endoscopy LLG's information subritied in this Certificate of
{Hospital or Faeility Name})

Need Application is accurate and corect to the best of my knowledge.

b ol )

Signatfire Date

Subscribed and sworn fo before me on b/ﬁ’// vi AHZ,

A L ] Elp

. - . SugAne L, D'Efio
Notary PublicfCommissioner of Super:%%fw Public-Connecticut i

My Commisslon Exphes
Aptil 30, 201

My commission expires:
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AFFIDAVIT

AFFIDAVIT

Applicant: AmSurg Corp., through jts wholly owned subsidiary, AmSurg Heldines,
inc.

Project Title: Change of Ownership - Disgnostic Endoscepy LLG

i, Bille A, Payne, - President, Am&urg Holdings, inc.
{individual's Name) {Pasition Title — CEO or CFQ}

of AmSura Holdings, [nc, being duly swom, depose and state that
(Hospital or Facility Name)

AmSurg Holdings, inc. information submitted in this Certificate of
{Hospital or Faclity Name)

Need Application is accurate and correct fo the best of my knowledge,

Ag_a uﬁ EQZ_&, (p =2P [

Slgnature Date

Subscribed and sworn to before me on_ U (une. 20,30 | D

\“gnumm,,,”

Q/f W ¥ OBIMTE
4 V4

o
s
P
= 1_

oy

: oF
s} TENNESSEE :

Notary Public/Commissioner of Superior Court WOTARY

‘i;v..

TR
’a"’!ﬂm;m\s\\“‘\

N . 205 PUBLLC
My commission expires: /Y. 3} 2o ‘*’9,,4& ‘ ~;3\\\\¢
J I""”mnmﬁ““
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Copy of Filing Fee Check

PO LOLPAR 25527040 M0 ODA0 Rk PALY
PIAGNOSTIC ENPOSCOPY, L.1L.C, ‘ 10473
Treasurer State of CT. 61972012
CON Application June 2012 ) 500.00
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BERSHTREIN, VOLPE & MCUKEON P.C.
105 COURT STREET, 3RD FLOCR
NEW HAVEN T 06511-6957

The  Applican Diagnostic
Endoscopy LLCand ANSURG
Cotp.,are applying for a Cortifl-
cate of Nead pursuent fo Saction
152-638 of the Gonneglicut Genor-
o Stetulps, The-upplicaticnh seoks
J;provﬂ% for the tramater of ovenar-

of the ambulstory surgk:al
centm located ot 718 Long Sidge
Road, Sterrord, Gonnesticut Trom
Dtag nostic  Endascopy  LLC to

URG Corp, The ivlal sepial
expenditume  for the project is
$13,823,950.60.

Copy of Public Motice

THE ADVOCATE

@ Riverbend Drive South
Building 9A

P.O. Box 4910
Stamford, CT 06907-0210
Telephone: 203-330-6208

Fax: 203-384-1158
Legal.notices@scni.com

THE ADVOCATE

CERTIFICATE OF PUBLICATION

S%Q\[\U\JC%D’\@\M‘

Belng duly sworn, depose and

say that T am a

Representative in the employ of SOUTHERN
CONNECTICUT NEWSPAPERS, INC.,

Publisher of The Advocate

and Greenwich Tine,

that a LBGAL NOTICE as stated below
was published in THE ADVOCATE.

subscribed angd sworn to before me on
this 13th Day of June, A.D, 2012.

Dol @ (2lhne

Pamela Caluori/Notary Publs.c

My commission expires on

PO Number
Publication Ad Number
Stamiord Advocaie 0001 768252-01

Publication Schedule
5/3012012, 513112012, B1/20142

January 2013

Ad Caption
Public Nofice The Applicants, [
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State of Connecticut

Office of Health Care Access
Certificate of Need Application

Instructions: Please complete all sections of the Certificate of Need (“CON")
application. If any section or question is not relevant to your project, a response of “Not
Applicable” may be deemed an acceptable answer. If there is more than one applicant,
identify the name and all contact information for each applicant. OHCA will assign a
Docket Number to the CON application once the application is received by OHCA.

Docket Number:

TBD

Applicant:

Diagnostic Endoscopy Center
LLC

AmSurg Corp., through its
wholly owned subsidiary
AmSurg Holdings, Inc.

Contact Person: Stuart Waldstreicher, M.D. Robert McCullough

Contact Person’s Title: Member Vice President, Development

Contact Person’s Address: 778 Long Ridge Road 20 Burton Hills Boulevard
Stamford, CT 06902 Suite 500

Nashville, TN 37215-6105

Contact Person’s Phone:

(203) 3222400

(615) 665-3533

Contact Person’s Fax
Number:

(203) 329-8855

(615) 665-0755

Contact Personr’s Email
Address:

Swmd{@aol.com

RMcCullough@amsurg.com

Project Town:

Stamford, CT

Proiect Name:

Change of Ownership — Diagnostic Endoscopy Center LLC

Statute Reference: Section 19a-638, C.G.S.
Estimated Total Capital $12,583,950
Expenditure:
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1. Preject Description and Need: Change of Ownership or Control

a.

Please provide a narrative detailing the proposal.

RESPONSE: Applicants Diagnostic Endoscopy LLC (“Diagnostic Endoscopy™)
and AmSurg Corp., through its wholly owned subsidiary AmSurg Holdings, Inc.
(collectively, with its parent company, “AmSurg”) request Certificate of Need
approval from the Office of Health Care Access (“OHCA”) to undertake a change
of ownership of the licensed single specialty ambulatory surgical center owned
and operated by Diagnostic Endoscopy in Stamford, Connecticut (the “Center”).
AmSurg will obtain 62% ownership interest in Diagnostic Endoscopy and
commence management of the Center pending approval of this Application.

The Center is an outpatient endoscopy facility that provides gastroenterology and
colonoscopy procedures as noted in OHCA Docket No. 08-31203-DTR. The
Center was established in 1999 and has been in existence for approximately
twelve (12) years. OHCA found Diagnostic Endoscopy did not have to submit to
the Certificate of Need Process pursuant to Certificate of Need Report 99-W and
Docket Numbers 03-30109-DTR and 04-30109-DTR.

The current ownership of Diagnostic Endoscopy is comprised of eight
gastroenterology specialists (the “Physician Owners™), all of whom perform
gastroenterology procedures at the Center. The Center occupies a facility of
approximately 6,800 square feet with 4 procedure rooms. The Center operates
Monday through Friday 6:30 AM to 5 PM and Saturdays by appointment. The
Center is staffed by 27 employees consisting of 17 full time equivalents. The
Center is presently accredited by the Accreditation Association of Ambulatory
Health Care (AAAHC). DEC Merritt, LLC (“Merritt”) provides management
services to Diagnostic Endoscopy. Merritt is a privately-held development and
management company and is distinct from the physician members in Diagnostic
Endoscopy.

Under the proposed change of ownership, AmSurg will obtain a 62% interest in
Diagnostic Endoscopy for $12,583,950 less an amount equal fo 62% of
outstanding debt at the time of closing. The purchase price includes a payment of
$1.25 million to Merritt to terminate Merritt’s management agreement with
Diagnostic Endoscopy. The remaining thirty-eight percent (38%) interest in
Diagnostic Endoscopy will remain with the Physician Owners. Prior to closing,
Diagnostic Endoscopy will merge, as permitted under Connecticut law, into a
Tennessee limited liability company. At the closing, AmSurg will become a
member of the Tennessee LLC.

The change of ownership will not result in a change in the scope of services or

licensure category for the Center and the Center will continue to bill for facility
fees. The proposed change of ownership will allow the Center to continue to
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provide area residents with access to high quality and cost effective ambulatory
surgical procedures in a non-hospital based setting.

The parties intend to finalize this transaction immediately upon approval of this
Application.

. Explain how each Applicant determined need for the proposal and discuss
the benefits of this proposal for each Applicant {discuss each Applicant
separately in separate paragraphs).

RESPONSE:

Diagnostic Endoscopy — Diagnostic Endoscopy desires to collaborate with
AmSurg in the provision of high quality healthcare management and operations.
AmSurg will provide Diagnostic Endoscopy with the capabilities and reach of a
national manager and operator of ambulatory surgical centers that has extensive
experience partnering with physicians and surgical centers. Diagnostic
Endoscopy’s decision to accept AmSurg’s proposal is made jointly by the
Physician Owners and Merritt for the following reasons: (1) AmSurg’s proven
ability to improve management and operations; (2) AmSurg’s expertise in clinical
and administrative quality improvement; (3) AmSurg’s contracting capabilities
and (4) AmSurg’s financial resources, expertise and strength.

First, AmSurg’s expertise in centralizing support services and maintaining
efficient administrative practices will produce immediate operating cost
reductions. Streamlined administration and management of Diagnostic Endoscopy
will allow the physicians to focus on providing patient care and quality services.
AmSurg provides its affiliates with access to valuable infrastructure and a wide
range of management and operational services including managed care
contracting, information systems development, human resources, marketing,
purchasing, regulatory compliance, maintenance of licenses, billing and revenue
collection, expense management, survey readiness and emergency preparedness,
financial negotiation and budget preparation. Partnering with AmSurg will
provide patients of Diagnostic Endoscopy with enhanced quality and efficiency
because of the expertise of the national manager and ability to drawn on
benchmarks of similar centers. Together with the Physician Owners, AmSurg
will provide patients of Diagnostic Endoscopy with greater efficient access to
gastroenterology services. Because the cost of providing high quality patient care
will increase in the near future due to, among other initiatives, improving quality
and patient satisfaction, technology advances, development of electronic health
records and information systems and healthcare reform, AmSurg’s efficiencies are
critical to the performance of Diagnostic Endoscopy.

Second, Diagnostic Endoscopy recognizes that AmSurg’s quality improvement

initiatives will provide a systematic approach to planning, measuring, evaluating
and improving safety and quality of care. Partnering with AmSurg will also
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ensure that Diagnostic Endoscopy has the financial ability and organization
support to keep up with the demanding and expensive requirements of the health
care system. One hallmark of AmSurg is its high priority on quality improvement
initiatives through the establishment of various benchmarking measures for its
affiliated surgical centers. Benchmark data is gathered from all AmSurg facilities
and is utilized to provide each facility with focused studies and comparative
statistics. In addition to the benchmarking, AmSurg develops best practices for its
centers to improve clinical outcomes. These initiatives include monitoring patient
transfers and patient satisfaction levels, infection control programs, and return to
operating room/enmergency room measures. These initiatives are expected to
further enhance Diagnostic Endoscopy’s reputation. Diagnostic Endoscopy will
also benefit by increased awareness of performance standards by being able to
benchmark and track Diagnostic Endoscopy’s performance against other AmSurg
facilities. AmSurg also offers education and training through its human resource
teams.

Third, Diagnostic Endoscopy acknowledges that it will benefit from AmSurg’s
contracting expertise in the areas of payers, purchasing and leasing. AmSurg will
facilitate the Center’s procurement of contracts with additional payers because of
AmSurg’s brand recognition and market presence in the healthcare provider
community. Diagnostic Endoscopy’s retention of any additional payer contracts
will improve access for more patients by allowing more patients to avail
themselves of the lower cost services that freestanding ambulatory surgical
centers provide. AmSurg will also assist with renegotiation of reimbursement
rates with existing payers. AmSurg will also help Diagnostic Endoscopy with
coordination of purchases and leases through its team of contract reviewers and
negotiators and its utilization analysis expertise. AmSurg’s established vendor
relationships will also benefit Diagnostic Endoscopy. Coupled with
administrative and management efficiencies, AmSurg’s administration of new and
renegotiated payer contracts and management of other contracting issues will
enhance the ability of the Physician Owners to fully utilize the Center as an
extension of their medical practices and achieve trickle-down savings for patients.

Finally, Diagnostic Endoscopy recognizes the involvement of AmSurg in the
ownership and operations of Diagnostic Endoscopy will provide the Center with
the leadership and financial support of a successful healthcare organization.
AmSurg currently carries a $450 million line of credit and has been a publicly
held company since 1997. AmSurg’s ownership will not only make available the
capital necessary to implement enhancements to the Center, but as a national
management company AmSurg will institute proven financial controls, risk
management strategies and economies of scale into the Center’s purchasing and
supply arrangements that will reduce the cost of patient services and provide the
Center with long-term viability. AmSurg’s financial strength will ensure the
viability of the Center and thus the continued access of more cost efficient
gastroenterology outpatient procedures in the service area.
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In sum, AmSurg is the most suitable partner for Diagnostic Endoscopy because it
is a strong national company with the capability to bring numerous benefits to
Diagnostic Endoscopy, its patients and the community. The involvement of
AmSurg in the ownership of Diagnostic Endoscopy provides the Physician
Owners with the ability to partner with a highly-experienced and financially
responsible party that will improve Diagnostic Endoscopy’s management,
strengthen Diagnostic Endoscopy’s ability to contract with other health plans,
create administrative efficiencies, enhance operational guidelines and quality and
patient satisfaction measures, increase long term viability, and establish other
efficiencies, including, but not limited to, enhanced purchasing, staffing,
information systems, and finance and accounting.

AmSurg - AmSurg provides a wide range of management and support services
for both established and newly-developed surgical centers with particular
expertise in managed care contracting, information systems development,
administrative services, human resources, marketing and purchasing, financials
and accounting. AmSurg was founded in 1992 as a Tennessee corporation and
went public in 1997. Today, AmSurg currently operates over 220 centers in 35
states across the United States and has over 1,500 physician partners. A screen
shot of AmSurg’s website describing services is attached at Attachment A.

The interests of AmSurg as recipients of the ownership interest in Diagnostic
Endoscopy are furthered by this transaction. In recent years, AmSurg has made it
a practice to work collaboratively with local physicians in select joint venture
arrangements; ownership of Diagnostic Endoscopy helps achieve this goal while
integrating the AmSurg’s services with a freestanding surgical center in a
desirable community. AmSurg will benefit from this transaction by increasing its
business in Connecticut and use its expertise to guide Diagnostic Endoscopy
though the complex and competitive health care environment. Currently, AmSurg
has financial interests in two Connecticut surgical centers: Wilton Surgery Center,
LLC in Wilton and The Bloomfield Eye Surgery Center, LL.C in Bloomfield. In
these two facilities, AmSurg has developed a favorable track record with
Connecticut ambulatory surgery centers. From AmSurg’s perspective, this
transaction represents the opportunity to expand its business in Connecticut and
use its management expertise to maintain high quality and cost effective
ambulatory surgical care in an increasingly complex and competitive healthcare
environment.

Further, Diagnostic Endoscopy has a broad geographic draw as indicated in
Attachment B. The patient origin data indicates the primary service area includes
the Connecticut towns of Stamford, Greenwich, Darien, Riverside, Norwalk, Cos
Cob, O1d Greenwich, New Canaan, Westport and Wilton. A significant number of
patients also come from New York. The broad patient base for Diagnostic
Endoscopy exemplifies AmSurg’s advantage in acquiring Diagnostic Endoscopy.
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As noted above, this proposed change of ownership will provide Diagnostic
Endoscopy and the opportunity to work collaboratively for the betterment of
patient care. Joint ventures such as this one are both clinically and economically
beneficial in an era where physicians wish to participate in the ownership and
operation of facilities that treat their patients but often lack the access to capital,
leverage with third-party payers and management expertise necessary to sustain
such an enterprise. Here, Diagnostic Endoscopy’s ability to continually provide
high quality, efficient and cost effective gastroenterology outpatient surgical
procedures to residents of southwestern Connecticut will be enhanced through the
combined effort of physicians and an experienced manager of ambulatory surgical
centers. It is for these reasons that the proposed sale of a 62% interest to AmSurg
should be approved.

. Provide a history and timeline of the proposal (e.g., When did discussions

begin between the Applicants? What have the Applicants accomplished so
far?).

RESPONSE:

The parties began exploratory discussion in March 2012 on potential
collaboration or acquisition by AmSurg. In-depth reviews were conducted by
AmSurg regarding needs, the Center’s operations, the impact of the purchase on
AmSurg’s affiliates and the Center’s primary service area. Representatives of
AmSurg conducted site reviews to evaluate quality, staff competence, physical
plant and compliance with AAAHC standards.

Diagnostic Endoscopy unanimously approved the sale of 62% to AmSurg at the
Board Meeting on May 7, 2012. See Attachment C for a redacted copy of the
Board of Managers Meeting Mimites from May 7, 2012. A Letter of Intent was
signed on May 7, 2012 between Diagnostic Endoscopy and AmSurg. Further,
standard corporate due diligence is presently underway in anticipation of a closing
as soon as possible subject to OHCA approval. See Attachment D for a copy of
the executed Letter of Intent.

. List any changes to the clinical services offered by the Applicants that result
from this proposal, and provide an explanation.

RESPONSE: The Applicants do not anticipate any changes to the clinical
services provided at the Center.

. Describe the existing population served by the facility changing ownership or

control, and how the proposal will impact these populations. Include
demographic information as appropriate.

RESPONSE:

The patients currently served by the Center are from the geographic region as
shown in Aftachment B. The average age of the patients receiving treatment at the
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Center is 59. The Center performed approximately 9,800 procedures last year.
The payer mix by case volume is weighted toward commercial payers at 72% in
2011, followed by Medicare at 28% in 2011. Payer mix by revenue is 87%
commercial and 13% government.

This population served by the Center is not expected to change. However, the
change in ownership will improve management and operations, which will have
the positive effect of providing more efficient and effective care which may result
in increased productivity.

Describe the transition plar and how the Applicants will ensure continuity of
services. Provide a copy of a transition plan, if available.

RESPONSE: There is no formal transition plan; however the parties will enter
into a Definitive Agreement as soon as practicable detailing the agreement
between Diagnostic Endoscopy and AmSurg. As indicated in the Letter of Intent,
the transaction will terminate the management agreement with Merritt. As noted
above, prior to closing, Diagnostic Endoscopy will merge into a Tennessee LLC
and at the closing AmSurg will become a member of the Tennessee LLC.

The continuity of services will not be affected. After the transaction, the Center
will continue to provide gastroenterology procedures. AmSurg will have the
authority to provide day-to-day management services at Diagnostic Endoscopy as
well as manage the operations of its Center, subject to medical oversight by the
physician members of Diagnostic Endoscopy and consistent with the Center’s
policies similar to Merritt’s current management arrangement. Continuity of
quality care will be further ensured due to the fact that Diagnostic Endoscopy
physicians will be able to utilize the resources of the national management
company with proven success in daily management and long-term viability. The
location and scope of services will remain the same. The AmSurg name and
brand will ensure payers remain engaged with Diagnostic Endoscopy and
encourage new payers to seek engagement.

. For each Applicant (and any new entities to be created as a result of the
propesal}, provide the following prior fo and after this proposal:

i. Legal chart of corporafte or entity structure incleding all affiliates.

RESPONSE: See Attachment E for the corporate structure of Diagnostic
Endoscopy pre- and post-transaction membership to this proposal.

ii. List of owners and the % ownership and shares of each.

RESPONSE: See Attachment F for the list of owners and their respective pre-
and post-transaction membership interest in Diagnostic Endoscopy. The
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62%/38% split represents AmSurg’s desire to obtain a majority interest and the
Physician Owners’ desire to sell certain portions of their shares.

h. Provide copies of all signed written agreements or memorandum of
understanding, including all exhibits/attachments, between the Applicants
related to the proposal. Nete: If a final version is not available, provide a
draft with an estimated date by which the final agreement will be available.

RESPONSE: See Attachment D for copy of executed and signed Letter of Intent
between the Diagnostic Endoscopy and AmSurg.

2. Quality Measures

a. Submit a list of all key professional, administrative, clinical, and direct
service personnel related to the proposal. Attach a copy of their Curriculum
Vitae.

RESPONSE: See Attachment G for the list of key professional, administrative
and clinical staff and respective CVs.

b. Explain how the propesal contributes to the quality of health care delivery in
the region.

RESPONSE: Diagnostic Endoscopy provides services of high quality as
evidenced by its historical outcomes, AmSurg’s assessment of the Diagnostic
Endoscopy’s current operations and continuous accreditation status by the
AAAHC. The Operating Agreement between AmSurg and Diagnostic Endoscopy
will ensure consistent clinical oversight and quality control. AmSurg’s
management services focus on the provision of quality health care delivery and
indicate AmSurg’s dedication to providing quality health care services. AmSurg’s
facility management initiatives aim to ensure quality services by forming
emergency management and preparedness policies. AmSurg facilities have
consistently high patient satisfaction survey scores. Additionally, AmSurg’s
clinical and administrative resources and initiatives, guality improvement
expertise, information technology capability and best practices information will
coniribute to the guality and value of the services provided.

3. Organizational and Financial Information
a. Identify the Applicant’s ownership type(s) (e.g. Corporation, PC, LLC, etc.).
RESPONSE: Diagnostic Endoscopy is a Connecticut limited liability company.

Diagnostic Endoscopy will merge into a Tennessee limited liability company
prior to the closing. AmSurg is a Tennessee Corporation.
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b. Does the Applicant have non-profit status?
[]¥es (Provide documentation) <! No

c. Provide a copy of the State of Connecticut, Depariment of Public Health
license(s) currently held by the Applicant and indicate any additional
licensure categories being sought in relation to the proposal.

RESPONSE: See Attachment H for Diagnostic Endoscopy’s current Department
of Public Health license. No additional licensure categories will be sought.

d. Financial Statements

i. If the Applicant is a Connpecticut hospital: Pursuant to Section 19a-644,
C.G.8., each hospital licensed by the Department of Public Health is
required to file with OHCA copies of the hospital’s audited financial
statements. If the hospital has filed its most recently completed fiscal year
audited financial statements, the hospital may reference that filing for
this proposal.

RESPONSE: Not applicable.

ii. If the Applicant is not a Connecticut hospital (other health care facilities):
Audited financial statements for the most recently completed fiscal year.
If audited financial statements do not exist, in lieu of audited financial
statements, provide other financial documentation (e.g. unaudited
balance sheet, statement of operations, tax return, or other set of books.)

RESPONSE: See Attachment I for Diagnostic Endoscopy and AmSurg’s
financial statements.

e. Submit a final version of all capital expenditures/costs as follows:

Table 2: Proposed Capital Expenditures/Costs

Medical Equipment Purchase $

Imaging Equipment Purchase

Non-Medical Equipment Purchase

Land/Building Purchase *
Construction/Renovation **

Other Non-Construction (Specify)

Total Capital Expenditure (TCE) $ 12,583,950

Medical Equipment Lease (Fair Market Value) *** $

Imaging Equipment Lease (Fair Market Value) ***

Non-Medical Equipment Lease (Fair Market Value) ***

Fair Market Value of Space ***
Total Capital Cost (TCC) $
Total Project Cost (TCE + TCQ) $ 12,583,950
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Capitalized Financing Costs (Informational Purpose Only)

Total Capital Expenditure with Cap. Fin. Costs

$ 12,583,950

* If the proposal involves a land/building purchase, attach a real estate property appraisal including the
amount; the useful life of the building; and & schedule of depreciation.
** If the proposal involves construction/renovations, attach a description of the proposed building work,
including the gross square feet; existing and proposed floor plans; commencement date for the
construction/ renovation; completion date of the construction/renovation; and commencement of operations

date.

*#% [fthe proposal involves a capital or operating equipment lease and/or purchase, attach a vendor quote
or invoice; schedule of depreciation; useful life of the equipment; and anticipated residual value at the end

of the lease or loan term.

f. List all funding or financing sources for the proposal and the dollar amount
of each. Provide applicable details such as interest rate; term; monthly
payment; pledges and funds received to date; letter of interest or approval

from a lending institution.

RESPONSE: AmSurg will use existing working capital to fund the $12,583,950
purchase price. AmSurg also has a current $450 million line of credit.

g. Demonstrate how this proposal will affect the financial strength of the state’s

health care system.

RESPONSE: This proposal will improve the financial strength of the state’s
healthcare system by: (1) by leveraging existing payer contracts and increasing

utilization and achieving operating cost reductions; (2) improving patient

satisfaction with increased efficiency in administrative support and upgrade in
information system development; and (3) enabling patients greater access to
outpatient services through procurement of contracts with additional health plans.
Further, Diagnostic Endoscopy has a Financial Hardship Policy in which it
provides certain qualifying patients with reduced fees. See Attachment J for the
Financial Hardship Policy. The Financial Hardship Policy will remain in place
after the transaction. AmSurg’s financial management and tax expertise will also
have a positive impact upon the financial performance of Diagnostic Endoscopy
which in turn improves the financial health of the State’s health care system.

4. Patient Population Mix: Current and Projected

a. Provide the current and projected patient population mix (based on the
number of patients, not based on revenue) with the CON proposal for the

proposed program.

Table 3: Patient Popuiation Mix — Diagnostic Endoscopy

Current Year1 Year 2 Year3

FY 2011 FY 2612 FY 2013 FY 2014
Medicare*® 27.73% 28.73% 29.73% 30.73%
Medicaid® 0.03% 0.03% 0.03% 0.03%
CHAMPUS & TriCare 0.04% 0.04% 0.04% 0.04%
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Total Government 27.79% 28.79% 29.79% 30.79%
Commercial Insurers® 71.79% 70.79% 69.79% 68.79%
Uninsured 0.42% 0.42% 0.42% 0.42%
Workers Compensation 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Total Non-Government 72.21% 71.21% 78.21% 69.21%
Total Payer Mix 100.60% 100.00% 106.00% 100.00%

* Includes managed care activity.

#* New programs may leave the “current” column blank,

**% Fill in years. Ensure the period covered by this table corresponds to the period covered in the
projections provided.

b. Provide the basis for/assumptions used to project the patient population mix.

RESPONSE: These projections are based on the actual experience of Diagnostic
Endoscopy and the projected increase in the aging population.

5. Financial Attachments T & 11

a. Provide a summary of revenue, expense, and volume statistics, without the
CON project, incremental to the CON project, and with the CON project.
Complete Financial Attachment I. (Note that the actual results for the fiscal
year reported in the first column must agree with the Applicant’s audited
financial statements.) The projections must include the first three full fiscal
years of the project.

RESPONSE: See Financial Attachment 1.

b. Provide the assumptions utilized in developing ¥inancial Attachment I (e.g.,
full-time equivalents, volume statistics, other expenses, revenue and expense
% increases, project commencement of operation date, etc.).

RESPONSE: The assumptions utilized include a 5% growth in revenue and
procedure from 2011 to 2012 due to an additional physician utilizer, a yearly 3%
growth in revenue and procedure in 2013 and 2014 and a yearly 3% growth in
expenses. These percentages are based on Diagnostic Endoscopy’s actual
experiences.

The cost savings assumes a proposed 10% reduction in Professional/Contracted
Services, a 20% reduction in Supplies/Drugs, and 15% reduction in Other Expenses
for each projected year.

c. [Identify the entity that will be billing for the proposed service(s).

RESPONSE: Diagnostic Endoscopy will bill for the facility fees. Individual
physicians will bill for the professional components.
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d. As a result of the proposal, will there be any change to existing
reimbursement contracts between the Applicants and payers (e.g. Medicare,
Medicaid, commercial)? Explain.

RESPONSE: There will be no changes to existing contracts. Diagnostic Endoscopy
will not have any immediate change to payers. However, Diagnostic Endoscopy
expects to increase its payer base by contracting with more payers after the
transaction with AmSurg.

e. Provide the minimum number of units required to show an incremental gain
from operations for each fiscal year.

RESPONSE: Not applicable, there are no incremental losses from the proposal.

f. Explain any projected incremental losses from operations contained in the
financial projections that result from the implementation and operation of
the CON proposal.

RESPONSE: Not applicable, there are no incremental losses from the proposal.
g. Describe how this proposal is cost effective.

RESPONSE: This proposal is cost effective because upon information and belief the
costs of healthcare stakeholders in freestanding outpatient surgery centers versus an
outpatient hospital setting are less for patients and payers. As noted above,
efficiencies in the operation and administration, economies of scale with vendors and
other costs will also be realized. The savings will be reflected in the operating
expense of financial statements.
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Attachment A

Partnership Basies  Sclfing A Conter  Budliding A CGantor AmiSurg Services

AmSurg Services

What Can AmSurg Do For e?

By parinering with AmSurg, you will recalve the penafits of working with & pioneer end feadar in surgery center management that
is tocused on ¢rhancing shysiclans' services. Qur services ranga from finenclal and operationat 10 marketing and enlrepreneurial
Qur goal is to facliitate your profassioral and personal growlh on your terms. Out services will hefp you with qperating your ¢enter
and strategically positioning your businass for the fulure.

How can these sarviess ransform your surgery center? Laarn about ine AmSurg Advantage -1he spacific, imigue benefits we
can offer you and your center.

How can you cbiain these services fur your conter? Contatt us by phone at B77-741-0085 or emall.

%1 Strateglc Services | & Operational Servivas
Strategic Services

W olfer thosa services and mora 1o focus on the long-lerm suscass of your cenigr

£ Advncacy
The Advocacy dapariment advosates for pariners on all government tevets ~ naltionat, stats, and focal ~by working with
ambutatory surgery cenfers (ASGr) and speciaily socielies'to create and pramote policles that sepport physicians who
own and operate ASCs

Comnunication Campaigns
Education and lnformation
Grassroots Atdvocacy
Labbylng
PAG
{28 Anesthesla Manegerment Services
As a naturel extension o Whé administralive, opsralional and management expertise AmSurg cureently provides,

Anesthesie Mansgement Services (AMS) offers centers away ia navigate the many ragulatory shailenges sround the use
of Propofet and stif earn a shers of the profil from this important ancillary service,

B Development
AmSurg wes founded an and expands {rrough cultivaling retationsiips with physicians, and Devetopment is wheve those
retutionships bagin,

The Dovelopment leam has cansistantly ted {he industry In surgery center fransactions, atding new centers {o the
AmSurg neswork each year, Consistent davelopment activity over two decades has established PanSurg as the nelion's

leading operator of surgery cenlers.

With experlenoe In regatisting surgery center devetoprrent and ecquisition sransaclions, Development works with
physicians who wanl W gain the resources and sxperlise of a business parlner i lheir new or existing surgary ceater.

Reforrad Program
Sateltite Fachity Pevelopment
% {nformation Technology

Thne |s monay, snd AmSurg partaers no ionger have 10 waste e figuring out the best medical software for the cenler,
implementing the applications, raising slatf and wailing on technicsl support

Tha Information Technology {IT} team ensures ihat alt phyaician partners end their center stff have access 1o selecled
goflwera, tralring ang technieal support needad to work productively,

T offers schedullng end hilting solutions, materials managemesat programs, an elecironlc documentation systam and @
paysoll system that could simpilfy center operalions and administrative managemaent

Sarvice Desk ard Support

ellocuments

insight

NextGen EP# and EHR PRacfice Llcenses

ProVation

£ Marketing and Media Relations
it today s chellenging ecoROmic environment, a well-canceived markeling strategy i crilical fo the growth of & surgery
conter. Yat, the oplions have probably never been mora auinerous or confusing. AmSurg's Markeling depariment can
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hetp mala sure 9 center's adverising doflers wre gensrating a positive return.

Awareness GCampaign

Direct Accoss Entoscopy
Front Cliloe Excellence

L.ocat Center Marketing
Proaotive Medin Relations
Digttat Marketing

Navigator

Refarring Physician Marketing

55 Physlcian Recreitment

AmSurg's Physiclan Recrultment program will work hard 10 meet a center's growing rectuiting dumandsy for a
reasonahie cost.

3 Quality
Fhe Qustily department buitds angoing retalionships with and provides support 10 centess In order 4o offer o systematic
approach to plan, meesure, cvaluate and improve safely and quality of care. Elaments of qualily can include patient
exparience a5 welt as eliniosl ang operationsl parformancs.

The Quality department stalf alse helps We center measure, monilor. evaiuale and mprove clinloal outcomes, operaticnat
efficlencies and custemer satisfaction in sceordance with federal and state regulatory requirements.

Acereditation

Clinlent Shurdies

Patient Satisfaction Survey

Policles and Procedures Library

Quality Program Assessment

Regutatory Compliance

Risk Management

Operational Services

Wo offar these services andt mare Lo help successfuily ron the day-1a-day operations of your center.

23 Business Dperations )
From the moment a patlenl walks through a parlner's deor, ihe Business Operations team supporls center stalf — from
chetksin, to chack-oul, to charge enlry, charge posting, verifization of coverage end henefits, coding, claim precessing,
peyment posting, derval menagement and patient seiuduling,
Educatien and Training
Ragufatory Compliancs
Ravenue Gycle Matagement
Ceniral Billing Office
aPay
4 Clinleal

AmSurg Clinical Services provides speclally specific aperational expariise when supporting day-lo-day cenler operglions,
The Ciinical Serviges tean ulllizes best prectice infonnation from more than 200 AmSurg cenlers natlonwids,

Wiiather it is erhancing operating room elfizisncies o overseeity quality improvement intlalives, Glinioal Servicos can
help institute policies that when combined with & pariner’s medica care, help ansure exesllent palient outcomes and
cansten! survey foodingss

Ciinigal Expertise Support
Gontintons Sevey Readiness and Regulatary Compliante
Education and Training
Infection Conteol
Opeartiona! Efficiencies and Expense Manageinent
Pallcies and Procedures
5 Compliance
The Compliance depariment has lhe axperience and skil-set to stay on top of ever-thanging compliance stendards to

make sure the center compiies wilh applicalle laws, The Complience leam also offars extensive HIPAA subject mattar
expaHisa that helps the center with policies ang procedures 10 comply with HIPAA ragulations.

Cotpliance Oversight
Education and Frainkng
Licensure Appfication Support

Frevention antd Response

£3 Contracting
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Awelt-negotiated contract can daliver lasling valug to the cenler, end the experisnced Conracting team o AneSerg
nranages contracts by carefully reviewing and Bssossing fae finenciat and language teems of the agregment, which ¢an
ypleally resull in revanue geins.

Contract Language Reviow
Contragt Negotiation

Exlsting Contract Rensgotiation
Feo Schadule Analysis

5 Facilities Manageinent and Construction

The Facilities Management and Congdniclion team (FMSC) offers o wide renge of services 1o the center, gverphing from:
emergency repair of heating, ventifalion and alr conditioning (HVAD), to dealing directly with architests and genars)
conractors during xpansionicanstruction projects,

FMEC's exparts also have the skills to negotipte the bast terms possitte for the center's lease, and 1f its time 1o expand or
relacele, they can help find & suitable location aret ensure e lerms are working 10 the center's hest edvantage.

FMEC's goal is to save time and money on projects and repeirs - bul as imporant — minimize the tine pertners spand in
managing and maintaining the faciity.

"Ona Gatl”

Emergency Management

Planning, Bresign ond Construction

Real listate, Leass and Logal

B Finance

The Finance depariment adheres fo the Highest accounting standards when skeamlining & conter's finansiat reporting
procasses and whan helping pariners make informed financiai decisions about the center.

R addftion, scenario-specific financiel enslyass can be prepared to examina the polential effect of changes in the
bugiress’ or center’s profils. such as modilying surgical procaduras porformad or ha numbter of reoms H use.
Financiaf Reports

Payroll Support
eBanking

1 Human Resources

The Hunxen Resources team offers specialized, professionat asslstance and & varlety of programs and lools that wark to
effechivaly manage human resources issues 5o parlners Can concentrate on improving the cenfor's parfarmance.

Education and Training

Employee Relations

Background Checks

Health and Welfareiftetirement Benefits
HealthBtream

Job Postings

B4 Materials Management

In pertnering with AmSiirg, the center nstently gains coonoimies of scale and o competitive advantage by controliing costs
ak the center. The Matsrials Management tleam net only fras the experience to read the plilse of & constantly evoking
indusley. but they consistently focus on finding ways to negotisie betker supply and equipmend priess for the center,

producing tangible savings.
Lingwt Contract Nogatiation Experfise
Psrlodic Automatic Replanishment (PAR)
Prlcing Review

Purchasing Business Reviews
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Patient Origin Data Collected by Zip Code in 2011

Attachment B

Number of | Percentage
Zip Code Patients of Total Town State
CONNECTICUT
06901 1,924 26.039% | Stamford CT
06830 1,538 20.815% | Greenwich CT
06820 416 5.630% | Darien CT
06878 399 5.400% ; Riverside CT
06850 371 5.021% | Norwalk CT
06807 334 4.520% | Cos Cob CT
06870 301 4.074% | Old Greenwich | CT
06840 218 2.950% | New Canaan CT
06880 140 1.895% | Westport CT
06897 105 1.421% : Wilton CT
06824 58 0.785% | Fairfield CT
06877 36 0.487% | Ridgefield CT
06606 32 0.433% | Bridgeport CT
06611 27 0.365% | Trumbull CT
06896 23 0.311% | Redding CT
06614 21 0.284% | Stratford CT
06468 14 0.189% | Monroe CT
06810 14 0.189% i Danbury CT
06612 10 0.135% | Easton CT
06460 9 0.122% | Milford CT
06470 7 0.095% | Newton CT
06484 7 0.095% | Shelton CT
06430 6 0.081% | Fairfield CT
06516 6 0.081% | West Haven CT
06478 5 0.068% | Oxford CT
06890 5 0.068% | Southport CT
06801 4 0.054% | Bethel CT
06804 4 0.054% | Brookfield CT
06230 3 0.041% | Abington CT
06405 3 0.041% | Branford CT
06437 3 0.041% | Guilford CT
06482 3 0.041% | Sandy Hook CT
06483 3 0.041% | Seymour CT
06488 3 0.041% | Southbury CT
06518 3 0.041% | Hamden CT
06770 3 0.041% | Naugatuck CT
06106 2 0.027% | Hartford CT
06355 2 0.027% | Mystic CT
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06378 2 0.027% | Stonington CT
06490 2 0.027% | Southport CT
06511 2 0.027% | New Haven CT
06517 2 0.027% | Hamden CT
06708 2 0.027% | Waterbury CT
06754 2 0.027% | Cornwall Bridge i CT
06776 2 0.027% | New Milford CT
06784 2 0.027% | Sherman CT
06790 2 0.027% | Torrington CT
06812 2 0.027% | New Fairfield CT
06019 1 0.014% | Canton CT
06067 1 0.014% | Rocky Hill CT
06076 1 0.014% | Stafford Springs | CT
06081 1 0.014% | Tariffville CT
06087 1 0.014% | Unionville CT
06339 1 0.014% | Ledyard CT
06410 1 0.014% | Cheshire CT
06423 1 0.014% | East Haddam CT
06436 1 0.014% | Green Farms CT
06457 1 0.014% | Middletown CT
06464 1 0.014% | Meriden CT
06477 1 0.014% | Orange CT
06525 1 0.014% | Woodbridge CT
06706 1 0.014% | Waterbury CT
06716 1 0.014% | Wolcott CT
06723 1 0.014% | Waterbury CT
06778 I 0.014% | Northfield CTt
06793 1 0.014% | Washington CT
06798 I 0.014% | Woodbury CT
OTHER STATES

1202 16.267% NY
31 0.420% FL
16 0.217% NJ

7 0.095% MA

5 0.068% VT

4 0.054% RI

3 0.041% NH

3 0.041% PA

2 0.027% GA

2 0.027% LA

2 0.027% TX

2 0.027% CO

1 0.014% ME

1 0.014% VA

1 0.014% NC
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1 0.014% OH
1 0.014% MI
1 0.014% NM
1 0.014% CA
1 0.014% HI
UNCLASSIFIED
1
TOTAL 7,389
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Attachment C

Board of Members Meeting Minutes

PIAGNOSTIC ENDOSGOPY, LLG

BOARD OF MANAGERS
MEETING MINUTES
Monday, May 07, 2012
UNABLE
MEMBERS O
PRESENT: iNeda Khaghan, M.D., Alan Seikin, M.D., Stuart Waldstrsicher #1.0. ATTEND:
ATTENDANCE: Witliam Muthall, Richard Searjes, Geri Callahan RN BY PHONE:
DIRECTIONICOMMENT
TOPIC DISCUSSION STATUS FINAL DETERMINATION
Callto Order __ 1The mesting was called to order at 18:00. Closed
 Provious munues  [Review and approval of Minutes from 2/3/171. Action  IMinules were approved as presenied
REPORTS
MAC Update  [Redacted Action _ {Redacted
Stafiing Redacted Action  [Redacted
Equipment Redacted Open
Seheduling Redacled Action  [Redacted
Financials Redacted Action _jRedacted
Pathology NIA Cpen
Anesthesia NIA Cpen
TiSystoms N/A Open
Reporiing Redacted Open
New Physicians I_Redacted Open
With the Consent of all Members, the Board
Action  |approves the sate of 62% of the faclity to
Business Amsurg has provided the final Letter of Infent to be signed with the Amsurg. Merritt fo circutate the letter of
Davalopment consent of all members. intent to ali members for signature.
Center of ExcelloncelRedacted Open
Other Redacted QOpen
NEW BUSINESS
Other NIA Open
Adjownment _ 1The meeling was adjourned st 12:30 Claged
Next Meoting Date | A subsequent meeling date wili ba circufated, Qpen

Wiilten by: R. Searles, Merrilt Healthcare Solutlens, on behalf of member pariners.

17-May-12
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Attachment D*
*please note Ronald Cirillo’s signature appears on the wrong line

AMSURG

May 7, 2012

Stuart Waldstreicher, MD

Peter Gardner, MD

Ronald Chillo, MD !
William Pintauro, MD

Neda Khaghean, MD

Felice Zwas, MDD

Nelseh Bonheln, MD

Alan Selkin, MD :
Diagnostic Endoscopy, LEC i
778 Long Ridge Road

Stamford, CT

This Letter of infertt Is fo confirm our mutual intenit for AMBURG Cortp,, through a wholly owned
subsidlary, ("AMSURG™), 1o acquire 8 62% ownership interest {the "AMSURG Intarest’} in
Diagnosic Endoscopy Genter, LL.C. {'DECT), which is currently owned, direstly or indirectiy, by
Drs. \Waldstrreicher, Gardnar, Ciriilo, Fintauro, Khaghan, Zwas, Bonheir and Selkin {"Physiclan
Ownere”), Our mutual understanding Is as follows:

1, AMSURG wiil purchase ah aggregate 62% ownerstip interest in DEC for a plirchase
prics of $12,583,850, legs an amount equal to 62% of the outstanding indebtedness of
DEC at efosing. The purchase price may be adjusted by mutual agreemant diving due
diligence to reflect changes in DEC's financisl condition prior to the date of Closing (as
defined below}, The purchase price wilt be pald In cash via wire trensfer at Closing. DEC
wik retain at Closing cash and cash eguivalents necessary to satisly certain mutually
agreed upon accrued liabilities vendor payments and vuistanding checks. The
Physiclans Owners will be distributed afl of DEC's remaining cash and cash equivalents
at Closing. !

2. As a condition fo Clesing, DEC will terminate the Management Agreement between DEC
and DEC Merdtt, LLC. Any termination fees due to DEC Merritt, LLC will be the
responsibility of the Physician Owners, In determining the value of the AMSURG
Intersst, AMSURG has adiusted the valuation to reflect the elimination of the DEC
Merritt menagement fee, This adjustment resulted in an inorease o the purchase price
of §1,260,000,

3. The Definitlve Agreement {as defined below} for the transaction contermplated by this
Lefter of Intent will be executed on or before June 20, 2012, or such cther date as the
parties may mutually agree. The final closing of the transactions contemplated by
Definitive Agreament (the “Closing”} will oocur 28 soon as possible after the parlles
racelve a Transfer of Ownership GON (as defined below) approving AMBURG's
actuisition of the AMSURG Inferest in DEC, The Definitive Agreement will provide that
ither party shall have the right fo terminate the Definiilve Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereby In the event the transactions contemplated by the
Dediniiive Agreement are not consummated by January 1, 2013,

4, The pariies will enter into a muttally accapiable definitive purchase agreement
{*Deflnitive Agreement”) that is consistent with the termsz of this Letier of Intent, and

H
H
i
H
i
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Includes such represeniations, warrantles, covenants and conditions as ave typicaifor a
transaction of this nature. AMSURG will begin conducting due diligence immediately
after execution of this Letier of Intent, and such due diligence shall be completed within
sixty {80) days thereafter, before execution of the Definitive Agreement. Accordingly,
safisfactory due diligence results will not be a condition to Closing the Definliive
Agreement,

Frior to Closing, DEG will merge or cotivert, as permitied undsr Connecticut law, into a
Tennassee mited liabiity company (the *Tannessee LLE). Promptly following the
execution of the Definitive Agreement, the parlies will submit to the Gonnecticut
Department of Public Health (the "Bepartment’) a Transfer of Cwnership Certificate of
Need {"CON") application seeking CON approval from the Department of AMSURG's
acyuisition of the AMSURG Interest. Althe Closing, AMSURG will become a member of
the Tennessee LLG and the Tennessee LLC will apply for a new clinie lisense based on
the change of ownership of DEC,

Al Glosing, e parfies wilt enter Into an Operating Agresment for the Tenpessee LLC
which shalt Include mutually agreed temms, The Operating Agresment of ihe Tenhessee
110 wil provide that each of AMSURG and the Physiclan Owners shall have a fiduciary
duty to et at all times in 4 manner such person reasonably bielleves to be in the bast
Interest of the Tennessee LEC, In good faith and with the care of anh ordinarily prudent
person In & like position would exerclse under similar clirsumstances.

The Operaling Agreement of the Tennesses LLC wilt provide that all decisions at the
member {owner) level wil require the concurrent approval of @ majority of the interests
hetld by AMSURG and a majority of the non-AMSURE Interests in the Tennessge |LLC
hetd by the Physiclan Owhers, Managemett of the Tenhesses LLC will be overseen by &
governing board having squal representation from the Physician Owners and from
AMSEURG, except to the extent delegated by mutual agreement of the patties, The
partios wilf mulually agree on a fist of majer actions that wil be reserved to, and reguire
approval of, the governing board of the Tennessee LLC. The governing board of the
Tennesses I.LC will act by concurrent approval of a majority of the AMSURG
representatives and  majority of the Physician Owner representatives.

The Opsrating Agresment will provide that, followlng the Closing, AMSURG will provide
certaln management and administrative services necessary to operaie the Tennesses
LLC's free-standing ambulatory surgery center ('ASC") in an efficient and business-like
manner in accordance with prevailing industry stendards {the "Management Services”).
The Mahagement Services will include assisting In operafions, coordinating purchases
and leases, maintenance of ficenses and marketing programs, negofiating
reimbursefent, overseeing chearge structure, negotiating financing for future needs,
devetoping policies and procedures (ncluding but not limited fo human resource and
compliance policies and procedures), overseslng recruiting of ABC personnel, fraining
ASC personhel, physiclan recruftment, arranging for Insurance coverage, oversesing
accouriing procedures and systems, oversesing the preparation of the annual report
and tax information telums, furnishing reports, and preparing budgets, &l as shall be set
forth in more detaill in the Operating Agreement. Unless agreed otherwise by the Parlies
prict to Closing, AMSURG, shall charge 10% of el Profit for any Management
Services, subject to & minimum of $150,000 annually and meximum of $300,000
annually. Net Profil shall be defined as revenue net of all expenses. Al Management
Services will be provided at the direction ardd undet the supervision of the governing
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Board of the Tennessee LLC, excepf to the extent delegated by agreement of the

pariles. The Operating Agreement wili also require the Physician Owners to provide the i
ASC with a Medical Director and & Performance Improvement Committes Chalr who are ’
reasonably accepiable to the governing board of the Tennessee LLC. [Gompensation of

the Medical Director and 71 Chairman to be dscussed, Any compengsation paid to those

persens by the LLC would result in an adjustment to the purchass price.)

8. The Operating Agresment wilf provide that when a new physician i added as a .
memberfowner of the Tennessee LEG affer the first wetve months following the Closing,
AMSURG's interest in the Tennessee LLC will be diiufed on an equal basis with the i
Physician Owners, to not legs than 51%. 1 AMSURG's interest is dituted to 51%, then ;
admisslon of any new physiciar: will thereafter only dilts the interest of the Physician i
Owners. The transfer of ahy membership interest among Physiclan Cwners of to 8 new
physician, arnd admissicn of any new Physician Owner will require the approval of the
governing board of the Tennesses LLC,

10. The Oparating Agreement wilk provide that ¥ future regulatory changes restrict the .
Physician Owners’ ability [0 own an inteTest in the Termessea LLC, then AMSURS may !
purchase fhe Physiclan Owners' iMerest in the Tennessee L LC as may be necessary to
correct the problem for a purchase price equal to three fimes traifing welve months profit
before Interest, taxes, depraciation and amortization ("EBITDA"), with {hig armount
rediiced by a pro rated porilon of the Tennessee LLC's dsbl.

The Operating Agreement will provide that Physician Owners will noi have any direct or
Indirect awnership Inlerest in, or manags, Jease, devalop or otherwise have any financial
Interast i any businegs or entity (ether than a physician ofiice practice that dues not
perform surgical procedures for which facility or fray fess are oharged In additioh to
standard profeasional fees) competing or plapning e compete with the Tennessee LLC
withint a twenty five {25) mile radlus of the ASG (the "Market Area”), or become an
employse of & hospitat or an affilate of a hospital that is located withis the Market Area,
of enter into any confract o sther arrangemant (whether as @ rasuit of his or her
employment or ofherwise} that regulres or Incentivizes hirg or her to perform procedures
at any hospitat or Facility affilialed with a hospitat in the Market Area, until the fater of

{i} five: {5) years from the date of Closing or (i} fwo (2) vears after Physician Owner .
ceases to be an owner of the Tennessee LLC; provided, that a Physician Owner may :
become an employse of a bospltel or hosplial affifate and may recelve compensation
paid by such & hosplial o afiiliate that does ol require such Physician Owner to perform i
ambulatory surgical procedures at the employing hospital or affiste and which

compensation is not based. In whole or iy part, on ambulatory surgery referrals to or

procedures performed at the employing hospiial or affiliate .

42, The Operaiing Agreement wil require, at the optlon of the remaining Physician Owners, )
each Physician Owner to sell his interest fg the remalning Physician Owners or another !
physician reasenably acceptable (o the remalning Physician Ownars and AMSURG in
ihe gvent {hat he (i) becomes disabled, dies or olherwise ceases the practice of {
tnedicing, or (i) leaves the market area in which the ASC is located, (i) foses his :
medical license, is excluded from Medicars or Medicaid, or fs convicted of a health care i
felony, or {iv) viclates the resirigtions regarding ownership in a competing facliity. !

1.

-
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13, Any sale by AMSURG of any inferest in the Tennessee LLC {o any parly, including any
hospitat or hospital atfiliate i the Market Area will be subject to approval of a majority in
Intersst of the Physician Owners.

14. Bach of us shall be responsible for our own expenses incurred in Sonneciion wiih the
propased transaction, except that DEC will pay the costs up fo $20,060 incurred by the
parties in conhection with the Transfer of Ownership CON and assoclated glinic lcense
process, AmGurg shall pay the next $20,000 of costs In excess of $20,000, and the
parties shalt spiit any costs I excess of $40,000, with 2% to be paid by AmSurg and
38% to be paid by DEC.

18, The parties wish to retain the services of the cuirent staff of the ASC. Foltowing the
Closing, staff will recsive compensation and benefits cormmensurate with thelr
eompensation and benefiis prior to the Closing.

16. Travel expanses for the Tennesses LLC, which would include AMSBURG smployees and
ASC employess, would ba budgeted annually and would not exceed 520,000 per year
without the express consent of the governing board. :

17, The Closing of the transactions contemplated by this Letter of Infent is contingent on the
pariies’ recelving a Transfer of Ownership CON approving AMSURG's acquilsition of the
AMSURG Interest, and approvat by AMSURG's and DEC's governing boards,

18, Erom the date of execution of this Leiter of Intent unill the earlier of (j) ninety (80} days
from stich exgcution date, or (i) termination of this Lelter of latent, DEC and is
rembets, afiiflates and representatives wilf not withett the approval of AMSURG ()
offar for sale ali or substantially all of the assets of, or ownership inferests in, DEC or the
ASC, (b) sulicit offers to buy all or substantially 21l of the assets of, or vwnership
Interasts in, DEC or the ASC, (o) hold discussions with any parly (other than AMBURG)
leoking toward such an offer or sciicitetion or tnoking toward a merger or consolidation of
any entlty owning any such assets or ownership nterests, of {cy enfer into any
agreement with any parly (other than AMSURG} with respect fo The sale or other
disposition of such assets or ownership Interests or withi respsct fo any merger,
coneciidation or similar fransaction involving an entity owning any such assefs o
ownership interests. This Letter of Intent may be terminated by AMSURG or DEC &t any
iime on thirly {30} days netlce to the other party.

19, The parlies shall maintain this Lefter of Intenf in confidence and shall not disclose it or lts
gonteris fo any third parly, except for thelr respective atforneys, representatives,
officers, boards and employees on @ nead to know basls. Ne party shall make any
public announcement or relese to the press concarning this Lefter of infent without the
prior willten consent of the other party. In addition, except as and fo the extent required
by applicable law, regulation or Tegal process, neither Party, nor any affiliate, parent or
related entlty of AMSURG, nor any of thelr respective directors, officers, members,
emmployees, acosuntants, and other agents and representatives (cofletiively,
“Represeniatives”) shall disclose or use any Configential information {as deflned herein}
with respect io the other party furnished, or to be frnished, by such other parly to such
receiving parly of ils Representatives in connection herewith at any time or in any
manner, other that in connection with the evaluation of the transactions proposed by this
Letter of inlent. For purposes of this Section, "Cenfidential information” meens all orad,
written or electronic information of or refaiing fo elther party, relafing to the proposed
transactions, Including bt not limited 1o proprietary information, intellectual property, and
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20.

o=

21,

22,

23.

financial nformation of & parly; provided, however, that Confidential information doss nol
include Informatlon which (1) is generally avallabie fo and known by the public other than
a6 & result of disclosure by the recsiving parly or ite Representatives; (I} is
independently obtained by a party ot its Representetives withowl vielating their
obligations under this Letter of Infent; i) Is avaitable fo a parly or its Representatives
fram & source that is not prohibited from disslosing the Information by a legal, contractual
or fiductary obligation fo the other parly, or () is required in connsction with legal
proceedings. Each parly shall, at the raguest of the other pary, elther promptiy (a)
deliver to the other party, or (i) destroy, all Gonfidential information of the other party In
its posseasion upoh termination of this Letter of Intent.

The parties agres and acknowledge that, except a5 provided herein below, this Letter of
intent ks non-binding, ahd doss not obligate any parly to proceed with, or otherwlse
complets, the Definitive Agreement or any other transaction. With the exception of the
provisions set forth hereln in Sections 18-20, which the parties agree creale legal and
binding obligations, this Lelter of Intent does not, and is not infended to creale, any legal
obligation or enforceable sight in any party. The pariles further expressly acknowledge
that, prior to the execution of this Letter of intent, there have not been any binding
commitments, agreements or understandings betwsern them with respact to any future
relationship of any kind. Moraover, if the parties procesd to enter into & Definitive
Agreement, then all of the agresments, representations, warranfies, indemnities,
covenanis and conditions with respett thereto shalt be only as set forth in the Definitive
Agreement,

This Letier of intent shalt be governed by the subsiantive laws of the State of
Connectiout without ragard fo the principles of confliots of laws thereof. The partles
consent 1o the Jurisdiction of the cousts of Connecticul and of any federal court focated in
Sonnecticut It connection with any action or proceeding arising ouk of this Letter of
Intent. The parties walve any objection they may have to the laying of vehue in the state
aor federal courts loosted in Connecticut, of any action or proveeding grising out of this
tetter of infent. I any astion to enforce this Letter of Infent oron accourt of ehy breach
of this Letter of Intent, the prevalling party shall be entitlad fo recover, in addition o a
other relief, its reasonable attorneys' fees and court cosis assotiated with such action.
No paity shall be liable to another parly for any consequential, Indirect, incidental,
speuibl, exemplary or punitive damages arising out of or retated 1o this Letter of Intent.

This Letter of Intant constitutes the entire urderstanding and agresment between the
parties and their affifates with respect to its subject matter and supersedes all prior or
contemparanects agreemsents, representations, warranties and understandings of the
partles, whether oral or wrilten. Parot evidence and extrinsic evidence shall be
inadmissible fo show agreement by and befween the parties fo any ferm or condition
contrary or in addition fo the terms and conditions contained In this Letter of Intert,

No parly may transfer or assign afi or any of its rights, obligations or benefits hereunder
in whole or in part to any third party, without the prior written consent of the ofher parties.
This Lefter of Intent may be amended only by written agreement, signed by 3 duly
authorized offlear of each party. This Lelier of intent may be sxecuted in counterparis
{and ths same may be defiverad by means of fagsimile or pdf flle), each of which shail
be deemed an originat and to constitute one and the same instrument.
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. This letter represents our present infantions ard it I not intended to be a formal sgreemant
befween us or = binding sbilgation, Alf obligations to cohsummate the proposed transaction !
shail be contalned only in the definitive purchase agreement and other conternplated ;
agreemends.

AMSUREG CORF.
Yoy

Rab MeCuliough
Vige Prasident, Davelopment

Accepted and agreed o this 2 day of ml] Q . 2012
Stuart WiRlds er, .
gl @,Z/Qw ;

Peter Gardner, M

Heovald Clillo, MD i

Willam Plntauro, MD

Nada Khaghan, MD

Fefive Lwas, WD

Nelson Bonheim, MD

Alzn Selkin, MO

Fi7iLl
B320008 £60F-LISORIIR Disgnnatic Tuoscapy LLGUmbveg AdinlistanLORDEC Asafury LOY (MY Clenn 5.26.1271dp8

(U27350R.5
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This lefter fepresenis our present Infentions and & is not Intended to be a formal agreement
between us or u binding obligation. Alf obiipations fo consurmmats the proposed transaction
shall be contained only In the definiive purchase agresment and other comtemplated
agreemanis,

AMSURG QORP,

" Rob MeCullough

Vice President, Development

Accspted and agread {6 this day of L AD12

Stusrt Waldstrelchar, MD

Peter Gardner, MD

Renaki Clrillg,
TN spdaai-

William Pintaurs, MD

Neda Khaghan, MD

Foles fwas, MD

Nelson Bonhelm, MD

Alan Selkin, MD
SIISEAEE
SN608 ST ASTOELS2Y Endoreopy ELEVImSurg AGnilonLONTEC AaSus L.OT (MY Clonn 478,501

$0743598.3
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This letter reptesents aur present intentions and it is not Intended to be a formal agresinent
between us or a binding obligation. All cbiigations to consummate the proposed tansaction
shail be contained only in the definltive purchase agreement and othar contemplatad

agreements.

AMSURG CORP. ;

AL AL

Rob MoCuliough
Vice Presidend, Development

Accepted and agreed fo this day of R0

Stuarl Waldstreicher, MD
2N

Peter rardrz ,

Wby
.1\ A f\n 0

Feltice Zwat, MY

- 5{7{;%
Naisér(ﬁo?ziz M% fé‘)>%_m,,v.

Alan Selkin, MO L/

LR LLN]
B0 H40T-54 THapnostic iy LECHAmSung Adorissor L ORDEC AmSory; 1O} (MMY Ciean .76, Dudoe

107598
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Attachment £

Organizational Chart of Diagnostic Endoscopy Pre-Transaction

Diggnostic Endoscopy LLC
[Connecticut Corporation)
100% Physician Owned

R e et o o b i

Management Agreement:

Physician Owners:
DEC Merritt, LLC

Stuart
Waldstreicher, MD
14.00%

Peter Gardner, MD
14.00%

Ronasld Cirllio, MD
4.06%

Witliam Pintauro, MOy
8.81%

Neda Khaghan, MD
15.79%

Felice Zwas, MD
17.60%

INelson Bonheim, MD
B.81%

Alan Selkin, MD
16.93%
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Orpanizational Chart of AmSure Corp. and AmSurg Holdings, Inc. Pre-Transaction

Ovganizational Chart of AmSurg

Pablic Shareholders
Amburg Corp,
!
AumSurg Other Unrelated
Holdings, Corporats
Tz Subsidiaries
Center; LLC Subsiddes
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Diagnostic Endoscopy LLC
(Tennesee Corporation)

Organizational Chart of Diagnostic Endoscopy Post-Transaction

Phyisician Cwners (38%
ownership}

Stuart
Waidstraicher, MD
5.32%

Peter Gardner, MD
5.32%

Ronald Cirillo, MD

1.54%

iffiarn Pintaura, MDy

3.35%

Neda Khaghan, MD

E6.00%

Felice Zwas, MD

6.68%

lNeiscﬂ Bonheim, MD)

3.35%

Alag Selkin, MD

6.43%

amSurg Holdings, inc,
[62% cwnership)
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Attachment F

Seller’s Name Pre-Transaction | Membership Post Transaction
Membership Interest Membership Interest
Interest Transfer
Merritt 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Stuart Waldstreicher, 14.00% -8.98% 5.32%
MD
Peter Gardner, MD 14.00% -8.68% 5.32%
Ronald Cirillo, MD 4.06% -2.52% 1.54%
William Pintauro, MD 8.81% -5.46% 3.35%
Neda Khagan, MD 15.79% -9.79% 6.00%
Felice Zwas, MD 17.60% -10.91% 6.69%
Nelson Bonheim, MD 8.81% -5.46% 3.35%
Alan Selkin, MD 16.93% -10.51% 6.43%
AmSurg 0.00% 62% 62%
Total 100%
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Attachment G

List of Key Professional, Administrative and Clinical Staff

Diagnostic Endoscopy

Stuart Waldstreicher, M.D.,, Physician Owner
Peter Gardner, M.D., Physician Owner
Ronald Cirillo, M.D., Physician Owner
William Pintauro, M.D., Physician Owner
Neda Khagan, M.D., Physician Owner

Felice Zwas, M.D., Physician Owner

Nelson Bonheim, M.D., Physician Owner
Alan Selkin, M.D., Physician Owner

AmSurg

Christopher A. Holden, President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Rob McCullough, Vice President of Development

Claire M. Gulmi, Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
Secretary and Director

Phillip A. Clendenin, Senior Vice President, Corporate Services
and Chief Compliance Officer

Billie A. Payne, R.N., Senior Vice President, Operations

39
42
45
49
50
53
58
61

62
63
64

65

66
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Curriculum Vitae

wStuar-Waldstrelehen M FrA:G: G
Blrthdate 04/07/58

Birthplace New Yark, New York
Citizenship U.5.A,

OFFICE: 778 Long Ridge Reoad Suile 181 Stamford, CT 06902,
TELEPHONE: Office (203) 967-2100.

PRACTICE HISTORY:
Gastroenterology Consultants, P.C. (1987-present)

EDUCATION AND TRAINING:

B.S. - City College of New York- School for Biomedical Education, New York, N.Y.

1676-1980.
Medical Degree - New York Medical College, Valthalla, N.Y, 1980-1982
Intern in Medicine, Overlook Hospital, Summit, N.J. 1982~1983,

Resident in Medicing, Overlook Hospital, Summit, N.3. 1983-1985.

Fellow in Gastroenteroiogy, New York Medical College, Vathatla, N.Y, 1285-1987.

CERTIFICATION:

National Board of Medical Examiners

ABIM Diplomate in Internal Medicine (103332)

ABIM Diplomate in Internat Medicine (Gastroenterology) {(103332)
State Medical License:

Connecticut 027907 2-09-87

APPOINTMENTS:

Assistant Clinical Professor or Medicing, Columbia Medica! Center, New York, NY
{199B-present)

Ciinical Instructor of Medicine, New York Medical College, Valhalla, New York {March

1890 - present).

Attending Physician, Department of Medicine, St.Joseph’s Medical Canter,
Stamford, CT {Hospital purchased by Stamford Hospital) (1887-1998)
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Attending Physician, Department of Medicine, Stamford MHospital, Stamford, CT.

Visiting Staff, Department of Medicine, Greenwich Hospltal (2007-prasent)}

mmmrsenassenesifissteinteittending P hystciandohm e Remnets-Hospitat - Beriteley Hetghtg -
(1984-1985).

Chairman of Pharmacy and Tharapeutics Committee, 5t Joseph Medical Center
{1988),

Chairman of Medical Records Committee, The Stamford Hospital (1992-2004).
Meadical Board of The Stamford Hospital {1994-1956).
Medical Board of The Tandet Center {1994-present}.

Board of Directors of The Stamford Health Network {1995-19%99).

NATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS:

American Medical Assoctation

American College of Gastroenterology, Fellow
American Gastroenterological Association
Crohm's and Colitls Foundation of America
American College of Physicians

STATE AND LOCAL ORGANIZATIONS:

Connecticut State Medical Soclety
Fairfieid County Medical Association

PRESENTATIONS:

A Long Term Follow-up of Orthodox Jewish Children Seen as Patients in a Mental
Health Center by Pred Krause, Ph.D. and Stuart Waldstreicher, Presented at
"Perspectives on Children's Mantai Health Services: Psychopathology and Social
Structures.” Biltmore Hotef, N.Y, 1978,

The Endoscopic Characteristics of Strongyloides Stercoralis Ducdenitis: A Case
Report, Presented at Gastroenterology Fellows Night, Memorial Hospital, N.Y.

The Use of ERCP in the Management of an Echinococcal Cyst: A Case Report.
Presented at Gastroenterology Feliows Night,Memorial Hospital, N.Y.

Medical Grand Rounds Presentation: Cholelithiasis, The Stamford Hospitat,
August, 1994,
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HONORS:

New York Magazine, The Best Doctors in New York (Gastroenterology), June 5%,
2000

New York Magazine, The Best Doctors in_New York {Gastroanterology) June 7, 1999

Top Doctors in New York Metro Area, 2001
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/ Peter W. Gardner, M.D., FA.C.P,,FA.C.G,

st e PER GOMNAL INFORMATIOD oo EHARIG e ssrossoan LRI B st omn o s et sisrsisaiossesesom

Birthplace New York, New York
Citizenship US.A.
OFFICE: 778 Long Ridge Road
Suite 101
\, Stamford, CT 06902
TELEPHONE: Office (203) 967-2100

ERUCATION AND TRAINING:
B.A. - University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill, NC 1971-75
M.D. - Georgetown University School of Medicine

Washington, D.C. 1975-79
Intern in Medigine, St.Vincent's Hospital and

Medical Center, New York, NY 197980
Resident in Medicine, St.Vincent's Hospital and

Medical Center, New York, NY 1980-81
Senior Resident in Medicine, $t.Vincent's Hospital

und Medical Center, New York, NY 1981-82
Feliow in Gastroenterology, University of Connecticut

Health Center, Farmington, CT 19%2-84

CERTIFICATION:

National Board of Medical Examiners (211424}

ABIM Diplomate in Ioternal Medicine {(084740)

ABIM Diplomate in Iniernal Medicine
{Gastroenterology) 084740)

APPOINTMENTS;
Assistant Ciinical Professor, Depariment of Behavioral Sciences and Community Medicine,
University of Connecticut Health Center, Farmington, CT - 1983-1984
Attending Physician, St. Vincent's Medical Center, Consulting Privileges, Bridgeport, CT
1988-1991
Associate Clinieal Professor, Department of Medicine, New York Medical
College, New York, NY 1986-1999
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. Assistant Clinical Professor of Medicine, Columbia Medical Center, ... ..

New York, NY 1968-Present
Astending Physician, Department of Medicine, Stamford Hospital,

Stamford, CT 1984-present
Visiting Staff, Departiment of Medicine, Greenwich Hospital 2006-present

Attending Physician, Department of Medicine St.Joseph's Medical Cender,
e Staitord, CT-(Hospialphchased By SEoTd Fgspi@ly - = TOgguy ggg = o
Visiting Staff, Depariment of Medicine, Greenwich Hospital 1698-2600
Chairman, Pharmacy and Therapentics Committee, The Stamford Hospital  1989-2000
Chief, Division of Gastroenterology, The Stamford Hospital, Stamford, CT  1994-2000
Chairman, Quality Improvement Comntittee, HealthNet (Formerly
Physicians Health Services), Shelton, CT 19932005

NATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS:

American Medical Association

American College of Physicians

American College of Gastroenterology
Anerican Gastroenterological Association
American Society of Gastrointestinal Endoscopy
American Liver Foundation

American Medical Informatics Association
National Colitis and leitis Foundation

Phi Beta Kappa

Phi E1a Sigma

Alpha Epsiton Delta

Sipma Xi

STATE AND LOCAL ORGANIZATIONS:

Connecticut State Medical Society, Gastroenterology Section
Fairficld County Medical Association
Stamford Medical Society

RESEARCH GRANTS;
Sigma Xi (Undergraduate Research in the Division of Neurology) “The Naturai History
of Adolescent Onset Selzures”

HONOQRS:

Top Doctors New York Metro Area, 2009, 13% Jdition,

Fairfield County 101 Top Doctors 2008. Greenwich, New Canaan and Westport Magazines:
January, 2008.

New York Metro Ares Top Doctors 2667, 11™ Rdition

Top Doctors New York Metro Area, 2001, 5% Fdition.

Best Docters in America, 2006,

How to Find the Best Doctors: New York Metro Area, 1999,

Who's Who in America Among Executives and Professionals, Who's Who, 1997-2000.
Comneeticut’s Top Doctors, Connecticut Magazine; huly, 1996,
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- PUBLICATIONS:

Gardner, ?.W.: Monograph on Lateral Epicondylitis; UNC Press, 1974.

Gardner, 2. W., Buller, T.P.: Gastric Adenocarcinoma in & Patient witly von
Recklinghausen's Disease. NY Med Quart 2:39-40, 1981,

Moﬂon R.E., Gardner, P.W., Ball, MLE.: Pancreatic Ascites: An Um:sual Comphcailon oi‘

o e EOTSH SO NS T A 405G FORT o s e et

Gardner, P.W., Whyte, T.R.: CT Cosmplications of Crohn's Disease. n CT Clinical
Application Series. Vol. 2, No. 5, 1983.

Gardner, 2.W., Tomicic, T.X., and Hajiar, I.R.: The Effect of Ethanol on Choline Influx
Across the Mucosal Border of the Rat Intestine. Abstract, American
Gastroenferological Asscciation Meeting, May 1984, New Orleans.

Hajjar, 1.1, Baker, B.R,, Renison, 12.M., Gardner, P.W,, Zirin, R., and Tomicic, T.K.: Bffect
of Ethanol on Cheline Transport in Rat Jejunum. Am § Physiol 249 (Gastrointest.
Liver Physiol, 12 G177-G183, 1985,

Faripour A, Mohit M, Gardner PW, Smith N: Cholesterol Embolism Causing Bleeding
Gastric Ulcers. Ann Chn Lab Sci. 1988 May-Jun;18(3): 260-5.

Jacobson IM, Brown RS Jr, Freifich B, Afdhal N, Kwo PY, Santoro J, Becker 3, Wakil A,
Pound I3, Godofsky B, Strauss R, Bernstein I, Flamm 8, Panly MP, Mukhopadhyay
P, Griffel LH, Brass CA, WIN-R Study Group: Peginterferon alfa-2b and weight-
based or flat-dose ribavirin in chronic hepatitis C patients: 2 randomixed tial,
Hepatology. 2007 October: 46(4): 971-81,

Jacobson IM, Gonzalez SA, Lebovics B, Min AD, Bodenheimer Jr. HC , Esposito SP,
Brown, Jr, R8,Brau N, Klion ¥M, Tobias I, Bini El, Brodsky N, Ceruili MA,
Aylaman A, Gardner PW, Geders 3M, Spivack IL, Rahmin MG, Berrnan DH,
Fhrlich J, Russo MW, Chait M, Rovner D, Ahmed F, Edlin BR: A Randomized
Trial of Pegylated Interferon Alfa-2b plus Ribavivin in the Retreatment of Patients
with Chrenic Hepatitis C Unresponsive to Prior Thesapy. Am I Gastroenterol. 2005
Nov; 100(11):2453-62.

New York PEG Intron Study Group: PEG Interferon Alfa-2B Plus Ribavirin in
Nonresponders to Interferon, and in Relapsers and Nonresponders to Combination
Therapy (Abstract). Schering Hepatitis Investigators® Network. Ortando, Florida.
Feb 8-11, 2001,

New York Presbyterian Medical Center, of al.: Daily vs. Thrice Weekly Interferon In
Combination with Ribavirin for Patients with Chronic Hepatitis C lufection Who
Are Either Naive 1o Treatment, Relapsed-Failed Prior Interferon Therapy, or
Relapsed-Failed Prior Combination Therapy {Daily Interferon Only) (Absiract).
Schering Hepatitis Investigators” Network. Orlando, Florida. Feb 8-11, 2001,

Shames, D.S., Gardner, P.W., Tucker, J.: Serum Amylase, Lipase, and the
Lipase/Amylase Ratio in the Severity of Acute Pancreatitis. Poster Presentation,
Conneeticut Chapter of the American College of Physicians, May, 1998,

T —
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Ronald J. Cirillo, M.D.

CURRICULUM VITAE

DATE OF BIRTH: April 6, 1947

CITIZENSHIP- " United States Citizen
MARITAL STATUS: Married (Kay Styc)
CHILDREN: Devin Catherine Cirillc

Date of Birth: February 2, 1985

Christian Alexander Ciilio
Date of Birth; June 17, 1988

HOME ADDRESS; 42 Rippowam Road
N New Canaan, CT 06840

HOME PHONE: {203) 8721650
BUSINESS ADDRESS: -BO Ml River Street

Suite 1106

Stamford, CT 06902
BUSINESS PHONE; ‘ . {203) 348-5818
EDUCATION: HIGH SCHOOL

Brooklyn Technical High Schoot
Brookiyn, New York
Date of Graduation - 1964

COLLEGE

St John's University
Jamaica, New York

Dzte of Graduation - 1958
Degree; B.A.

Elected 1o Who's Who Among Students in

American Colleges and Universities - 1957

Fected to Presidency of 2i Alpha Sigina Fraternity - 1068
EDUCATION:

" Brookiyn Collsge (GO Y.
Brooklyn, New York
Date of Graduation - 1572
Dagree: M.5.

Appointed to Education Honor Society
Brooklyss College (C,C.N.Y,} i
BB N Y a7
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EMPLOYMENT New York City Board of Education
School Guidance Gounselor
1868 - 1970

New York City Board of Education

Bureau of Child Guidance

e, Director.of Guidance Services forthes:
ally Disturbed 1970 - 1974

MEDICAL SCHOOL Le Universidad Autonoma de Guadalzjara
Guadatajara, Mexico
Date of Graduation - December 1978
Degree: Doctor of Medicine and Surgery

POST GRADUATE

TRAINING: Internado Program
Lutheran Medica! Center
Brookiyr, New York
Date of Completion - 1979

Fifth Pathway Program
Downstate Medical Center
Brooklyn, New York

Date of Completion - 1880

Braoklyn Breast Cancer Densonstration Network
Bownstate Medical Center

Lutheran Medical Center e

Brooklyn, New York

Cate of Completion - 1980

Lutheran Medical Center s
Brooklyn, New York
Categorical Intern in Medicine 1980 - 1981

Lutherah Medical Center
Brookiyn, New York
Resident in Internal Medicine 1981 - 1883

Univergity of Medicine and Denfistry of

New Jersey

Rufgers Medical Schoo! at Camden .
Cooper HospitaliUniversity Medical Genter (it
Camden, New Jersey

Fellowship in Gastroenterology

1983 - 1985

- EXPERIENCE: Dufifig iy fellowship | have had extensive experience in the diagrosis of
gastrointestinal and related medical disorders. | have developed compelency in:

1. Upper endoscepy and related procedures including:

{iy Variceal sclerosis

{iH) Polypectomy (from storach to duocdenum}
: Ditation, oLgastic.outiolinsluding. gastie.stapling-outlotobstructisss=:

(i}
;;mm:»;mﬂ-“m&-‘”ﬂ““(ﬁﬁﬁf}“ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬂﬁfgﬂon}

(iv} Percutaneaus endoscaopic gasirostomy and jejunostomy
2, Colenoscopy and refated procedures including;
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{iy Paolypectomy
. Sigmeidoscopy
. ERCP and papilictomy and stent placement
. Esophageal manomeiry
. Ppeumatic dilatation of esophagus
. Bougienage

LICENSING AND

CERTIFICATIONS: . New York Cily and State Teachers License -~ 1968

. New York Cily and Slate Guidance Counselors Licwase 1870

E.CF.MG, - July 1979 #207-538-1

. Fifth Pathway Program Diploma ~ 1980

Federal Licensing Exam December, 1981 #000030221

. New York State License - 1981 #149501 (DEA #AC1510068)

. Slate of Florida License - 1982 #41193

. Advanced Cardiac Life Bupport  Certification - 1984, 1988, 19868

State of New Jersey License - 1884 #43828 (DEA $#AC2508437,

CHS HDIGI8S)

10.8tate of Connecticut - 1885#26298 (DEA #AC2598437 - CER
#13308)

R RN R R I NEY LR

SOCIETY AFFILIATIONS: . American College of Physiciahs 1980 - 1985
. President House Staff Lutheran Medical Center 1682
. American Gastroenterology Association 1983 - 1985

. American College of Gastroenterclogy 1983 - 1985,

oo oo

1890 - present
. The Stamford Medical Society 1985 - present
. The Fairfleld County Medical Association 1985 -

oy en

present
. The Connecticuf State Medical Society 1985 - present
. American Medical Association Physician Recognition

o0 =~

Award 1988 .
8. American Medical Association 1890 - present

STAFF APPOINTMENTS: 1. The Stamford Hospital, Stamford,
Connecticut, The Department of Medicine
Division of Gastroenterology, 1965 - pregent

2. Instructor in Clinical Medicine College of Physicians &
Surgeons
Columbia University 1998 - present

COMMITTEES: 1. Saint Joseph Medical Center Utllization Review
Committes 1886, 1988

2, 'Board of Directors, St. Joseph Medical Center”
Physicians IPA
Alliance for Health 1947 - 1998

3. St Joseph Medical Center Disaster Commiiiee 1987

3. .5t Joseph Medical Center Critioal Care Unit

COMAnes 1987

4. 8t Joseph Medicat Centef Family Pre<tice Teaching
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PRIVATE PRAGTICE:

PUBLICATIONS:

Erdoscopy

REFERENCES:

Certificete 1987 - present

5. St Joseph Medica! Center The Medical Education
Health Sciences
Library Commiftes - 1889

8. The Stamford Hospital Pharmacy and Therapsutic
Commitiee 1986 - present

8. The Stamforg Hospitat Ingtitutional Review Committee

1986 - 1964

Spedatizing in Gaslroenteralogy and Hepatolagy
80 Milf River Street

Suite 1100

Starnford, Connecticut 06902

{203) 348-5818

Endescopic Clostire of a Gastropulrmenary Fistula
by Injection with Gax Collagen. J. Sorckin, R. Ciriflo,
Absiracts submitted to A/SIGIE Gasirointestinal

Vol. 31, No. 2, 1985

Awsiting Publication - Lead Arlicie

Treatment of @ Malignant Esephagegastropulmonary
Fistula with Collagan implant (GAX}. R. Cirille, J, Sorkin,
1985

Gordon D. Benson, M.,

Chief, Division of Gastroenterology and Liver Diseases
Professor of Medicine

University of Medicine and Dentistry of New Jersey
Rutgers Medical School at Camden

{UMDNJ - Rutgers Medical Schoo!)

Cooper HospilaliUniversity Medical Center

One Cooper Plaza

Camden, NJ 08103

Stephen M. Levine, M.

Head, Section of Gastreenierciogy

Clinical Professorof Medicine -~ B

University of Medicine and Dentistry of New Jerse
Rutgers Medical School at Camden

(UMDNJ - Rutgers Medical School}

Cooper Hospital/University Medical Center
Camden, N.J 08103
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Neda Khaghan MLD.
500 West Prtiam Aveaue Suite 100
Greenwich, CT 06830
203-863-2900

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Gastroenterologist - The Center for Gastrointestinal Medicine of Fairfield and Westchester

8/1/01 - Present

ERUCATION

8¢, Luke’s/Roosevell Hospital, Columbia College of Physicians & Surgeans
F/1/98- 7/31/200%
Gastreenterology Fellowship
Hepatology and Transplant Medicine Training Mount Sinai Hospital
Honors: Howard J. Eddy Scholarship Award

New York Society Gastrointestinal Endoscopy Janvary 2006

Mount Sinai Hospital New York, NY
195 - 6/30/96 Internship, Internal Medicine
1796 -~ 6/30/98 Residercy, Interan]l Medicine
Appointments:  Department of Medicine

Tenching Assistant, 7/1/96-present

Mount Sinai School of Medicine New Yorl,, NY
61791 — 5/19/9% Degree: M. 5/19/95
Honors: Hyman Scholar  6/1/93- 6/1/94
New York University New York, NY
6/1/87 ~ /1191 Degree: Bachelor of Artz June 1991
Major; Biology Minor: Matherratics
Honors: Dean’s List 6/1/88- 6/1/90

Dean's Circle 6/1/90-6/1/81

Frustees’ Scholar 6/1/87-6/1/91

Lotnen Scholar 6/1/87-6/1/91

HOSPITAL APPOINTMENTS

8/1/01 - Present Assistant Attending

Greenwich Hospital, Greenwicl:, CT
06/03/04 - Present  Clinloal Assistant Professor

Mew York Medical College

LICENSURE

Board Certified iy Gastroenterology 11/01

New York State Medical License No. 203379, 71796
s s L) iplOMRASG-R-Enlornal- Medicite Mo 182347 1598

Connecticut State Medical License No. 939573 6/1/01
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SOCIETY MEMBERSHIPS
Awerican Soctety for Gastrointestinal Bndoscepy  7/1/98-present
American Gastrointestinal Society  7/1/98-present

157 Jonathan Drive
Stanford, T 06903

Birthdate: June 28, 1969

RESEARCH AND PUBLICATIONS

Jonathan D, Marmur, MD, Piera A. Merfini, MD, Samin K. Sharms, MD, FACC, Neda Khaghan, MD,
Sabino R. Toree, MD, Dovglas H. Israel, MDD, Diege Ardissine, MD, John A. Ambrose, MD, FACC.
“Thrambin Generation in Human Coronary Arteries Foliowing Percuiancons Transfuminal Balisen
Angioplasty.” J Am Coll Cardiology. 1994 Nov 15; 24(6):1484.9]. .

Health Related Quality of Life in patients Treated with Cyclosposing for Severe Ulcerative Colitis: A
Comparison Between Patients With and Without Colectomy. Abstract presented at the Digestive Discase
Week May 1997. In collaberation with Anthony Weiss, MDD, Mount Sinai Hespital, Department of
Gasgtroenterolopy.

Nedz Khaghan, MD, Peter R. Holt, MD. “Peptic Disease in Elderly Patients.” Canadian Jouraal of
Gastroeaterology. 2000 Dec; 14 (113:922-928.
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FELICE R, ZWAS, M. D.
Curricuum Vitae

Home Address

389 Woodbine Road 300 W. Putnam Ave
Stamford, CT 06903 Greenwich, CT 06830
203y 461-8171 : (203) 863-2900

Date of Birth Place of Birth

July 30, 1955 Brooklyn, NY
Education

1976 B.A. Barnard Colege, Colwmbia University New York, NY
1980 M.D.  Columbia College of Physicians & Surgeons New York, NY

Postdoctoral Training

1980-1981  Intern in Medicine, Columbia Presbyterian Hospital, New York, NY

1681-1983  Resident in Medicine, Columbia Presbyterian Hospifal, New York, NY

1683-1984  Clinical Fellowship, Gastroenterology, Beth Isracl Hospital, Boston, MA.
1984-1985  Research Fellowship, Gastroenterology, Beth lerael Hospital, Boston, MA v

Academic Appointments

1985-1988  Instructor in Medicine, State Undversity of New York, Downstate Medical Center,
Brooklyn, NY

1993-1996  Clinical Instructor, Yale University School of Medicine, New Haven, CT

19%6- Asgistant Clinical Professor, Yale University School of Medicine,
New Haven, CT

Hospital Appointments

1985-1588  Assistant Attending Physician, Department of Internal Medicine,
The Long Island College, Brooklyn, NY

1988- Assistant Attending Physician, Department of Internal Medicine, Greenwich
Hospital, Greenwich, CT S ,
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Felice R, Zwas, M.D.
Page 2

Professional Appointinests

1985-1988 Staff Gastroenterologist, The Long Island College Hospital, Brooklyn, NY

1985-1988 Medical Director, Alcoholic Detoxification Center, The Long Island
College Hospital, Brooklyn, NY

1992-1994 Member of Patient Care Committes, The American Coilege of
Gastroenterology

1692-1994 Member Professional Advisory Beard, Critical Care of America

1993- Medical Advisor, Iread & Roses AIDS Hospice

1994-1996 Member of Continning Medical Education Advisory Committee, Clinical

Communications, Inc.

Licensure and Certification

1980 National Boazd of Medical Examiners

1983 Americar Board of Internal Medicine

1984 Massachusetts License Registration #33718

1985 New York License Registration #162231-1

1986 American Board of Internal Medicine,Gastroenierology

1988 State of Connectiout License Req. #028878 (expiration: 7-31-06)

Awards and Honors

1973-1976 DBean’s List, Barmard College
1976 Magna Com Lande at Barnard College
PhLi Beta Kappa
1980 Alpaha Omega Alpha
American Women’s Medical Association Award
1993 Who's Who in Conmesticut
1994 Who’s Who in the Bast
1995 Whe’s Who in the World
2001 Life Member National Repistry of Who's Who

Scientific Societies

1083 B American Gasiroenterclogical Association
1985 Brooklyn Gastroenterology Association
1986 American College of Gastroenterology (Feilow)
1987 American Sociely of Gastroenterology
1987 American Public Health Association
1983 Connecticut State Medical Society
1956 g &V O VIEE T e T (2 (0) W o2 W E MV o R O T R TR
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Felice R. Zwas, M.D.
Page 3

Teaching Activities

DR TORR il Chirg Comititises) Gredrvwich Hospital ™

Jan 1989 Library Commiitee, Greenwich Hospital

Jan 1990 Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee, Greenwich Hospital
Jan 1992 Residency Fvaluation Commitiee, Greenwich Hogpital

Yan 1592~ Residency Selection Comunittee, Greenwich Hospital

Maijor Research Interests

Scanning electron microscopy in the diagnosis of dysplasia in Barrett’s epitheliom
Gastrointestinal problems in women
Gastrointestinal problems in AIDS patients

Invited Lectures

“Gastrointestinal and Hepatobiliary Manifestation of
HIV.” AIDS: Controversial Trends and Treatment, December 1, 1993,

“PERSPECTIVE IN AIDS”, Program Developer, Greenwich Hospital, December 2, 1993
“Hepatitis A, B, & €7, International Hepatitis Foundation, June 21, 1995,

“Barret’s Metaplasia as a Complication of GERD”, American College of Gastroenterology 1995
Regional Postgraduate Course, September 1995,
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FELICE R, ZWAS, M.D.
BIBLIOGRAPHY

- Lwas E, Shields HM, Doos. W, .Antonioli D, Geldman 4, Spechier.S:Scanning: Bleetron- o o« «
“Microscopy of Barrett’s Esephagus and ifs Correlation with Liglt Microscopy and
Mucin Stains, (Abstract) Gastroenierology 88:1644, 1985,

Zwas T, Shields HM, Doos W, Antenioli D, Goldman H, Ransil B, Spechler
- 8 Scanning Electron Microscopy of Barrett's Esophagus and is Correlation with Light
Microscopy and Mucin Stains. Gastroenlerology 90:1932--1841, 1986,

Zwas ¥, Lyon DT, Rosen DR: Clinical Significance of Fecal Occult Blood Loss in the
the Aleobolic, (Abstract) Am J Gastro 82:949, 1987,

Shields HM, Zwas F, Antonioli ), Doos W, Kim 8, Spechler 8: Detection of Unigue
Surface Cell. Gastroenterology 56:568, 1989. Gastroenterclogy 96:568, 1989,

Zwas F, Lyon DT: Endomeiriosis: An Important Condition in Clinical
Gastroenterblogy. Digestive Disease and Sciences 36:353-364,1991.

Zwas F, Book Review: Kotler D, ed, Gastrointestinal and Nutritionzl Manisfestations of
the Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome. Gastraenterology 02:737, 1992,

Worner TV, Zefler B, Schwarz H, Zwas F, Lyon DT: Acupuncture Fails to Improve
TreatmentOutcome in Aleoholics. Drug and Aleoko? Dependence 30:169-173,1992,

Cimis R, Gueft B, Rothstein R, Zaiman [, Zwas F: Editor: Photographic Case Studies
in Gastroenterology, Diagnostic Tests for the Practioner, August 1992,

Habif T, Zwas F: Bditor: Photographic Case Studies in General Medicine, Diagnostic
tests for the Practioner, November 1992,

Shiclds HM, Zwas F, Antonioli D, Doos W, Kim 8, Spechler §:Detection by Scaming
Electron Microscopy of a Distinctive Esophageal Surface Cell at the Junction of the
Squamous and Barrelt’s Epithelium, Digestive Diséase and Sciences 38:97-108, 1993,

Zwas I; Photographic Case Studies in Gastrointestinal Disease, Diagnostic Tests for the
Practioner, December 1993,

Coffey D, Florakis G, Habif T, Jenkyn L, Neeson F, Vredenburgh I, Zaiman H, Zwas 7
Photogrephic Case Studies in BEmergency Medicine, Diagnostic Tests for the Practioner,
. December 1993, o . S

Zwas ¥, Bonheim N, Berken C, Gray 5: Importance of lleoscopy During Colonoscopy.
Gastrointestinal Endoscopy 40:89-91, 1994.

Boch JA, Antoniole ID, Tyier JS, Zwas F, Shields HM: Cytokeratin Expression in
Barcett's Epithelinm, (Abstract) Gastroenterolopy 106:1018,1994
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Cirilio N, Zwas F: Ursodeoxycholic Acid in the Treatment of Cholestatic Liver Discase. Am ¥ Gastro
89:1447-52, 1904,

Zwas F, Bonheim N, Berken C, Gray $:Diagnostic Yield of Routine heal Intubation. (Abstract) Am J
Gastre 89:1684, 1994,

El-Sevag H, Zwas F, Cirillo N: Colonic Mucosal Abtiormalities Associated with Bowe! Preparations,
(Abstract) Gastrointestinal Eadoscopy 41:319, April 1995,

Kamradt I, Zwas F, Bisen R [eoscopy in the Evalvation of Diarrhea in Patients with BIV Infection.
(Abstract) Gastroenterofogy 108:A19, April 1995, ' ‘

Shields HM, Sawhney PA, Zwas ¥, Boch JA, Kim §, Goran D, Antoniclo I): Scamming Electron
Microscopy.of the Human Esophagus:Application to Barrett’s Esophagus, 4 Precancerous Lesion.
Microscopy Research and Technique, 31:248--256, Fune 1995,

Mickley D, Greenfeld D, Quinlan D, Roloff B, Zwas T1 Abnormal Liver Enzyimes in Guipatients
with Eating Disorders. Sumitted and Accepied. The International Joumnal Of Bating Disorders.
July 1995.

Seraly M, Vredenbargh I, Zwas F: bnmunocompromised Patients, A Case Study Approach: Pearls and
Pitfatls, Volume 1, August 1995,

Zwas ¥, Bonheim N, Berken C, Gray S: Diagnostic Yield of Routine lleoscopy. Am J. Gastro 90:1441-
1443, September 1995,

Cimis R, Santos M, Gordon §, Gueft B, Rothstein R, Zaiman Zwas F: Color Atlas of Infectious Disease.
Volume 1. October 1995,

Seraly M, Vredenburgh J, Skowron G, Zwas F: Immunccompromised Patfents, A Case Study
Approach. Pearls and Pitfalls. Volume 2, December 1993,

Zwas F, Lyon DT: Oceult Bleeding in the Alcoholic. Am J Gastre 91:551—353, March 1998,

Bl-Serag H, Zwas F, Ciriile N, Eisen R: Fulminant Herpes Colitls in a Patient with Crelin’s Disease.
Jovrnat of Clinical Gastroenterology 22:220--233, April 1996.

Wotth L, Vredenburgh J, Zwas F, Seraly M, Handa §:; Fmmunocompromised Patients, A Case
Study Approach. Pearis and Pitfalls. Vehime 3, April 1996.

Zwas F, Cirillo N, Bi-Serag H, Eisen R: Colonic Mucosal Abnormalities Associated with Oral Phosphate
Solution. Gastrointestinal Endescopy, 43:463—466, May 1996,

- Cirilta N, Zwas F, Lée W, Eisen R: Utility of Liver Biopsy with Serologically Negative Chronic
Transaminase Blevations. (Absiract) Submitted and Accepted. American College of
Gastroeaterology. July 1996

El-Serag I, Zwas F, Bonheim N, Clrilla N, Appel Gt The Renal and Urologic Complications of
inflammatory Bowel Disease. Submitied and Accepted, Inflammatory Bowel Disease, November 1996,
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Boch J, Shietds H, Antonioli I3, Zwas ¥, Sawhney R, Trier J: Distribution of Cylokeratin
Markers in Barrett’s Specialized Columnar Epithelium. Gastroenterology 112:760-765, March
1997,

was.F, Ciellio N, Cihak W, Altmeyer, Vi: Metastatic Breast Cancer. Mimicking Colonic.Crobnls ... .
Disease. (Abstract) The Aherican Joumal of Gastroenterofogy, Tuly 1997.

Cirillo N, Zwas F: Clinical Usefulness of CCK Stimulated Gallbiadder Bjection Fraction
(CCK-EF) Determination in Patients with Clroaic Biliary Colic. (Absiract} The American
Journal of Gastroenterology. July 1997,

Colucci 8, Cirillo N, Zwas F: A Retrospective Study of Heocecal Valve Adenocarcinomas,
(Abstract) The American Journal of Gastroenterology 94:2669, September 1999.

Hon A, Zwasg F: Clinical Vignette: ECG Changes in Esophageal Disease. (Abstract} The
American Journal of Gastreenterology 94:2711, September 1999,

Zwas F, Brown JH, Berken C, Bonheim N: Comparison of Surveillance Colonoscopy in Patients
with and without a Family History of Colon Cancer or Polyps. {Abstract) The American College
of Gastroenterology 493:2555, September 2000,

Horne NS, Zwas F, Ciriflo N, Partish A: A Retiospective Analysis of Endoscopic Treatment in
Patients with Symptomatic Schatzki’s Rings. (Abstract) The American Journai of
Gastroenterology 96:515, Seplember 2001,

Cirillo N, Zwas P, Horne NS: Subtle Schatzki’s Rings Identified Only During Retreflexion: A
Novel Approach to Diagnosis and Treatment in Patients with Chronic Dysphagia. {Abstract)
The American Journal of Gastroenterology 96:58, September 2001.

Shields, HM, Rosenberg 87, Zwas F, Ransil BY, Lembo AJ, Odze R: Prospective Evaluation of
Multilayered Epithelium in Barrett’s Bsophagus. The American Journal of Gastroenteroiogy
96:3268, December 2001,

Home N, Cirillo, N, Zwas, F: Evaluation of the Safety and Efficacy of Needle Knife
Electrocautery Used in the Treatment of Symptomatic Schatzki Rings. (Abstract) The American
College of Gastroenterology 253:503, October 2002,

Zwag F, Cirillo N, Tran D: A New Therapeutic Modalify for Symptomatic Schaizki Rings:
-Disrupting the Ring Using Only the Retroflexed Upper Endoscope.- (Abstract) The American -
Colloge of Gastroenterology 99:59, October 20604,
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Nelson A. Borheim, M.D.

Curricuium Vitas

Home Address. Office Address

:Raitis Toatis v e 00 West PuthamsAvenue s
Old Greenwich, CT 06870 Greenwich, CT 06830

203.863-2900

Date of Birth Place of Birth
August 30, 1942 Jackson Heights, NY
Education
1963 B.A. Lafayette College, Easton Pennsylvania
1665 MLS. Adelphi University, Garden City, Long Island, New York
1970 M.D. Chicago Medical School, Chicago, lllinois

Postdoctural Training

1970-1971 Tntern in Medicine, The Bronx Municipal Hospital Center,
Albert Einstein College of Medicine, Bronz, New York

1971-1972 Resident in Medicine, The Bronx Municipal Hospital Center,
Albert Binstein College of Medicine, Brony, New York

1972-1973 Chief Resident in Medicine (Assistant Instructor), The Bronx
Municipal Hospital Center, Albert Einstein College of Medicine,
Bronx, New York

1973-1975 Fellow in Medicine (Gastroenterology) , Corneli Medical School,

New York Hospital, New York, NY (Assistant Plysician)

Academic Appointments

1978~ Assistant Clinical Professor, Yale University School
of Medicine, New Haven, Cormecticut

Hospital Appointments

1975- Attending Physician, Greenwichi Hospital, Greenwich, Connecticut
FOT6 seesSaedindeadrPepprimentofGastsenterolegy &

Greenwich Hospital
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Nelson A. Bonheim, M.D.
Page Z

1971
1971
1973
1975
1975

National Board of Medical Examiners

New York License Registration #110622-1

American Board of Internal Medicine

State of Connecticut License Reg #17080 (expiration: §-31-06)
American Board of Intemal Medicine, Gastzoenterology

Awards and Honors

1669

1975

1975-19%0

1988

19901992

1998-

Alpha Omega Honor Society

Crohn’s & Colitis Foundation of America, Inc. Fairfield/Westchester
Chapter, Co-Founder

Crohn’s & Colitis Foundation of America, Inc, Fairfield/Westchester
Chapter, Seientific Advisor for Chapter Medical Advisory Comumitice

Crobn’s & Colitis Foundation of America, fnc. Fairfield/Westchester
Chapter, Humantarian of the Year Award

Crohns & Colitis Foundation of America, Inc. Fairfield/Westchester
Chapter, Chairman of the Board

Crohn’s & Colitis Foundation of America, Inc. Fairfield/Westchester
Chapter, Co-President

Scientific & Professional Societies

1875
1975
1975-
1975~
1976-
1976-
1977-
1979-
1985

Connecticut State Medical Socicty

Fairfield County Medical Society

American Medical Association

American College of Physicians

American College of Gastroenterology (Fellow)

American Society for Gastrointestinal Endoscopy
American Gastroenterological Association

American College of Physicians (Fellow)

Arnerican Society for Laser Medicine and Surgery (Fellow)
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BIBLIOGRAPHY
Originat Articles
Nelson A, Bosheim, M.D.

" Parshemiurus Apeltae New Species (Trematoda: Hemiuridac) From Fhe Four .
Stickleback Apelies Quadracus
By: Nelson A. Borheim Thesis, 31 pages, 1965,

A Sarvey of the Esophagus of the Mongollan Gerbil
By: Nelson A. Bonheim, B.S, and Bdward W. Milhouse, I, Ph.D. The
Chicago Medical School Quarterly, Vol. 26, no. 2 1-2, 6 pages, 1970,

Lactic Acidests in Diabetic Patients

By: Milford Fulop M.D., Henry 1. Hoberman, Fh.D., Joel H. Rascoff, M.D., Nelson A.
Bonheim, M.D., Neil P. Dreyer, M1, and Hyman Tannenbaurs, M.D. Archives of Internal
Medicine, Volume 136, 13 pages. 1976.

Hyposmolar Coma Complicating Intrearterial Perfusion of Vasopressin to Control Varfeeal
Bleeding

By: Nelson A. Bonheim, M.D., F.A.C.G., Raymond Anton, M.D, Submifted for publication to
The American Journal of Gastroenterology. Fuly 1977,

Endoscopic Therapy of Gastrointestinal Hemangiomas and Angiodysplasia
By: Nelson A. Bonheim, M.D.,, F.A.C.G. The Ametican Journal of Gastroenterology, Volume 80,

Number 9, page 727. September 1985,

Hemolvtic Anemia Associated with the Use of Omeprazole
By: James V. Joy, M.D,, David R. Marks, M.D., and Nelson A. Bonheim, M.D,, FACP,
American Journal of Gastroenterology, Volume 86, Number 2, page 217, February 1991,

Importance of Heoseopy During Colonoscony
By: Felice Zwas, M.I>. Netson Bonheim, M.D., Clifford Berken, M.D,, and Stephen Gray, M.D.

Gastrointestinal Endoscopy, Volume 40, Number 1:89-91. Janvary/February 1994,

Diagnostic Yield of Routine Ileal Intubation
By: Felice Zwas, M.D., Nelson Bonheim, M.D,, Ciifford Berken, M.D.and Stephen Gray, M.D.

Abstract, The American Jouraal of Gastroenterclogy, Yolume $9:1684, 1994,

Exploration of the Abdomen During Qpen and Laparoscopic Chelecystectomy: Incidence of
Incidentai Pathology By: Henry Grant, MLD,, Nelson Bonheim, M.D., Steve DeNigras, M1,
and Neil Yeston, M.ID. Submitted. Journal of Laparoendoscopy Surgery. April 1895,

Diagnostic Yield of Routine Jieal Intubation
By: Felice Zwas, M.D., Nelson Bonheim, M.D., Clifford Berken, M.D. and Stephen Gray, M.D.
The American Journal of Gastroenterology, Volume 80:1441-1443, Septomber 1995,
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Alan Edward Sellin, M.D.

Office Address:

Alan E. Selkin, M.I3,

Greenwich,

Personal:

Education:

Posigradnate Medical
Education:

Board Certification:

Licensure:

Professional Societies:

Date of Birth: August 31, 965

Place of Birth: New York, New York
Citizenship: United States of America
Social Security Number: 111-48-333¢

Great Neck South High Schoo! - 1980-1983

The City College of New York - School of
Biomedical Education

| (7"3) C6(~2237

56 Lafayette Place

CT 06830

Degree: Bachelor of Science - Tune, 1988

Honors: Cum Laude, Dean's List

New York Medical College

Degree: Doctor of Medicine - June, 1990

The University of Connecticut Internal Medicine
Residency Training Program

Inters and Resident - July, 1990 to June, 1993

The University of Connecticut Gastroerterology
Fellowship Program
GI Feltow - Yuly, 1993 to Fune, 1995

Nationsl Board of Medical Examiners
Diplomate Parts I, 11, and IIf - #384181
Araerican Board of Intemal Medicine
Board Certified - #147947
GY Subspeciaity Boards
Board Certified - #147947

State of Connecticut - #032784
State of INew York - #187338

American Gastroenterclogical Assgciation
American College of Gastroenterology
American Medical Association

American Cellege of Physicians

?ubi:éat:ons:
(Presented May 16, 1995,
Digestive Disease Week, San Diepo, CA)

"Slimu!atéd Ga??bladder Contraction .for. Treatment

of Intraperitoneat Bile Leaks"
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Christopher A. Holden
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

Chrstopher A. Holden joined AmSurg in October 2007 as President, Chief Executive
Officer and Director. Mr. Holden is a healthcare industry veteran of more than 21 years,
engaged during most of his career directly in multi-facility and multi-market healthcare
management. Prior to joining AmSurg, Mr. Holden served as Senior Vice President and
a Division President of Triad Hospitals, Inc., of which Mr. Holden was a founding team
member and officer in May 1999. From August 1994 until May 1999, Mr. Holden held
several officer positions with Columbia/HCA Healthcare Corporation. Mr. Holden
received his Bachelor of Science degree in Health Policy and Administration from The
University of North Carolina and his Juris Doctorate and Masters in Healthcare
Administration degrees from Washington University in St. Louis,
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Robert McCullough
Vice President of Development

Robert McCullough joined AmSurg in July 2001 as Vice President, Development. Rob
has held various management positions in acquisitions and partnership development of 15
years.

Page 63 of 101



Claire M. Gulmi
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Director

Claire M. Gulmi joined AmSurg in September 1994 as Vice President and Chief

Financial Officer. Ms. Gulmi became Senior Vice President in March 1997, Secretary in
December 1997, a Director in May 2004 and Executive Vice President in February 2006.
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Phillip A. Clendenin
Senior Vice President, Corporate Services and Chief Compliance Officer

Phillip A. Clendenin joined AmSurg in March 2009 as Senior Vice President, Corporate
Services. Mr. Clendenin has served in various positions in health care for more than two
decades. Prior to joining AmSurg, he held management positions with Community
Health Systems, Triad Hospitals, HCA and National Medical Enterprises. Clendenin
received his B.S. in business administration from the University of Tennessee at Martin,
and holds a master’s degree in health administration from Washington University School
of Medicine.
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Biilie A. Payne, R.N.
Senior Vice President, Operations

Billie A. Payne joined AmSurg in 1995 as a Director of Operations. She came to the
company after managing a large cardiology practice for more than a decade. Since
joining the company, she has served in several functions in Operations including Vice
President of one of the company’s major divisions. She was named Senior Vice President
of Operations in 2007.
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Attachment H

STATE OF CONNECTICUT

Department of Public Health

LICENSE

License No. 0301

Outpatient Surgical Facility

In accordance with the provisions of the General Statates of Connecticut Section 19a-493:

Diagnostic Endoscopy, LEC of Stamford, CT, dfb/a Diagnostic Endoscopy, LLCis hereby licensed to
maintain and operate an Gutpatient Surgical Facility.

Diagnostic Endoscopy, LLC is located at 778 Long Ridge Road, Starsford, CT 06902
This license expires March 31, 2013 and may be revoked for cause at any time.

Dated at Hartford, Connectiout, Aprit 1, 2011. RENEWAL.

Waiver Sec. 19-13-D56 (B)(DX(1) exp: nfa

© Waiver Sec. 19-13-D36 (b)(D)(5) exp: nfa
Waiver Sec. 19-13-1356 (b}(E)4) exp: n/a
Waiver Sec. 19-13-D56 (b)(E)(8) exp: n/a
Walver Sec. 19-13-D56 (b)(F)(1} exp: n/a
Waiver Sec. 19-13-D56 (b)(F)(2)} exp: n/a
Waiver Sec, 19-13-D356 (b)}(G)(1) exp:nfa
Waiver Sec. 19-13-D56 (B)(D)(1)(c) exp: n/a

2%4 Shod e
Jewsl Mullén, MD, MPH, MPA
Commigsioner
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Attachment I
Financial Attachmment I
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Financial Statements: Diagnostic Endoscopy

3:36 PM

o4izsM2
Cash Basls

Ordinary InpomelBxpenst
Ingome

4040 - Rent tncome

4011 - Etattefe PM

AR36 » Fao Refands

4040+ Fers
4070 - Patlent Fees « Pra 8/4/08
4030 - Patient Fene - Post 8MI68

Tolat 4040 - Faey
Total income

Gross Profit

Expense

4026 » Advertising

6040 - Housekeeping

8031 » shredding

6035 » Laundry & Linen

6050 - Professional Fenn
6052 + Avcounting
G056 - Consuiling
6050 + Legal Fees
6062 - Pharmaalst
€063 - office personel
6050 - Professfonat Fees - Other

‘Total 6060 - Professipnal Fees

BOBO « IRsuUrance
6682 « Lisbllity Insurance
6083 « Blaubiity Insurance
BOB4 + Malpractice Inswatice
085 - Work Comp
5408 - health Insurance
6087 + Dental
4080 - Insusanes ~ Othor

Total 6080 « Insurance

5116 - Maintonance Agresments

917 - Clakms Processing

$120 + Bank & ADF Fees

5140 » Eontributions

§150 « Beprecistion Expense

8160 - Dues and Subscrptions

8170 - Bquljment Rentwl

628D - Interest Expense
4201 - Censtruction f.oan Interest
5208 - Webster 2010 Construstion Losn
B2OG « Webster 2010 Equipment Loan
8207 + Clitford Berken

Total 6200 » Interest Expense

6230 - Licenses and Permits
65240 » Mistellaneous
6250 - Pastago anid Dellvery
€300 + Repairs
§310 - Building Repalrs
5320  Comptrter Repalrs
£330 + Equipment Repuirs

Total 5300 - Repairs

6240 - Telaphune
341« Cable
8342 « EFax
343 < 1T & Soflware
8350 » Travel & Ent
6360 « Entertalumant
6378 - Mials
638Y « Fravel
63858 v Travel & End « Other

Tolol 8350+ Trave! & Ent

6460 + Biiltties.
8430 » Electric

Total 6490 - Utliitles

6626 + BloMedlcal Fees

66317 + Oxygen

8540 Rent

6550 + Oiflce Supplles

GESE - Payroll « Paychex

630 « Professlons Development
BES0 - Reference Materials

B6500 « R Hation £

Diaghostic Endoscopy, L.L.C.
Profit & Loss
January 2009 through December 2011

Jan - Dec 0% Jun -+ Dec 10 dan - Dec $1 TOTAL

42,146.28 Q.00 Q.00 42,146.28

863802 a.00 0.90 8638.02

650,60 0.60 2.00 550.00
19,846.59 3027.89 720.57 28.566.45
4,582, 70347 4,907,6%1,87 5,468,060.37 14,858,375.81

4,802,640.06 4,940,839.46 5,468,751.34 14,981,870.76

4,653,804,26 4,910,635.46 5.468,781.34 5,032,305.056

4,653,684.26 491062946 6.468,781.34 15,033,365,05

0,00 587.08 6,60 587.05

24,688.71 28,012.20 31,190.30 B5,661.21

1,448,0% 1,627,530 162847 4,705.78

£0,285.52 50,838.88 58,716.83 167.840,.23
17.42500 600,60 8.800.60 38,625.00
252,080.08 23041098 5142448 743,804,586
60,528,50 83,864,234 16,755,60 101,145.42
1,778.00 444800 3,185.00 ?7.421.00
24,427.50 12,250.00 3,750.08 20,427.50
148009 2B,245,93 1282624 42,861.17

347,738.08 31681915 347 661.4% 982,106,684
18,980,34 7,656.68 14,[12.60 41,848,62
73362 8,921.77 10,025.40 49,680,789
21,133.78 4,063.23 22,808,258 58,185,26
2,088,086 27.869.84 3,775,62 34,727,584
64, 141.24 64850.83 111,272,68 220,084,76
7.516.36 4,863,86 11,400.87 2391069
448,36 060 22,88 42571

167,041.72 118,349.81 173,452.714 366,244.27

831600 24,261,566 1,910,600 34,477.55

1,848,850 1,784.45 3,043,860 6,346,56

12,475.29 31.443.00 11,295,608 35,218.58

400.00 160,00 22508 T25.00

20,015.92 39,995.00 49,110,986 108,126.88

7,378.99 76089 20,715.62 860872

7248 .00 000 7548
1287248 13,738,858 10,485.44 37,0784
2.00 20,808.56 4912702 68,930.58
0,00 1.974.12 6,855.3% B,B20.43
141207 1,885.62 766.13 3,083.82

14,286,03 38,207,69 £7,258.90 119,751,684

570,00 -07.60 75,00 1/348.00

G.00 1,216.82 0,00 1,216.32

14.013.27 12,801,23 10,957.20 34,2770
2063374 781428 21,649,561 A45,007.63
19,438.68 .00 O.00 19,438.58
2,368.80 18,458.75 16,261.80 36,079.45

£42,431.22 2137303 25,611.61 100,616.86

5,851,416 439608 4,765.85 451278

1,260.58 1,733.87 1,786,16 4,780.81

2.091,60 2,886,60 244680 7,396.90

6,187.52 53,056.95 4748183 106,735,10
2.286.84 4,408,559 3,177.24 860,67
939,92 1,026.84 ART27e 6,238,483
0,00 26,87 111737 1,208,24
G447 0,00 000 -544,20

RIL2EG 5,448,380 8,567.33 16,7568.18
35,199,465 82,673.22 3647149 104,344,417

35,198.46 32,673.22 3647142 10434417

10,810.37 12,30%.64 1262084 35,832.65

B,234,17 670408 9,151.47 22,088,40

285,156,64 232,906.0% 266,63847 754,635.12

49,186.26 E3,040,28 78,987.15 191,783.70

1,082,172,82 1,960,670.37 1,268,736.50 3,514,579.78

.00 245,00 23488 107989

344.59 2,786.89 -60.45 3.070.53

4.60 327.85 ~1,30 26,55
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336 P
adizbM2
Cash Basls

750 » Equipment - Leased
B7H1 « olympus lease
6750 + Equlpment « Leaged - Othar

Total Y60 - Equipmient - Leasud

#7720 - Supplies

57885 » Medlzal

§700 - Office

8770 + Supplies - Other
Total 6770 - Supplies
6820 - Taxes

6840 « Lacad

6850 - Property

6BED - Slate

B320 - Taxes « Other
Total §620 - Toxes

4870 « Payroll Taxes - Flea
GBY5 - Payroll 401k Contdbution
5885 - Payroll Paychex Feen
8028 + Refunds

8021 - Patlent Refund

3022 + Insurance refund

2923 + medicare refund

Totak 8620 « Refunds

8036 « Medical drugs
2031 + propofol
BU30 + Modion! drugs - Dther

Total 8030 - Medical drugs
Total Expenss

Net Ordinany income

Other fncemelExpense
Qther income
Ta30 - Qther voms

Total Othar ncome

Other Expense
FEC 178 Daduction
BEC17S Deduction - Amarfization

" Totat Gther Expehse
Net Other income

NetIncome

Diagnostic Endoscopy, L.L.C.
Profit & L.oss
January 2009 throngh December 2011

Jan « Rec 99 Jan - Bee 4D Jan - Bes 11 TOTAL

132,808.49 181,757,858 273,528.1% 588,081,506
20,475,42 2557927 15,734,43 T0.188.42

182.263.9% 207,357.22 289,259.54 GEB,2B0.67
218,182.65 260,842,765 424,491 44 803,626,890
201.94 «15.07 0,00 186.82
845,85 20,88 o91.47 865,74

1521058 60,5071 424,582,891 904,700,855
0.00 0.00 20,00 20.G0
511.68 4,300.48 +2,767,12 17,669,18
520,60 750.00 BB2.57 2162.57
250,00 040 0.00 250,60

BRE.58 £5.080.48 1368980 16,681,76

90,679.28 96,762,965 33,634.48 224,076.72

.00 0,00 32,362.47 32,302,497

6.526.99 7.245.84 805369 TLBLER
14,069.27 26,540,353 39,926.58 V8.426.18
8,672.0% 16,106,68 11,181,82 35,660,87
1,621.69 0.00 1,200,897 7,822.66

22,452.07 42,546,21 52,310.47 117,118,685
94,002,32 80,710.57 56,268,609 130,852.58
103,975,389 123,933.68 31743 V28,296,850

13707771 184,644.55 36,586,82 358,208.08

2,766,942.67 4,060,021.57 3401,848.25 8,228,812,47

1,5685,944.59 1850,617.89 2,086,833.11 5,804,492.59

0.00 0.an $9,837.81 39,637,81

0.00 0.00 59,697.81 39,837.81

16,220.00 0.00 26,402.00 42.622.00

0.60 705,835.00 o4 705,936,060

16,220.00 705,835.00 26,402,00 748,657,600

+16,220,00 +705,035,00 1343581 708,710,168

1,570,721,83 1,144,682,8% 2,089,368.92 5,008,773.40

Page 2
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337 P
4125142
Cash Busks

=213
et Asnols
Checking/Savings
1805 » Bank of Ameticy
1605~ Webster Sunk

Fotal CheckingfBavirngs

Total furrent Assets
Fixed Agsets
1285 - PurnlluralFixturog
1300 « Property-Equipment
1501 » Medicnt Squlprent
1350 Fumnitere
1820 « Property-Cotuputers
1350 « Acctmulated Deprecistion

Tata] 1285 - Furniture/Fiaures

1330+ Leacndhold Improvemmenis

1340 - ZAccumulaied Depreciziton - 0

#1330 + Leatedhold Improverents « taher
Tats) 1550 + Leasadhold Improvaments
1452 - Sottwate .

4325+ zAccumulated Bepracietion

1353 « 2Accumptated Armentizstion

1352 » Soltwere - Othor

Totst 1362 - Software

Fataf Pixed Assets
Oiteer Assals
‘£500 * Runt Doposit

‘Fotal Cthior Asssty

TOTALASSETS

UABLINES & BEQUITY
Linkithles
Current Labllities
Resounts Payshito
2090 + Axcotitte Fayable

Tutal Accatnts Payatile:

“Totat Burent LinhAities

korg Tomn Linbifitics
Nuyte Payable - Berkon
215D « Webster Construstion Refi Loan
2455 » Webstar Conetraction Lesm
2185 « Websgtey Eqpipmant Losn

Totsl Long Tere tiabilities

ot Lisbilies

Byuity
3005+ Purchased Membership interast
3010« Patners Gapltst
020+ Peler Snrdnrar
P, Gurdner « Cuplia)
?. Gardnor » Distibutions
Fola) 1020 « Peter Gardhor
3025 + Rotald Clrille
R, Cirillo » Capital
R, Chrilla - Distributiohs

Total 3825 » Roneld Cirflle

3439 - Stupit Waldsirelcher
8. Waldclreleher - Caplat
5. Waldstretchor « Distibution

Totnd 303D - Stuart Woldsirelohar

3935 - Willlam Pintewro
W. Pintaura - Gapita)
W, Pintaure - Disthbutiony

Totat 2035 - Wit Plntanre

045« Notson Banhelm
M. Bonhelm » Gopitol
N, Bonheim - Histrdbutions

Toto} 3045 - Nelson Bonheim

S50+ Neda ihmghan
N. Khnghan - Caphat
. Khoghon « Distrisudions.

Tola} 3850 « Neda Khaghan

F055 * Alait Bolidn
A, Selkda - Capiiol
A, Salkin~ Distridubichs

Totat HEE - Alan Sefiin

3050 « Fafles Zuns
P, Zvias « Copltal
F.Zvas « Bistribitions

Total 1060 - Feffee Zwas

TFolal 3010 + Partaers Copital

3045 « Pariners Distrbutions
5164 » Relafed Exrnings
Netincome

Tetal Equity
AL LIARHFTIES & EQUITY

Diagnestic Endoscopy, L.L.C.

Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison

As of Decernber 31, 2001
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Tiec 34,41 Dec 31, 10 § Chonge %% Chenge
945 JEXe R 42,007,568 A0b,2%
246,510.24 188,021.08 28,499.25 15.2%
21540088 263,695.15 18,391,70 82%
214,430,800 200,09%.18 18,391,708 az%
£6488.71 55EIRT 0.90 ta%
35,847.08 70,5287 25,620,395 WBA%
2760175 26075 0.00 0.5%
45,810,45 44,198.70 141375 32
“204,238,04 “208810.04 w25420.00 42.9%
1,803.85 -4.45 1,805,910 156.965.2%
~B51,551.98 -501,267.62 -51,082.05 5.3%
1,88344258 £ 582441,16 100143 D.1%
1.032.006.74 1,861,175.04 49,082.53 4.5%
1$4,738.96 84,730.95 2,00 0.0%
STB380 -51,936.00 .00 D.0%
$1,936.00 54,635.00 000 DO%
454,730,986 154,738,96 0.50 o
§79,155,70 545313 AT 274D 5%
14,3500 THTIBA0 0.09 0.0%
1,733.00 73300 060 0.6%
1,110,279,58 1141,265.31 J0885Y3 2.7%
4,643.5% 21,6841,07 ~17ia740 “T81%
4.843.50 254107 BERE TET%
4643.56 2484407 718748 BTG
6515.14 13.536.34 -5,919.20 ~S9.0%
TA347.48 96,791.58 53,444,480 27.2%
728,730.14 877,000.02 -147.270.88 ~16.8%
102,243,609 123,000.09 +20,656.20 AGB%
$22,230.26 1,230,G25.82 +22B,240.66 «“48.8%
£35,673,86 £,232470.90 24545714 19.8%
SO376T.79 83,0302 20,752.56 50%
~23,418.49 56,988,185 546764 ~152.6%
28825476 245 663,64 548,12 £ 5%
297 581,25 -109,675.49 48,005.76 54,94
~19,595.76 5,245,492 -24,848.17 ~413.9%
T4, 5729 7531547 EY-AT LAk
04,560,11 56,071.75 ) +25,486.96 A43.1%
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
AmSurg Corp.
Nashvilie, Tennessee

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of AmSurg Corp. and subsidiaries (the "Company™) as
of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, comprehensive income, changes
in equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the pericd ended December 31, 201 1. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the andit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement, An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit alse includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Ir: our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
AmSurg Corp. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, andthe resuits of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on the criteria
established in Internal Control-—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Comumission and our report dated February 24, 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company's
internal contre! over financial reporfing.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Nashville, Tennessee
February 24, 2012
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{tem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data — {continued)
AmSurg Corp.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2011 and 2010
(Dollars in thousands)
2011 2010

of 31

Total assets $ 1,573,018 $ 1,165,878

Long-term debi _ 447963 283,215
- Gt U167 1 00,089
- 28 131:_ o 24404

Retamed eammgs_ . ‘
A ccumulated pther: comprehenswe loss, fiet of Mcome taxes -

Total AmSurg Corp. equity o _ _ 616,245 564,068
B oncomrolimg interssts = non-recieemable c )

Total equity 748,467 576,867
157301818 11631878

; olaldiabilities and equity i n G
See accompanying notes to the cansohddted fi nanclal statemenis
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Hem 8. Financial Stafements and Supplementary Data — {continued)

AmSurg Corp.

Consolidated Statements of Earnings
Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
(In thousands, except earnings per share)

2011

786,810

243,004
104,007

otat GpErating expens

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 613 - -

Loss en dlsposal of discontinued interests in surgery centers, net of income
tax (1,543) (2,732) (702}

Net:(loss) eamings from discontinued opertition (1,146}

Net garnings 190,114 180,496 181,350

iro; 128,364
et'earnings irom discontinied Gperations: 2/307:

Total net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests 140,117 130,671

U s s

i Net edrainigs atnibutabié o AmSurg Corp’ icomimion sharéholders’

Am nts annbutable fo AmSurg Corp cormemoen sharehold

S 50,741

o oy

Net ( oss) carnmgs from discontinued operations attributable ta AmSurg
Corp. cornmon shareholders {0.04) {0.04) 0.05

“ et Carnings attributable to AmSure Corp. eommon sharehioid

ings per sh.

archolder
Ne (loss} eammgs from disco
C{}rp common shareholders (G.04) (0.04) 0.05

Lone s e
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Weighted average number of shares and share equivalents outstanding;

H05550
30,689

30,452

;578
33,211

Diluted 30,862

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Ttem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data — (continued)
AmSurg Corp.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
{(In thousands)
2011 2010 2008

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax:

ki

190,629 181,830 182,352

Comprehensive income attributable to AmSurg Corp.
common sharehoiders 3 50,512 % 51,159 § 53,150

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data — (continued)
AmSurg Corp,
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
Years Ended December 31, 201§, 2010 and 2009

{In thousands)
AmSurg Corp. Sharcholders

Non-
Non- Controlling
Accumulated  Controlling Interests
Other Interests — Total Redeemabie
Common Stock  Refained Comprehensive  Non- Eguity  (Temporary Net

Shares Amount Earnings Loss Redeemable (Permanent)  Equity)  Earnings

2 $291,088

Issuance of réstncted
common stock ‘ 162 - - - - - -
tion'of

3178181,

Erzudey gante

Gzin on interest rate
swap, net of
income tax expense of
$646

P fvel

Issuance of restricted

ipensati
Tax benefit related to
exercise

Distributions to
noncontrolling
interests, net of capital
coniributions

S:Acquisitions ahd other- .
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Gain on inferest rate
swap, net of
income tax expense of

$860 - - - 1,334 - 1,334 .

204
See accompanying notes to the ¢
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item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data — (continued)
AmSurg Corp.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity —(continued)
Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2005

(In thousands)
AmSurg Corp. Shareholders

Non-
Non~ Controiling
Accumulated Controlling Interests
Other Interests — Total Redeemabie
Common Stock  Retained Comprehensive  Non- Equity (Temporary Net
Shares Amount Earpings Loss Redeemable (Permanent)  Equity) Earniogs
Balance at December 31,
2000 L 31,0408171,522$393061 8 (SI5)$  12799$ 576867 $ 147,740

QCK:

exercise
_ of stock options

649 .

Distributions to
noncontrolling
interests, net of capital
contributions

ntrolling inte
of noncontrolli

Disposals and other
transactions impacting
nencentrolling interests - (511) - - (3,154) (3,665) 366

Balance at Pecember 31,
2011 31,284 $173,187 §443,058 § -$ 132222% 748467 $ 170,636

See accompanying notes o the consolidated financial statements,
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Hem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data ~ (continued)
AmSurg Corp.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
(¥n thousands)

2011 2010 2009

Net carnings $ 190,114 $ 180496 $

26, ?.75 24,928

18247

Increase (dccrease} in cé.sh and cash equwalents net of effects of
acquisitions and
dispositiol

Capital contributions and ownership transactions by noncontrolling 660 224 1,036
interests

W equivalents, beginning of period s

Cash and cash equivaients, end of period b 40,718 § 34,147 § 29,377
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Page 80 of 101



Item: 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data ~ {continued)
AmSurg Corp.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
a. Principles of Consolidation
AmSurg Corp. (the “Company™),through its wholly owned subsidiaries, owns interests, primarily 51%, in limsited
partnerships and limited liability companies (“LLCs”) which own and operate ambutatory surgery cenlers (“centers”).
The Company also has majority ownership interests in other limited partnerships and LLCs formed to develop
additional centers. The Company does not have an ownership interest in a limited partnership or LLC greater than 51%
which it does not consolidate. The Company does have an ownership interest of less than 51% in three of its limited
partnerships and LLC’s, one of which it consolidates as the Company has substantive participation rights, and two of
which it does not consolidate, as the Company owns 20% of cach entity and the Company’s rights are limited to
protective rights only. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly
owned subsidiaries and the consolidated limited partnerships and LLCs. Consolidation of such limited partnerships and
LLCs is necessary as the Company’s wholly owned subsidiaries have primarily 51% or more of the financial interest,
are the general partner or majority member with ali the duties, rights and responsibilities thereof, are responsible for the
day-to-day management of the limited partnerships and LLCs, and have control of the entities. The responsibilities of
the Company’s noncontrolling partners (Hmiled partners and noncontroliing members) are to supervise the delivery of
medical services, with their rights being restricted to those that protect their financial interests, such as approval of the
acquisition of significant assets or the incurrence of debt which they are generally required to guarantes on a pro rata
basis based upon their respective ownership interests. Intercompany profits, transactions and balances have been
eliminated. All limited partnerships and LLCs and noncontrolling partners are referred to herein as parinerships and
partners, respectively.
Ownership interests in consolidated subsidiaries held by parties other than the Company are identified and generaily
presented in the consolidated financial statements within the equity section but separate from the Company’s equity.
However, in instances in which certain redemption features that are not solely within the control of the Company are
present, classification of noncontrolling interests outside of permanent equity is required. Consolidated net income
attributable to the Company and te the noncontrolling interests are identified and presented on the face of the
consolidated staternents of earnings; changes in ownership interests are accounted for as equily transactions; and when
a subsidiary is deconsolidated, any retained noncontrofling equity investment in the former subsidiary and the gain or
loss on the deconsolidation of the subsidiary is measured at fair value. Certain transactions with nonconirolling
interests are also classified within financing activities in the statements of cash flows.
As further described in note 14, upon the occurrence of various fundamental regulatory changes, the Company would
be obligated, under the terms of certain partnership and operating agreements, to purchase the noncontroliing interests
related to a substantial majority of the Company’s partnerships. While the Company believes that the likelihood of &
change in current law that would trigger such purchases was remote as of December 31, 2011, the occurrence of such
regulatory changes is outside the contrel of the Company. As a result, the nonconiroliing interests that are subject to
this redemption feature are not included as part of the Company’s equity and are classified as noncontrolling interests —
redeemable on the Company’s conselidated balance sheets.
Center profits and losses of consolidated entities are allocated to the Company’s partners in proportion o their
ownership percentages and reflected in the aggregate as net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests. The
pariners of the Company’s center partnerships typically are organized as general partnerships, limited partnerships or
limited liability companies that are not subject to federal income tax. Each partner shares in the pre-tax carnings of the
center in which it is a partner. Accordingly, the earnings attributable to noncentrolling interests in each of the
Company’s consolidated partnerships are generally determined on a pre-tax basis, and total net earnings attributable 1o
ronconirolling interests are presented after net earnings. However, the Company considers the impact of the net
earnings attributable to nonconirolling interests on earnings before income taxes in order to determine the amount of
pre-tax earnings on which the Company must determine its tax expense. In addition, distributions from the partuerships
are made to both the Company’s wholly owned subsidiaries and the partners on a pre-tax basis.
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates in which the Company exerts significant influence but does not control or
otherwise consotidate are accounted for using the equity method. These investments are included as investments in
unconsolidated affiliates in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The Company’s share of the profits and
losses from these investments are reported in equity in eamings of uncensolidated affiliates in the accompanying
consolidated statement of earnings. The Company monitors its investments for other-than-temporary impairment by
considering factors such as current economic and market conditions and the operating performance of the companies
and records reductions in carrying values when necessary.
The Company operates in one reportable business segment, the ownership and operation of ambulatory surgery centers.
b. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are comprised principally of demand deposits at banks and other highly liquid short-term
investments with maturities of less than three months when purchased.
¢, Supplies Inventory
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Supplies inventory consists of medical and drag supplies and is recorded at cost on a first-in, first-out basis.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data — (continued)
AmSurg Corp.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements —(confinuned)
d. Prepaid and Other Current Assets
At December 31, 2011, prepaid and other current assets were comprised of short-term investments of $6,516,000, other
prepaid expenses of $5,674.000, prepaid insurance expense of $4,185,000, other cusrent receivables of $4,394,000 and
other current assets of $1,106,000, At December 31, 2010, prepaid and other current assets were comprised of short-
term investments of $6,450.800, other prepaid expenses of $4,386,000, prepaid insurance expense of $3,402,000, other
current receivables of $2,063,000, current income tax receivable of $1,555,000 and other current assets of $804,000.
¢. Property and Equipment, net
Property and equipment are stated at cost. Equipment held under capital ieases is siated at the present value of
minimum lease payments at the inception of the related leases. Depreciation for buildings and improvements is
recognized under the straight-line method over 20 to 40 years or, for leasehold improvements, over the remaining ferm
of the lease plus renewal options for which failure to renew the lease imposes a penalty on the Company in such an
amount that a renewal appears, at the inception of the lease, to be reasonabiy assured. The primary penalty to which the
Company is subject i3 the economic detriment associated with existing leasehold improvements which might be
impaired if a decision is made not to continue the use of the leased property. Depreciation for movable equipment and
software and software development costs is recognized over useful lives of three to ten years.
1. Goodwill
The Company evaiuates goodwill for impairment at least on an annual basis and more frequently if certain indicators
are encountered. Goodwill is to be tested at the reporting unit level, defined as an operating segment or ong level below
an operating segment (referred to as a component), with the fair value of the reporting unit being compared to its
carrying amount, including goodwill, If the fair value of a reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, goodwill of the
reporting unif is net considered to be impaired. The Company has determined that it has one operating, as weil as one
reportable, segment. For impairment festing purposes, the centers qualify as components of that operating segment,
Because they have similar ecopomic characteristics, the components are aggregated and deemed a single reporting unit.
The Company completed its annual impairment test as of December 31, 2011, and determined that goodwill was not
impaired.
g. Intangible Assets
Intangible assets consist primarily of deferred financing costs of the Company and certain amortizable and non-
amostizable non-compete and customer agreements, Deferred financing costs and amortizable non-compete agreements
and customer agreements are amortized over the term of the related debt as inferest expense and the contractual term or
estimated life (five to ten years) of the agreements as amortization expense, respectively.
h. Other Long-Term Liabilities
At December 31, 2011, other long-term liabilities are comprised of deferred rent of $10,253. OOO tax~effected
unrecognized benefits of $8,356,000 (see note 1(k)), purchase price obligation of $5,236,000, unfavorable lease
liability of $4,084,000 and other long-term liabilities of $200,000. At December 31, 2010, other long-term Habilities are
comprised of deferred rent of $8,555,000, tax-effected unrecognized benefits of $8,434,000 (see note 1(k)), purchase
price cbligation of $3,895,000, unfavorable lease liability of $2,581,000, negative fair value of our interest rate swap of
$902,000 and other long-term Habilities of $37,000.
i. Revenue Recognition
Center revenues consist of billing for the use of the centers’ facilities (the “facility fee”) directly to the patient or third-
party payor and, in limited instances, billing for anesthesia services, Such revenues are recognized when the related
surgical procedures are performed. Revenues exclude any amounts bijled for physicians’surgical services, which are
billed separately by the physicians to the patient or third-party payor.
Revenues from centers are recognized on the date of service, net of estimated contractual adjustments from third-party
medical service payors including Medicare and Medicaid. During the years ended December 31, 2011, 2016 and 2009,
the Company derived approximately 29%, 31% and 33%, respectively, of its revenues from government healthcare
programs, primarily Medicare, and managed Medicare programs. Concentration of credit risk with respect to other
payors is limited due {o the large number of such payors.
j- Operating Expenses
Substantially all of the Company’s operating expenses relate to the cost of revenues and the delivery of care at the
Company’s surgery centers. Such costs primarily include the surgery centers’ chinical and administrative salaries and
benefits, supply cost, rent and other variable expenses, such as linen cost, repair and maintenance of equipment, billing
fees and bad debt expense. Bad debt expense was approximately $18,449,000, $16,945,0600 and 516,781,000 for the
vears ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively,
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Ttem 8. Financial Statemenis and Supplementary Data - (continued)
AmSurg Corp.

Notes to the Conselidated Financial Statements ~(confinued)
k. Income Taxes
The Company files a consolidated federal income tax return. Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and
ligbility method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax conseguences atiributable o
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assels and liabilities and their respective tax
bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the
years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax asseis
and Habilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.
The Company applies recognition thresholds and measurement attributes for the financial statement recognition and
measuremenlt of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax retumn as it relates te accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes. In addition, it is the Company’s policy to recognize interest accrued and penalties, if any, related to
unrecognized benefiis as income tax expense in its statement of earnings. The Company does not expect significant
changes to its tax positions or {iability for tax uncertainties during the next 12 months.
The Company and its subsidiaries file income tax refurns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state jurisdictions.
With few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal or state income tax examinations for years prior
to 2008.
i, Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net earnings atiributable to AmSurg Corp. common shareholders by
the combined weighted average number of common shares, while diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing
net earnings attributable to AmSurg Corp. common shareholders by the weighted average number of such common
shares and dilutive share equivalents.
m. Share-Based Compensation
Transactions in which the Company receives employee and non-employee services in exchange for the Company’s
equity instruments or liabilities that are based on the fair value of the Company’s equity securities or may be settled by
the issuance of these securities are accounted using a fair value method. The Company applies the Black-Scholes
method of valuation in determining share-based compensation expense.
Benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation cost are reported as a financing cash flow, thus
reducing the Company’s net operating cash flows and increasing its financing cash flows by $977,000, $200,000 and
$32,000 for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
The Company examines its concentrations of holdings, its historical patterns of award exercises and forfeitures as well
as forward-looking factors, in an effort fo determine if there were any discemnable employee populations. From this
analysis, the Company has identified three employee populations, consisting of senior executives, officers and &ll other
recipients, The expected volatility rate applied was estimated based on histozical velatility. The expected term
assumption applied is based on contractual terms, historical exercise and cancellation patterns and forward-looking
factors where present for each population identified. The risk-free interest rate used is based on the U.S. Treasury yield
curve in effect at the time of the grant. The pre-vesting forfeiture rate is based on historical rates and forward-looking
factors for each popuiation identified. The Company will adjust the estimated forfeiture rate to its actual experience.
The Company intends to retain its earnings to finance growth and development of the business and does not expect to
disclose or pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.
n. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitics at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
The determination of contractual and bad debt allowances constitutes a significant estimate. Some of the factors
considered by managerment in determining the amount of such allowances are the historical trends of the centers’ cash
collections and contractual and bad debt write-offs, accounts receivable agings, established fee schedules, confracts
with payors and procedure statistics. Accordingly, net accounts receivable at December 31, 2011 and 2010 reflect
atlowances for contractual adjustments of $136,265,000 and $118,503,000, respectively, and allowance for bad debt
expense of $18,844 000 and $13,070,000, respectively.
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Hem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data - (continued)
AmSurg Corp.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements —(continued)
0. Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB ") amended Accounting Standards Codification
{"ASC™) 220, "Presentation of Comprehensive Income." This amendment will require companies to present the
components of net income and other comprehensive income either as one continuous statement or as two consecutive
statements. ft eliminates the option to present components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of
changes in stockholders’ equity. The amended guidance, which must be applied retroactively, is effective for interim
and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011, with eariier adoption permitted. This Accounting Standards
Update ("ASU") impacts presentation only and will have no effect on the Company’s consolidated financial condition,
results of operations or cash flows. In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-12, which is an updaie to the
amendment issued in June. This amendment defers the specific requirements o present items that are reclassified from
accumulated other comprehensive income to net income separately with their respective components of net income and
other corprehensive income.
In July 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-07, which requires healthcare organizations that perform services for patients
for which the ultimate coliection of all or a portion of the amounts billed or billable cannot be determined at the time
services are rendered to present al] bad debt expense associated witl: patient service revenue as an offset to the patient
service revenue line item in the statement of operations, The ASU also requires qualitative disclosures about the
Company’s policy for recognizing revenue and bad debt expense for patient service {ransactions and quantitative
information about the effects of changes in the assessment of collectability of patient service revenue. This ASU is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 13, 2011, The Company has evaluated ASU 2011-07 and has
determined that the requirements of this ASU are not applicable to the Company as the ultimate collection of patient
service revenue is generally determinable at the time of service, and therefore, the ASU will not have an impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-08, which simplifies how entities test goodwill for impairment.
Previous guidance required an entity to perform a two-step goodwill impairment test at east annuaily by comparing the
fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount, including goodwill, and recording an impairment loss if the fair
value is less than the carrying amount. This ASU allows an entity to first assess gualitative factors to determine whether
the existence of events or circumstances leads to a determination that it is more likely than not that the fair value of a
reporting unit is fess than its carrving amount. If an entity determines after that assessment that it is not more likely than
not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, then performing the two-step impairment test
is not required. This ASU is applicable to interim and annual goodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2011, and will be adopted by the Company effective Janvary 1, 2012, The adoption of
this ASU is not expected to impact the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
p. Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to reflect the impact of additional discontinued operations as further
discussed in note 3.
2. Acquisitions
The Company accounts for its business combinations under the fundamental requirements of the acquisition method of
accounting and under the premise that an acquirer be identified for each business combination. The acquirer is the
eniity that obtains contro! of one or more businesses in the business combination and the acquisition date is the date the
acquirer achieves control. The assets acquired, liabilities assumed (including contingencies, if any) and any
noncontrolling interests in the acquired business at the acquisition date are recognized at their fair values as of that date,
and the direct costs incurred in connection with the business combination are recorded and expensed separately from
the business combination.
As a significant part of its growth strategy, the Company primarily acquires controliing interests in centers. During 2011
and 2010, the Company, through a wholly owned subsidiary, acquired a controlling interest in 24 centers and seven
centers, respectively. In addition, the Company acquired a non-controliing interest in two centers during 2011, The
Company acquired its interest in nine centers in separate transactions during 201 1, and acquired 17 centers, including the
less than majority owned centers, from National Surgical Care, Inc. ("NSC”) in one transaction on September 1, 2011,
The aggregate amount paid for the acquisitions during 2011 and 2010 was approximately $239,223,000 and $53,690,000,
respectively, and was paid in cash and funded by a combination of operating cash flow and borrowings under the
Company’s revolving credit agreement. In addition, the Company had purchase price payables at Pecember 31, 2011 and
2010 of approximately $5,236,000 and $3,895,000, respectively, which was reflected as other long-term Habilities in the
balance sheet, The purchase price of the NSC centers was $135,000,000, plus cash for the amount of working capital as of
the transaction date in excess of the tarpeted working capital, as defined in the purchase agreement, plus cash for NSC’s
interest in the acquired cash in the bank as of the fransaction date, The Company withheld $1,700,000 of the purchase price
af ciose due to the anticipated exercise by the non-controlling partners at one of the acguired centers of their right to ‘
purchase the remaining interest upon a change of control of the center, which was exercised on November 1, 2011. The
Company has agreed to pay as additional congideration an amount up to $7,500,000 based on a multiple of the excess
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earnings over the targeted earnings of the acquired centers, if any, from the period of January 1, 2612 to December 31,
2012, In addition to the $1,700,000 of the purchase price withheld, $3,500,000 of the purchase price was placed in an
escrow fund to allow for any working capital adjustments up to $300,000, with the remainder allocated to potential
indemnity claims, if any, which must be asserted by the Company within one year of the fransaction date. In conjunction
with the transaction, the Company engaged a third party valuation firm to obtain assistance in establishing the fair value of
certain assets and liabilitics including certain tangible and intangible assets of the NSC centers and the contingent purchase
price pavable related to the additional
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data — (continued)
AmSurg Corp.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements —(continued)
consideration. As of December 31, 2011, the Company’s assessment related to the fair value of these items and correlating
purchase price allocation were finalized resulting in certain adjustments to the opening balance sheet. The majority of the
post acquisition adjustments are a result of the completion of the Company’s fair value assessment which include the
foliowing: the recording of an additional $4,900,000 of property and equipment, the establishment of a $3,100,000
contingent purchase price payable in association with the potential additional consideration due to NSC and the
establishment of a $1,930,000 unfavorable lease liability.
The total fair value of an acquisition includes an amount allocated to goodwill, which results from the centers’ favorable
reputations in their markets, their marketl positions and their ability to deliver quality care with high patient satisfaction
consistent with the Company’s business model.
The acquisition date fair value of the ttal consideration transferred and acquisition date fair value of each major class of
consideration for the acguisitions completed during 2011 and 2018, including post acquisition date adjustments recorded to
finalize purchase price allocations, are as follows {in thousands):

Acquired
NSC Individual Individual
Centers Acquisitions  Acquisitions
2011 2010

e to noncontrolling interests

ransfers: 35,683 08,774 85
Fair value attributable to noncontroiling interests is based on significant inputs that are not observable in the market. Key
inputs used to determine the fair value include financial multiples used in the purchase of noncontrolling interests in
centers, Such multiples, based on earnings, are used as a benchmark for the discount to be applied for the lack of controf or
marketability. The fair value of noncontroiling interesis for acquisitions where the purchase price allocation is not finalized
may be subject to adjustment as the Company completes its initial accounting for acquired intangible assets. During 2011
and 2010, respectively, approximately $212,576,00G and $55,400,000 of goodwill recorded was deductible for tax
purposes, Goodwill deductible for tax purposes associated with the acquisition of NSC centers was approximately
$110,000,000 for the year ended December 31, 2011, Associated with the transactions discussed above, the Company
incurred and expensed in other operating expenses approximately $3.783,000 and $248,000 in acquisition related costs
during 2011 and 2010, respectively. The increase in transaction costs for the year ended December 31, 2011 are primarily
due to the acquisition of the NSC centers.

Revenues and net earnings included in the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 associated with these acquisitions are
as follows {(in thousands):

Acquired
NSC Individual Individual
Centers Acquisitions  Acquisitions
2011

1251
4213

Net earnings attributable to AmSurg Corp. commen sharcholders $ 1,789 § 3,038 % 2,650
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The unaudited consolidated pro forma resulis for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, assuming all 2011 and
2010 acquisitions had been consummated on January 1, 2010, are as follows (in thousands, except per share data).
2011 2010

219 435

d share equivalents;

3. Dispositions
The Company initiated the dispositions of certain of its centers primarily due to management’s assessment of the
limited growth opportunities at these centers and as a result of certain market driven strategies. Results of operations of
the centers discontinued for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2016 and 2009, are as follows (in thousands):

2011 2010 2009

Cash proceeds fror
Net (loss) eammgs from discontinued operat ns

The results of operations of discontinued centers have been classified as éxscomznued operations in a]l penods
presented. Results of operations of the combined discontinued surgery centers for the years ended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009 are as follows (in thousands):

2011 2010 2009

ore mncome faxes

4. Property and Equipment
Property and cquipment at December 31, 2011 and 2010 were as follows (in thousands):

Building and improvemen
Movable equipment, software and software development costs
TOQress.

313,613 269,149
RG0S TS Y

Liess accumulated depreciation’::

Property and equipment, net ¥ 144,558 § 119,167
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The Company capitalized interest in the amount of $85,000, $54,000 and $66,000 for the years ended December 31,
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. At December 31, 2011, the Company and its partnerships had unfunded
construction and equipment purchases of approximately $4,307,000 in order to complete censtruction in progress.
Depreciation expense for continving and discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and
2009 was $26,068,000, $25,279,000 and $22,784,000, respectively.
3. Goodwill and Intangible Assets
The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows (in
thousands):
2011 2010

uisition adjustments

Balance, end of period $  1,229298 % 894,497
Amortizable intangible assets at December 31, 2011 and 2010 consisted of the following {in thousands}:
2011 2010
Gross Gross

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated

Amouni  Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net
Déterrad firiancing 6o 18388
Agreements, contracts azxd oiher

intangible assets 3,448 (2,026) 1,422 3,180 {1,818) 1,362

Amortization of intangible assets for the years ended Dccember 31 20}1 2010 and 2009 was $1 472 000 51 184, (}0(}
and $492,000, respectively. Included in amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2010 is $434,000 of
previously unamortized deferred financing costs expensed in conjunction with the refinancing of the revolving credit
facility (see note 6} Estimated amortization of intangibie assets for the five years and thereafter subsequent to
December 31, 2011, with a weighted average amortization period of 5 years, is $1,306,000, $ 1,303,000, $1,297.000,
$1,297,600, $701,000 and $221,000.

At December 31, 2011 and 2018, other non-amortizable intangible assefs related to restrictive covenant arrangements

were $9,300,000 and $6,030,000, respectively.
6. Long-term Debt
Long-term debt at December 31, 2011 and 2016 was comprised of the following (in thousands):
2011

Revolving Sredit airesitient (average fale o1 2/8%) 351,00 188,00
Fixed rate senior secured notes (rate of 6.04%0) . 75600 5,00
Other debtiat an-average rat Godne thronghi 2019 e : e o

Capitalized lease arrangcments at an average rate of 5. 5% due through

Less current portion
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Prior to the closing the NSC acquisition, the Company exercised the accordion feature on its revolving credit facility on
April 7, 2011. The amended revolving credit agreement permits the Company to borrow up to $450,000,000 to, among
other things, finance its acquisition and development projects and any future stock repurchase programs at an interest rate
equal to, at the Company’s option, the base rate plus 0.75% to 1.75% or LIBOR plus 1.75% to 2.75%, or a combination
thereof; provides for a fee of 0.20% to 0.50% of urused commitments; and contains certain covenants relating to the ratio
of debt to operating performance measurements, interest coverage ratios and minimum net worth, Borrowings under the
revolving credit agreement will mature in April 2016 and are secured primarily by a pledge of the stock of our wholly-
owned subsidiaries and cur partnership and membership interests in the limited partnerships and limited liabitity
companies. The Company was in compliance with all covenants contained in the revolving credit agreement at
December 31, 2011.
On May 28, 2010, the Company issued, pursuant to a note purchase agreement, $75,0006,000 of 6.04% senior secured
notes due May 28, 2020. The senior secured notes are pari passu with the indebtedness under the Company's revolving
credit facility and require payment of principal beginning in August 2013, The note purchase agreement governing the
senior secured notes contains covenants similar to the covenants in the revolving credit agreement. The Company was
in compliance with ali covenants contained in the note purchase agreement at December 31, 201 1.
Certain partnerships included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements have loans with local lending
institutions, included above in other debt, which are collateralized by certain assets of the centers with a book value of
approximately $76,254,000. The Company and the pariners have guaranteed payment of the loans in proportion to the
relative partnership interests.
Principal payments required on long-term debt in the five years and thereafier subsequent to December 31, 2011 are
$10,800,600, $13,471,000, $14.609,000, $11,936,000, $362,819,000 and $45,128,000.
7. Derivative Enstruments
The Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement in April 2006, the ohiective of which was to hedge exposure
to the variability of the future expected cash flows attributable to the variable interest rate of a portion of the
Company’s outstanding balance under its revolving credit agreement. The interest rate swap matured in April 2011,
Prior to April 2011, the interest rate swap had a notional amount of $50,000,000. The Company paid to the
counterparty a fixed rate of 5.365% of the notional amount of the interest rate swap and received a floating rate from
the counterparty based on LIBOR. In the opinion of management and as permitted by Accounting Standards
Codification Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging(“ASC 81357, the interest rate swap (as a cash flow hedge) was a fully
effective hedge. Payments or receipts of cash under the interest rate swap were shown as a part of operating cash flows,
consistent with the interest expense incurred pursuant to the revolving credit agreement. An increase in the fair value of
the interest rate swap, net of tax, of $515,000, $1,334,000 and $1,002,000 was included in other comprehensive income
in the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Accurnulated other comprehensive loss, net of
income taxes, was $0 and $515,000 as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
The fair values of derivative instruments in the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 were as
follows (in thousands):

Asset Derivatives Liab#ity Derivatives
2011 2010 2011 2010
Balance Balance Balance Balance
Sheet Fair Sheet Fair Sheet Fair " Sheet Fair
Location Value Location Value Location Value Location Value

g
8. Fair Value Measurements
The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in an orderly
transaction between market participants to sell the asset or transfer the liability, The inputs used by the Company o
measure fajr value are classified into the following fair value hierarchy:
Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or Habilities,
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability
through cerroboration with market data at the measurement date.
Level 3: Unobservable inputs that reflect management’s best estimate of what market participants would
use in pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
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The Company adopted the updated guidance of the FASB related to fair value measurements and disclosures, which
requires a reporting entily to disclose separately the amounts of significant transfers in and out of Level | and Level 2
fair value measurements and to describe the reasons for the transfers, In addition, in the reconciliation for fair value
measurements using significant unobservable inputs, or Level 3, a reporting entity should disclose separately
information about purchases, sales, issuances and settfernents. The updated guidance also reguires that an entity shouid
provide fair value measurement disclosures for each class of assets and liabilities and disclosures about the valuation
techniques and inputs used to measure fair value for both recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements for
Levei 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements, The guidance was effective for the Company Jaruary 1, 2010, except for
the disclosures about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements in the roll forward activity in Level 3 fair value
measuremenis, which was effective for the Company January 1, 2011. The adoption of the updated guidance for Level
3 fair value measurements did not have an impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial
condition.
In determining the fair value of assets and liabilities that are measured en a recurring basis at December 31, 2011 and
2010, with the exception of the contingent purchase price payable, the Company utilized Level 2 inputs fo perform such
measurements methods which were commensurate with the market approach. The Company utilized Levei 3 inputs,
which utitizes unobservable data, to measure the fair value of the contingent purchase price payable (in thousands):

2011 2010

Supplemental exccutive retirement savings plan investrents - Level 2 3 6,516 § 6,450

Cdntingent purchase price payable - Level 3 {ses note 2) $ 3,100 % -

Total $ 3,100 % 502

The fair value of the supplemental executive retirement savings plan investments, which are included in prepaid and
other current assets, was determined using the calculated net asset values obtained from the plan administrator and
observable inputs of similar public mutual fund investments, The fair vatue of the contingent purchase price payable
was determined utilizing budgets developed by management fo assess the future earnings of the NSC centers, which
were based on both historical and forecasted future activity. There have been no changes to the fair value of the
contingent purchase price payable since its establishment. The fair value of the interest rate swap agreement, which is
included in other fong-term liabilities, was determined by a valuation obtained from the financial institution that is the
counterparty to the interest rate swap agreement. The valuation, which represents the amount that the Company would
have paid if the agreement was terminated, considered current interest rate swap rates, the critical terms of the
agreement and interest rate projections. There were no transfers to or from Levels 1 and 2 during the year ended
December 31, 2011.

Cash and cash eqguivalents, receivables and payables are reflected in the financial statements at cost, which
approximates fair value. The fair value of fixed rate long-terns debt, with a carrying vaiue of $101,188,000, was
$105,302,000 at December 31, 2011. The fair value of variable-rale long-term debt approximates its carrying value of
$357,575,000 atDecember 31, 2011, The fair value of fixed rate long-term debt, with a carrying value of $148,109,000,
was $150,935,000 at December 31, 2010. The fair value of variable-rate long-term debt approximates its carrying value
of $141,754,000 at December 31, 2010. The fair value is determined based on an estiration of discounted future cash
flows of the debt at rates currently quoted or offered to the Company for similar debt instruments of comparable
maturities by its lendezs.
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9. Leases
The Company has eniered into various building and equipment capital and operating leases for ifs surgery centers in
operation and under development and for office space, expiring at varicus dates through 2031, Future minimum lease
payments, including payments during expected renewal option periods, at Decernber 31, 2011 were as follows {in
thousands):

Capitalized Operating
Equipment

Year Ended December 31, Leases Leases

3

At D

depreciation of approximately $5,583,000 were held under capital leases. The Company and the partners in the
partnerships have guaranteed payment of certain of these leases. Rental expense for operating leases for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was approximately $42,413.000, $37,301,000 and $35,401,000, respectively.

10. Shareholders’ Eqguity

a, Common Stock

Turing the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company purchased 830,700 shares of the Company’s common stock
for approximately $12,587,000, at an average price of $13 per share, which completed a $25,000,000 stock repurchase
program authorized by the Company’s Board of Directors in September 2008,

On April 22, 2009 the Company’s Board of Directors approved an additional stock repurchase progran: for up to
$40,000,000 of the Company’s shares of common stock over the following 18 months. This plan expired in October
2010 with no shares having been purchased pursuant to the plan,

On October 20, 2010, the Company’s Board of Directors approved & new stock repurchase program for up to
$40,000,000 of the Company’s shares of common stock over the following 18 months. During the year ended
December 31, 2011, the Company purchased 344,100 shares of the Company’s common stock for approximately
$8,584,000, at an average price of $24.92 per share, in order to mitigate the diiutive effect of shares issued upon the
exercise of stock options pursuant to the Company’s stock incentive plans. In addition, the Company repurchased
62,700 shares of common stock for approximately $1,423,000 to cover payroll withholding taxes in connection with
the vesting of restricted stock awards in accordance with the resiricted stock agreements.

b. Shareholder Rights Plan

In 1999, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted a sharehelder rights plan and declared a distribution of one stock
purchase right for each outstanding share of the Company’s common stock to sharehoiders of record on December 16,
1999 and for each share of common stock issued thereafter. The shareholder rights plan expired on December 2, 2009,
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c. Stock Incentive Plans
In May 2006, the Company adopted the AmSurg Corp. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan. The Company also has options
outstanding under the AmSurg Corp. 1997 Stock Incentive Plan, under which no additional options may be granted.
Under these plans, the Company has granted restricted stock and non-qualified options to purchase shares of common
stock 1o employees and outside directors from its authorized but unissued common stock. At December 31, 2011,
2,760,250 shares were authorized for grant under the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan and 1,296,301 shares were available
for future equity grants, including 538,126 shares available for issuance as restricted stock. Restricted stock granted to
outside directors in 2010 and 2011 vests over a two year period. Restricted stock granted to outside directors prior to
2010 vesfs one-third on the date of grant, with the remaining shares vesting over a two-year ferm and is restricted from
rading for five years from the date of grant. Restricted stock granted to employees during 2009 and thereafter vests
over four years in three equal installments beginning on the second anniversary of the date of grant. Restricted stock
granted 1o employees prior to 2009 vests at the end of four years from the date of grant. The fair value of restricted
stock is determined based on the closing bid price of the Company’s common stock on the grant date.
Options are granted at market value on the date of the grant, Prior to 2007, granted options vested in four equal
instathments, commencing on the date of grant. Options granted in 2007 and 2008 vest at the end of four years from the
grant date, No options were issued in 2011, 2010 or 2009. Qutstanding options have a term of fen years from the date
of grant.
Other information pertaining to share-based activity for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was as
follows {in thousands):

2011 2010

Compensation expense

Tax benefit from option exercises 977
As of December 31, 2011, the Company had total unrecognized compensation cost of approximately $5,938,006
related to non-vested awards, which the Company expects to recognize through 2015 and over a weighted-average
period of 1.1 years.

Average outstanding share-based awards to purchase approximately 922,801, 2,384,000 and 2,457,000 shares of
common stock that had an exercise price in excess of the average market price of the common stock during the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, were not included in the calculation of diluted securities under
the treasury method for purposes of determining dituted eamings per share due {o their anti-dilutive impact.

A summary of the status of and changes for non-vested restricted shares for the three years ended December 31, 2011,
is as follows:

Weighted

Number Average
of Grant
Shares Price
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A summary of stock option activity for the three years ended December 31, 20171 is summarized as follows:

Weighted
Average
Weighted  Remaining
Number Average  Contractual
of Exercise Term

Shares Price (in years)

xercised - with-totalintrinsicvalue of:$51 1. 00(

Outstanding at December 31, 2011 with aggregate infrinsic vaiue of
$7.562,000 2,510,054 % 23.09 34

Exercisable at December 31, 2011 with total intrinsic value of 7,514,000 2,319,844 % 23.02 32

The aggregate intrinsic value represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value received by the option holders on the exercise
date or that would have been received by the option holders had all holders of in-the-money outstanding options at
December 31, 2011 exercised their options at the Company’s closing stock price on December 31, 2011,
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d. Earnings per Share
The following is a reconciliation of the numerator and denominators of basic and diluted earnings per share (in
thousands, except per share amounts):

Per
Earnings Shares Share
{(Numerator) (PDenominator) Amount

Net eammgs from contmumg operatxons attributable to
AmSurg Corp. per common share (basic)

Net earnings from continuing operations attributable to
AmSurg Corp. per common share (diluted) 3 51,199 31,211 § 1.64

‘basic) 1 =7
Effect of dilutive securities options and non-vested shares - 759

Net earnings aftributable to AmSurg Corp. per common share
(diluted) 3 49,825 30,689 § 1.62

Forithe year ended December 31,:2009:
Net earnings from continuing operations attributable to
. Am3urg Corp. per common share (basic)
{1 Effect of dilutive $eciritics dptions:and non=vested sha

Net earnings from continuing operations attributable to
AmSurg Corp. per common share (difuted) $ 50,741 30,862 $ 1.64

Effect of dilutive securities options and non-vested shares - 286
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11. Income Taxes
Total income taxes expense (benefit) for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was included within the
following sections of the consclidated financial statements as follows (in thousands):
2011 2010 2009

Income from continting operati
Dlscontmugd operations
Shareholders equit

Other comprehensive income 332 SGO 646

Income 1a‘{ expense fmm contmumg opel ations for the years ended December 31 201 1 2(}1 ] and 2(}09 was comprlsed

of the following (in thousands):
2011 2010 2009

Incomc tax expense from continuing {)peraimns for the yea,rs endcd Decembcr 31, 201} 2019 and 2009 dsffered frem
the amount computed by applying the U.S. federal income tax rate of 35% to earnings before i income taxes as a result
of the following (in thousands):

2011 2010 2009

Other 141 (56) 110

The Company recognizes interest and penait;es refated 1o unrecognized tax bcnef 1S in income tax expense. fncrcases
and (decreases) in interest obligations of $(109,000), $(191,000) and $18,000 were recognized in the consolidated
statement of earnings for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, resulting in 2 total
recognition of interest obligations of approximately $1,264,000 and $1,373,000 in the consolidated balance sheet at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. No amounts for penalties have been recorded.
The Company primarily has unrecognized tax benefits that represent an amortization deduction which is temporary in
nature. A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of the liability associated with unrecognized tax benefits
for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 is as follows {in thousands):

2011 2010 2009

beginning of-vea

Addltxons for tax poszizons of current year
Detreases fortax positionstaken during & prior perio
Lapse of statute of limitations
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The Company believes that it is reasonably possible that the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits will increase
$78,000 within the next 12 montbs due to continued amertization deductions. The total amount of unrecognized tax
benefits that would affect our effective tax rate if recognized is approximately $150,000.
The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
{iabilities af December 31, 2011 and 2010 were as follows (in thousands):

2011 2010

o T

ecognized tax: benefits
Accrued Habilities and other

Goodwxil principally due to differences in amortization 124,060 99,664

Total deferred rax labilities

Net deferred tax liabilities $ 112,038 % 88,580
The net deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2011 and 2010 were recorded as follows (in thousands):
2011

114.167

: | 112,038 %
The Company has prowded valuatmr; aflowances on its gross deferred tax assets to the extent that management éoes
not believe that it is more likely than not that such asset will be realized. Capital loss carryforwards will begin to expire
in 2013, and stafe net operating losses will begin to expire in 2015.

12, Related Party Transactions

Certain surgery centers fease space from entities affiliated with their physician pariners at negotiated rates that
management believes were equal to fair market value at the inception of the leases based on relevant market data.
Certain surgery centers reimburse their physician partners for salaries and benefits and billing fees related to time spent
by employees of their practices on activities of the centers at current market rates. In addition, certain centers
compensate at market rates their physician pariners for physician advisory services provided 1o the surgery centers,
inchuding medical director and performance improvement services.
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Related party payments for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were as follows (inr thousands):
2011 2010 2009

Opiratiig 1¢ases
Salaries and benefit

Medical advisory services
The Company also reimburses their physician partners for operating expenses paid by the physician partners to third
party providers on the behalf of the surgery center. For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, reimbursed
expenses were approximately 5% of other operating expenses as reported in the accompanying consolidated statement
of earnings. The Company believes that the foregoing transactions are in its best interes(s.

It is the Company’s policy that all transactions by the Company with officers, directors, five percent sharcholders and
their affiliates be entered into only if such transactions are on terms no less favorable to the Company than could be
obtained from unaffiliated third parties, are reasonably expected to benefit the Company and are approved by the
Nominating and Corperate Governance Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors.

13. Employee Benefit Programs

As of January 1, 1999, the Company adopted the AmSurg 401(k) Plan and Trust, This plan is a defined contribution
plan covering substantially all employees of the Company and provides for voluntary contributions by these employees,
subject to certain limits. Company contributions are based on specified perceniages of employee compensation. The
Company funds contributions as accrued. The Company’s centributions for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010
and 2009 were approximately $594,000, $561,000 and $525,000, respectively, and vest immediately or incrementally
over five years, depending on the tenures of the respective employees for which the contributions were made.

As of January 1, 2000, the Company adopted the Suppiemental Executive Retirement Savings Plan. Thisplanisa
defined contribution plan covering all officers of the Company and provides for voluntary contributions of up to 50%
of employee annual compensation. Company contributions are at the discretion of the Compensation Comunittee of the
Board of Directors and vest incrementally over five years. The employee and employer centributions are placed in a
Rabbi Trust and recorded in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets in prepaid and other current assets.
Employer contributions to this plan for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were approximately
$915,000, $234,000 and $1,170,000, respectively. On December 30, 2011, this plan was amended 1o allow non-
employee directors to voluntarily contribute up to 100% of annual director cash compensation to the plan.

14, Commitments and Contingencies

The Company and its partnerships are insured with respect to medical malpractice risk on a claims-made basis. The
Company also maintains insurance for general liability, director and officer liability and property. Certain policies are
subject to deductibles. In addition o the insurance coverage provided, the Company indemnifies its officers and
directors for actions taken on behalf of the Company and its partnerships. Management is not aware of any claims
against it or its partnerships which would have a material financial impact on the Company.

Certain of the Company’s wholly owned subsidiaries, as general partners in the limited partnerships, are responsible for
all debts incurred but unpald by the limited partnership. As manager of the operations of the limited partnerships, the
Company has the ability to limit potential liabilities by curtailing operations or taking other operating actions.

In the event of a change in current law that would prohibit the physicians’ current form of ownership in the
parinerships, the Company would be obligated fo purchase the physicians’interests in substantially all of the
Company’s partnerships. The purchase price 1o be paid in such event would be deternmyined by a predefined formula, as
specified in the partnership agreements. The Company believes the likelibood of a change in current law, which would
trigger such purchases, was remote as of December 31, 2011,

On September 1, 2011, the Company acquired interests in 17 centers from NSC and agreed to pay as additional
consideration an amount up to $7,500,000 based on a mukiple of the excess earnings over the targeted earnings of the
acquired centers (as defined), if any, from the period of January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012. The Company has
recorded $3,100,000 in other long term Habilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet which represents the fair
value of such liability at Decernber 31, 201 1. Settlement of such: contingency is expected to occur during the first guarter
of 2013,

On November 14, 2011, the Company entered into an agreement to purchase a controlling interest in a center for
approximately $4,700,000. The consuramation of the acquisition is contingent upon the satisfaction of closing
conditions customary for this type of transaction. The Company expects to ¢lose this transaction in the first quarter of
2012 and will fund the acquisition through a combination of operating cash flow and borrowings under its revolving
credit facility.
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15. Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Supplemental cash flow information for the vears ended December 31 2011, 2010 and 2009 is as follows (in

thousands}:
2011 2010 2009

Payment for interests in surgery centers and related fransactions  § 239223 § 53690 § 95826

16, Subsequent Events
The Company assessed events occurring subsequent to December 31, 2011 for potential recognition and disclosure in

the consolidated financial staternents. In February 2012, the Company, through a wholly owned subsidiary, acquired a
majority interest in a surgery center for approximately $3,200,000. Upon acquisition, the operations of the acquired
center were merged into an existing center. Other than as previously described, no events have occurred that would
require adjustment to or disclosure in the conselidated financial staiements.
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Quarterly Statement of Earnings Data (Unaudited)
The following table presents certain guarterly statement of earnings data for the years ended December 31, 2011 and
2010. The quarterly statement of earnings data set forth below was derived from our unaudited financial statements and
includes all adjustments, consisting of normal recutring adjustments, which we consider necessary for a fair
presentation thereof. Results of operations for any particular quarter are not necessarily indicative of results of
operations for a full year or predictive of future periods.
2011 2010
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
(In thousands, except per share data)

178,870 $188,730.$105,934 $223,336 1 $168,027 $175,698:8176,343 $183371

Révenu
Earnings from continuing
operations

before inco_r_n:c taxes 50,934 54,604 51,905 35856

Net earnings (loss) from
. discontinued operations
Net:earnings

Net earnings (loss} attributable to
AmSurg Corp. common
shareholders:

ntinuing 13,06 183
Discontinued 18 57 (2,315)
11,6938 11630 513126 § 13548 § 368
Diluted net earnings from
continuing operations per
common share $ 037% 0418% 0428 044 § 04038 0428 04283 043
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Attachment J

Diagnostic Endoscopy’s Financial Hardship Agreement

Diagnostic Endoscopy, LILC
778 Long Ridge Road Tel # 203-322-2400
Stamford, CE. 06802 7ax # 203-329-B855

Financial Hardship Agreement

By virtue of my signature set Fforth below, I hereby reguest that
the institutional provider reduce thelr uswal and customary
cherges in ozxder to allow me to receive care required by my
current health condition.

I represent and warrant that my financial status is such that I
would be unable to receive diagnostic and treatments services if
usual and customary charges were appllied to the services required
by my conditicn.

i recognize and acknowledge that this Agreement to reduce
customary charges is undertaken for my benefit, that this is
dependent on my financial status as of the date of this
Bgreement, that it will result in a fee arrangement distinct from
the one usually in place for the services rendered and that the
arrangement represents a confidential agreement entered into by
the parties for the sole and exclusive benefit.

In light of the foregeing, I hereby agree to the following:

1. I will not seek relmbursement for the services rendered to
me under this arrangement from any 1Rsurance company,
welfare program, or governnent entitlement program
(Medicare or Medicaid).

2. If any third party payor respensible for all or part of the
payment due as a result of services rendered under this
Agreement contacts me, I will notify such payoff of this
arrangement and the reduced fees achieved as a result of
the Agreement.

3. 1f the financial circumstances which cause me to gqualify
for financial hardship undexr this Agreement change, ¥ will
immediately notify my doctor and institutional provider in
prder to allow them to determine whether my financial
status will then allow me o pay uwsual and customary
charges for the services which I receive from that date
forward.

Patient Name:

Patient Signature:

Date Signed:

Witness Signature:

Date Signed:
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
Office of Health Care Access

July 26, 2012 VIA FAX ONLY
Stuart Waldstreicher, M.D. Robert McCullough

Member Vice President, Development
Diagnostic Endoscopy Center, LLC AmSurg Corporation

778 Long Ridge Road 20 Burton Hills Boulevard
Stamford, CT 06902 Suite 500

Nashville, TN 37215-6105

RE:  Certificate of Need Application; Docket Number: 12-31772-CON
Diagnostic Endoscopy Center, LL.C and AmSurg Corp. d/b/a AmSurg Holdings, Inc.
Proposal to Change Ownership of Diagnostic Endoscopy Center, LLC

Dear Dr. Waldstreicher and Mr. McCullough:

On June 26, 2012, the Office of Health Care Access (“OHCA™) recerved your initial Certificate
of Need (“CON”) application filing on behalf of Diagnostic Endoscopy Center, LLC (“Center™)
and AmSurg Corp. d/b/a AmSurg Holdings, Inc. (*AmSurg”™) (Center and AmSurg are herein
collectively referred to as “Applicants™), proposing to change ownership of the Center by way of
AmSurg acquiring a 62% ownership interest in the Center for $12,583,950.

OHCA has reviewed the CON application and requests the following additional information
pursuant to General Statutes §19a-639a(c):

1. On page 9 of CON application, the Applicants discuss the reason AmSurg was chosen
and the benefits of choosing AmSurg as a partner. Please provide specific examples of
the benefits that AmSurg has demonstrated in its other similar acquisitions/partnerships,
specifically the two Connecticut facilities in which it currently holds ownership interests
(see page 11).

2. Onpage 9 of the CON application, the Applicants indicate that this proposal will produce
immediate operating cost reductions. Please reconcile that statement with the projections
presented in the Financial Attachment I on page 68. Be sure to explain and provide
assumptions for each of the cost savings listed in Financial Attachment 1.

An Equal Opportunity Employer
410 Capitol Ave., MS#13HCA, P.O.Box 340308, Hartford, CT 06134-0308
Telephone: (860) 418-7001 Toli-Free: 1-800-797-9688
Fax: (860) 418-7053



Dragnostic Endoscopy Center, LLC July 26, 2012
Docket Number: 12-31772-CON Page 2 of 3

9.

. Page 15 of the CON application states that the Center will benefit from AmSurg’s

contracting expertise in the areas of payers, purchasing and leasing. However, on page
18, the Applicants state that there will be no change to the existing contracts. Please
explain and reconcile the two statements.

Additionally, please explain why there appears to be an increase over the three projected
years in Medicare population for the Center and how it relates to the contracts with the
current and any new payers (pages 16&17).

On page 13, the Applicants state that last year the Center performed 9,800 procedures.
Additionally, on page 30, the Applicants state that they expect the utilization to grow by
3% based on the Center’s historical utilization. Please provide the Center’s last three (3)
years of annual procedures, the current year-to-date and three years projected procedures.
Please make sure they care reconciled with the projections in Financial Attachment I

(page 68).

On page 17 of the CON application, the Applicants refer to an additional “physician
utilizer.” Please explain what the Applicant means by additional “physician utilizer”.
Would that involve an additional change in owner membership of the Center?

Regarding the Financial Attachment I, on page 68, provide a crosswalk to the projected
cost savings and to the projected growth in revenues, as projected on page 17.
Additionally, please re-submit Financial Attachment [ with the headings labeled clearly
for the appropriate fiscal years and categories (with, without and incremental to the
proposal).

Please provide OHCA with a draft copy of the Asset Purchase Agreement between the
Applicants.

Please provide OHCA with a copy of the Operating Agreement referred to on page 14.

10. Please address the following regarding AmSurg:

a. Has AmSurg, or any of its affiliated entities, been the subject of legal action
pertaining to the operation of its facilities? If so, please provide the case caption,
docket number and location of each case.

b. Does AmSurg have any pending or concluded disciplinary action against them or
any of their affiliated facilities? If so, please provide details.



Diagnostic Endoscopy Center, LLC July 26, 2012
Docket Number: 12-31772-CON Page 3 of 3

In responding to the questions contained in this letter, please repeat each question before
providing your response. Paginate and date your response (e.g., each page in its entirety).
Information filed after the initial CON application submission (e.g. completeness response letter,
prefile testimony, late file submissions and the like) must be numbered sequentially from the
Applicants’ document preceding it. Please reference “Docket Number: 12-31772-CON.” Submit
one (1) original and five (5) hard copies of your response. In addition, please submit a scanned
copy of your response including all attachments on CD in an Adobe format (.pdf) and in an MS
Word format.

If you have any questions concerning this letter, please feel free to contact me at (860) 418-7012.

Sincerely,

cven W. Lazarus)::eéjﬂ—ﬁﬁﬁ&Q

Associate Health Care Analyst
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BERSHTEIN, VOLPE & McKEON P.C.
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
105 COURT STREET, THIRD FLOOR
NEW HAVEN, CONNECTICUT 06511
203-777-5800
Fax: 203-777-5806

Michele M. Volpe
Direct Dial (203) 777-6995

August 21, 2012

Steven W. Lazarus

Associate Health Care Analyst
State of Connecticut

Office of Health Care Access

410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA
P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, Connecticut 06134-0308

Re:  Certificate of Need Application; Docket Number: 12-31772-CON
Diagnostic Endoscopy, LLC and AmSurg Corp. d/b/a AmSurg Holdings, Inc.
Proposal to Change Ownership of Diagnostic Endoscopy, LLC

Dear Mr. Lazarus:

1. On page 9 of the CON application, the Applicants discuss the reason AmSurg was chosen and
the benefits of choosing AmSurg as a partner. Please provide specific examples of the benefits
that AmSurg has demonstrated in its other similar acquisitions/partnerships, specifically the two
Connecticut facilities in which it currently holds ownership interests (see page 11).

Each surgery center is unigue, and the benefits of partnering with AmSurg varies
on a center-by-center basis. As part of its post-transaction integration planning, AmSurg
conducts an assessment of each surgery center to determine areas in which AmSarg can
improve the operations of the surgery center. As a leading operator of ambulatory surgical
facilities throughout the United States, AmSurg has management, operational and clinical
expertise and programs in the areas of clinical services, quality improvement, patient
safety, continuing education, regulatory compliance, risk management and emergency
preparedness that facilities managed by physicians or smaller management companies
(such as the current manager of Diagnostic Endoscopy) cannot feasibly replicate.

For example, AmSurg provides programs and resources to each of its
approximately 225 affiliated surgery centers relating to:
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¢ Quality improvement and collection and analysis of quality data;
Benchmarking analysis comparing the center’s quality outcomes to industry
standards;

e Up to date policy and procedure manuals that meet regulatory and acereditation
requirements;

¢ Clinical experts who conduct periodic center assessments and provide hands-on
support for quality and risk management initiatives;

¢ Specialty specific quality initiatives, including programs regarding infection control,
patient safety and quality improvement;

¢ Clinical, regulatory and accreditation educational programs;

As a result of these programs, AmSarg’s affiliated surgery centers exceed industry
benchmarks with respect to quality, patient safety and patient satisfaction.

AmSurg also has significant resources in the areas of materials management,
information systems, managed care contracting, planning and development, and expense
management. For example, in September 2011, AmSurg acquired an ownership interest in
Wilton Surgery Center from the then current manager of the facility. Following the
acquisition of its ownership interest in the Wilton center, AmSurg implemented its
materials management policies and has achieved a 4.4% reduction in supply cost for the
surgery center. Similarly, in November 2011, AmSurg acquired an ownership interest in a
surgery center located in Massachusetts. Following the acquisition of its interest in that
surgery center, AmSurg has achieved a greater than 20% reduction in supply cost for that
center.

2. On page 9 of the CON application, the Applicants indicate that this proposal will produce
immediate operating cost reductions. Please reconcile that statement with the projections
presented in the Financial Attachment [ on page 68. Be sure to explain and provide assumptions
for each of the cost savings listed in Financial Attachment I.

As indicated below in the crosswalk (Attachment K), operating cost reductions
include savings in the Operating Expenses categories of Professional/Contracted Services
(estimated at 10%), Supplies and Drugs (estimated at 20%) and Other Operating Expenses
(e.g. marketing, liability insurance and legal fees) (estimated at 15%). Such savings are
based on AmSurg’s proven ability to reduce operating costs. The following transitions will
achieve costs savings: national contracting for supplies and drugs, in house Iegal and
accounting services, favorable medical waste and linen/laundry contracting, operating
efficiencies in IT and software technology, national contracting for insurance coverage and
favorable office supplies contracting and efficiencies. As indicated above in the response to
Question 1, AmSurg has achieved regional supply cost savings in local affiliated centers,

Page 103 of 171




3. Page 15 of the CON application states that the Center will benefit from AmSurg’s contracting
expertise in the areas of payers, purchasing and leasing." However, on page 18, the Applicants
state that there will be no change 1o the existing contracts. Please explain and reconcile the two
statements.

To reconcile the two statements, we highlight that the reference to “no changes to
existing contracts” is directly responding to Question 5.d. in the original CON application
which queries whether there would be any changes to the existing reimbursement contracts
as a result of the proposal. As a result of the proposal, there will be no immediate changes
to existing payer contracts. However, it is likely that some changes will occur in the future
based on AmSurg taking over contracting for Diagnostic Endescopy.

4. Additionally, please explain why there appears to be an increase over the three projected
years in Medicare population for the Center and how it relates to the contracts with the current
and any new payers (pages 16 & 17).

As indicated in response 4.b. in the original CON application, the 1% annual
increase in Medicare patient population is based on Diagnostic Endoscopy’s actual
experiences and the projected increase in the aging population.

5. Onpage 13, the Applicants state that last year the Center performed 9,800 procedures.
Additionally, on page 30, the Applicants state that they expect the utilization to grow by 3%
based on the Center’s historical utilization.* Please provide the Center’s last three (3) years of
annual procedures, the current year-to-date and three years projected procedures. Please make
sure they are reconciled with the projections in Financial Attachment I (page 68).

The last three years of annual procedures, the year-to-date procedures and the three year
projections.

Year Number of Procedures Growth from Previous Year
2008 4,552 -
2009 8,469 86% =
2010 8,840 4%
2011 9,800 11% **
2012 year to date 4,846 -
Projected 2012 10,290 5% **=
Projected 2013 10,599 3% FEEE
Projected 2014 10,917 3% ®H*=
Projected 2015 11,244 , 3% *EE*

*Growth from 2008 to 2009 was related to additional physician owners joining in
September 2008.

' Page 15 of the CON application appears to be an incorrect cross reference. Page 15 does not
reference "AmSurg’s contracting expertise in the areas of payers, purchasing and leasing.” It appears the
appropnate reference should be page 10.

? Page 30 of the CON application appears to be an incorrect cross reference. Page 30 references the
Letter of Intent. 1t appears the appropriate reference should be page 17.
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“*Growth in 2011 was related to an additional non-owner physician utilizer.

*** Projected growth in 2012 is a combination of organic growth and the addition of the
non-owner physician utilizer in 2011.

#*%* Projected growth in 2013-2015 is based solely on organic growth.

Organic growth is a reflection of (1) younger physicians achieving better throughput by
increasing efficiency and utilization; (2) growing patient bases for new physicians; and (3)
implementation of AmSurg’s scheduling systems and patient load methodologies.

6. On page 17 of the CON application, the Applicants refer to an additional “physician utilizer”.
Please explain what the Applicant means by additional “physician utilizer”, Would that involve
an additional change in owner membership of the Center?

“Additional physician utilizer” refers to the addition of a physician using the center
to perform gastroenterology and colonoscopy procedures. When a new physician joins the
group, they may do new cases at the Center. The additional physician utilizer is not an
owner. Accordingly, there was no change in ownership.

7. Regarding the Financial Attachment I, on page 68, provide a crosswalk to the projected cost
savings and to the projected growth in revenues, as projected on page 17. Additionally, please
re-submit Financial Attachment I with the headings labeled clearly for the appropriate fiscal
years and categories (with, without and incremental to the proposal).

Please see Attachment K for the crosswalk. Please see Attachment L for the
resubmitted Financial Statement I with the headings Iabeled clearly for the appropriate
fiscal year and categories. Please note the resubmitted Financial Statement I includes two
minor revisions. First, additional operating costs in the rental operating expense category
are included due to a formulaic error in which the expense did not carry over into years
2012-2015 in the original CON application. Second, a change was made in operating
expenses due to reclassification of operating expenses. Specifically, expenses in the
Professional/Contracted Services category were revised to reflect reclassification and were
integrated into the Other Operating Expenses category. Total Operating Expenses
remained the same.

8. Please provide OHCA with a draft copy of the Asset Purchase Agreement between the
Applicants.

Please see Attachment M for a draft copy of the Asset Purchase Agreement. Please
 note this Agreement is still in draft form,

9. Please provide OHCA with a copy of the Operating Agreement referred to on page 14.

Please see Attachment N for a copy of the Operating Agreement. Please note this
Agreement is still in draft form.

10. Please address the following regarding AmSurg:
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a. Has AmSurg, or any of its affiliated entities, been the subject of legal action pertaining
to the operation of its facilities? If so, please provide the case caption, docket number and
location of each case.

AmSurg and its affiliates own and operate approximately 225 surgical centers
located in 35 states and the District of Columbia, and physicians perform over 1.4 million
procedures annually at AmSurg’s affiliated surgical facilities. AmSurg and its affiliated
surgical centers are involved from time to time in routine legal matters and other claims
incidental to the operation of their businesses, including claims relating to contractual
relationships, employment related claims and medical malpractice elaims. Neither
AmSurg nor any of its affiliated surgical centers have been sanctioned or subject to
disciplinary action by a governmental authority. AmSurg is not aware of any pending or
threatened legal proceedings relating to its two affiliated surgical centers located in the
State of Connecticut.

b. Does AmSurg have any pending or concluded disciplinary action against them or any
of their affiliated facilities? If so, please provide details.

AmSurg has not received notice from any governmental or regulatory authority of
any pending or concluded disciplinary action against them or any of their affiliated
surgical facilities.
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Attachment K

Crosswalk
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Attachment L

Revised Financial Statement [
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Attachment M

Copy of the Draft Asset Purchase Agreement
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DRAFT Membership Interest Purchase Agreement

Membership Interest Purchase Agreement

This Membership Interest Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement™), dated as of __
, 2012 (the “Effective Date™), is by and among AmSurg Holdings, Inc., a Tennessee
corporation (“AmSurg”), and the members (individually “Owner” and collectively “Owners™) of
Diagnostic Endoscopy, LL.C, a Connecticut limited liability company (“DEC”), who are
identified on the signature pages attached hereto.

WHEREAS, DEC owns and operates an ambulatory surgery center located in
Stamford, Connecticut (the “Center”);

WHEREAS each Owner currently owWns th‘ mbershlp interests in DEC set

merger of DEC with and mto Diagnostic Endosex
company (the “LI.C™), in connection with w

WHEREAS, promps‘f
desires to purchase from the Owners,
to the terms and conditions contained
designated on Exhibit B (the:F

ation of the Merger, AmSurg
r.sell to AmSurg, upon and subject
rship interests in the LLC so
Surg owning a 62%

Membership Interest by AmSurg. Subject to the
ent, at the Closing (as defined in Section 3.1), the Owners

d deliver to AmSurg, and AmSurg shall purchase, acquire
chased Interests in the respective percentages (from the

shall sell, transfer,
and accept from the

y and all mortgages, pledges, liens, security interests, charges,
clalms encumbrances and rights of third parties whatsoever (“Encumbrances™).

1.2 Liabilities of DEC. The Owners will ensure that sufficient cash remains
in the Center’s operating accounts on the Closing Date to pay: (i) the full amount of all
outstanding, unpaid checks of the LLC as of the Effective Time (as defined in Section 3.1) (the
“Qutstanding Checks); (i1) amounts due to vendors that bill the LLC less often than quarterly and
relate to periods prior to the Effective Time, including tax, pension and bonus payments (the
“Vendor Payments™); (iii) accrued payroll amounts due to the personnel working at the Center
and relating to periods prior to and through the Effective Time, including tax, pension and bonus
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DRAFT Membership Interest Purchase Agreement

payments (the “Accrued Liabilities™), and (iv) the accounts payable of DEC as of the Effective
Time (the “A/P”) with a due date prior to the Closing Date or, in the absence of a definitive due
date, with an invoice date greater than or equal to 31 days prior to the Effective Time. In the
absence of a definitive invoice date for any of the A/P, the common carrier’s bill of lading or the
date of completion of services will substitute as the invoice date. The Outstanding Checks,
Vendor Payments, Accrued Liabilities and A/P, as if the Effective Time occurred on the date of
this Agreement, are each set forth on Schedule 1.2 attached hereto. Schedule 1.2 shall be
updated as of the Effective Time and mutually agreed to by the parties prior to Closing. Any
cash in excess of the amount required to be retained by the Center pursuant to this Section 1.2
shall be distributed to the Owners.

2, PURCHASE PRICE

2.1 Purchase Price. The aggregat
Interests shall be $12,583,950 (the “Purchase Price’
2.2 below. The Purchase Price shall be payable:
available funds to the accounts designated in W
The Purchase Price shall be adjusted in accordan
allocated among the Owners in the respective per

2.2 Use of Proce tedness. Schedule 2.2 sets forth a
complete listing of outstanding princip ® for borrowed money and capitalized
leases as of the Effective Date of this eme
shall incur any addition
“Indebtedness™) withet 1;116

. by an amount equal to 51xty -two
amount of outstanding Indebtedness of DEC

approval by the Connecticut Department of Public Health
ON™) for the change of ownership of the Center from DEC

Page 113 of 171




DRAFT Membership Interest Purchase Agreement

3.2 Opbligations of the Parties Prior to Closing. Prior to the Closing Date:

(a) The Owners, DEC and the LLC shall execute, deliver and file, as
applicable, the certificates of merger and agreements and plans of merger (the “Merger
Documents™), with the Secretaries of State of each of the State of Connecticut and the State of
Tennessee in order to effect the Merger, in connection with which the LLC shall be the surviving
entity, owned by the Owners with respective ownership interests identical to those identified on
Exhibit A, and retain the tax identification number and clinic licensure of DEC. Unless the
context clearly indicates otherwise, references to DEC contained in this Agreement and covering
any periods following the effectiveness of the Merger and prior.to the Closing shall be deemed to
refer to the LLC for all such periods.

(b) The Parties shall use thei
obtain all consents, if any, required under all agreeme:
Section 4.11) as a result of the fransactions cont
Significant Payors to enter into new agreeme
the existing agreements between DEC and such
Effective Time or within a reasonable time there
any necessary re-contracting with Significant Pay
Significant Payors.

ially reasonable efforts to
1ﬁcant Payors (as defined in

: vith DPH and obtain approval
T, as owned 62% by AmSurg, and the merger
h one another and will use commercially

nated that certain Management Agreement,
EC and DEC Merritt, LI.C. The termination
be accomplished pursuant to documentation that is

acceptable to
LLC.

¢ parties shall use their commercially reasonable efforts to
obtain, prior to the Closi , all other governmental and third party consents required prior
to the Closing Date for DEC and the parties hereto to consummate the transactions contemplated
by this Agreement.

3.3  Obligations of the Parties at the Closing.
(a) At the Closing, AmSurg shall deliver to the Owners:

(1) By cash, check or wire transfer of immediately available
funds, each such Owner’s respective portion of the Purchase Price as specified on Exhibit B;
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(ii) [Reserved],
(ii}  [Reserved];

(1v) A certified copy of the Articles of Organization of the LI.C,
issued by the Secretary of State of the State of Tennessee;

(v) The Operating Agreement of the LL.C in the form of
Exhibit 3.3(a)(vi) (the “Operating Agreement”), duly executed by AmSurg;

Fexistence and good standing of
e State of Tennessee; and

(vi}  Original certificate of le
AmSurg issued as of a recent date by the Secretary of States

(vii)  Such other certi gcuments as the Owners or

their counsel may reasonably request.

(b) At the Closing

)
and certified by, as applicable, the S

‘assignmients and other good and
sufficient instrument ubstance reasonably satisfactory

to AmSurg, as shall |

The Operating Agreement, duly executed by the Owners;

5‘(Vii) An updated claims history showing, at a minimum, open,
closed and reserved incidents and claims involving the Center during the previous five (5) years
prior to the Closing Date or since the date of opening of the Center, if sooner;

{viii} A CON for a change of ownership of the Center (as
majority owned 62% by AmSurg) and the merger of DEC with the LLC and all other consents,
licenses, permits, approvals, authorizations, orders and agreements listed on Schedule 4.16 that
are reasonably necessary for the continued operation of the Center by the LLC following the
Closing; and
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(ix)  Such other certificates and documents as AmSurg or its
counsel may reasonably request.

3.4  New License; Expenses of CON Approval. At the Closing, the parties
will file with the Connecticut DPH an application for an ambulatory surgery clinic license for the
Center based on the merger of DEC into the LLC and the change in ownership of the LLC (the
“New License™). The parties will cooperate with one another and will use commercially
reasonable efforts to obtain the New License for the LLC. DEC shall pay the first Twenty
Thousand Dollars (§20,000) of the costs and expenses of obtaining the CON for the change of
ownership of the LLC and the associated New License. AmSurg shall pay the next Twenty
Thousand Dollars ($20,000) of costs and expenses up to an t not to exceed Forty
Thousand Dollars ($40,000), and the parties shall split an  and expenses in excess of Forty
Thousand Dollars ($40,000), with 62% of such costs am ses to be paid by AmSurg and
38% of such costs and expenses to be paid by DEC ing the foregoing, any of the
foregoing costs and expenses that have not been ' shall be deemed to be
Vendor Payments for purposes of Section 1.2( i
use their commercially reasonable efforts to o
Closing Date, all other governmental and third part
ownership of DEC that are not required to be obtai

4. REPRESENTATION
RESPECT TO DEC

operated. The Merger was duly authorized by all necessary
the part of the Company.

Operating Agreement by wners does not, and the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby or the by will not, (a) violate any provision of, or result in the creation of
any lien or security interest under, or violate any provision of, or result in a requirement for any
consent under, any material agreement, indenture, instrument, lease, security agreement,
mortgage or other agreement to which DEC is a party or by which any of DEC’s assets or
properties are bound, which violation or lien would have a material adverse effect on the
business or operations of DEC; (b) violate any provision of the certificate of organization or
operating agreement of DEC; (c) violate any order, arbitration award, judgment, writ, injunction,
decree, statute, rule or regulation applicable to DEC, which violation would have a material
adverse effect on the business or operations of DEC; or (d) violate any other contractual or legal
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obligation or restriction to which DEC is subject, which violation would have a material adverse
effect on the business or operations of DEC.

4.3  Expenses of Operating the Center. Schedule 4.3 sets forth all material
on-going expenses of DEC as of the Effective Date, including the expenses of operating the
Center, and also reflects the manner in which the Owners currently propose to allocate the
operating expenses of the Center following the Closing Date.

4.4  Financial Information. The Owners have delivered to AmSurg:
(a) statements of charges and cash receipts for DEC by month for the year ended December 31,
2011, and the five (5) months ended May 31, 2012, (b) unau

2012, and (e) details of outstanding patient acco
shall be provided at Closing, all of which are
together with the Ongoing Financial [nformat
7.1(b), hereinafter collectively referred to as ¢

to, as prepared in accordance with hi
material respects the revenues and ex

Hatsoever type, kind, description
Encumbrances and no conditions ex1st

4.6 es or Adverse Conditions. Except as and to the extent set
forth in Schedule 4.6 or reflected in the Financial Information, DEC has no liabilities or
obligations of any nature except for liabilities and obligations incurred in the ordinary course of
business since May 31, 2012 and which are not material in nature, whether absolute, accrued,
contingent or otherwise and whether due or to become due (including without limitation
liabilities for taxes and interest, penalties and other charges payable with respect thereto).
Furthermore, neither DEC nor the Owners have reason to know of any basis for the assertion
against DEC of any such material liability or obligation of any nature not {ully reflected in the
Financial Information. To the knowledge of the Owners, there are no conditions existing with
respect to any of DEC’s facilities, properties, assets or personnel, which might matertally and
adversely affect any of DEC’s properties or business.
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47  Absence of Certain Changes. Since May 31, 2012, except as set forth on
Schedule 4.7 hereto or as contemplated by the terms of this Agreement, DEC has not:

(a) suffered any material adverse change in its working capital,
financial condition, assets, liabilities or business, or suffered any material casualty loss (whether
or not insured);

(b} made any change in its business or operations or in the manner of
conducting its business, other than changes in the ordinary course of business;

s (whether absolute, accrued,
ept in the ordinary course of
any assumptions or methods of

(c) incurred any obligations or hab'-'
contingent or otherwise and whether due or to become due):
business and consistent with past practice, or made any ¢
calculating any bad debt, contingency or other reserve:

encumbrance or
ue or to become due),

isfied any clainy
otherwise and whet

(d) paid, discharged of
liability (whether absolute, accrued, continge
other than claims, liens, encumbrances or liabilit

1
were paid, discharged or satisfied sin
consistent with past practice, or

May 31,2012 inthe o

i 4 s or accounts receivable or any
portion thereof, except fo rdinary course of business consistent with past

practice;

rred or conveyed any of its properties or assets, except
in the ordinary ce i onsistent with past practice;

any capital expenditures or commitments in excess of
1e aggregate for replacements or additions to property, plant,
‘assets;

$10,000 per item or $50;6
equipment or intangible capi

(i) declared, paid or made or set aside for payment of, any distribution
in respect of its outstanding equity interests other than distributions made in the ordinary course
of business consistent with past practice or made pursuant fo the terms of this Agreement, or
directly or indirectly redeemed, purchased or otherwise acquired any of its equity interests;

] made any change in any method of accounting or accounting
practice;
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X granted any increase in the compensation of any officer, employee
or agent of DEC (including without limitation any increase pursuant to any bonus, pension, profit
sharing or other plan or commitment), other than increases in the ordinary course of business
consistent with past practice, or adopted any such plan or other arrangement; and no such
increase or the adoption of any such plan or arrangement, is planned or required, other than year-
end salary adjustments consistent with past practice; and

) agreed, whether in writing or otherwise, to take any action
described in this Section 4.7.

ocal tax returns required to be
ension therefor) and has paid all
ise, uncmployment, social

4.8 Taxes. DEC has filed all federal, state;¢
filed by it through the Effective Date {or has obtained a valic
taxes and assessments (including without limitation in
security, occupation, franchise, property, sales and use

n, investigation or
Z fore any court, legislative or
administrative tribunal or governmental: ig the validity of this Agreement
or the Operating Agreement or Wthh i

a material adverse effec

before any court, leg
since January 1, 2008

: ntal bodies or agencies (federal, state or local)
oting DEC or the operations of the Center. DEC has

which are required for the"ownership and Opera‘uon of the Center (“Llcenses and Permits”), and
such Licenses and Permits are listed on Schedule 4.10. DEC is in eompllance in all material
respects with such Licenses and Permits. The Owners know of no act or omission occurring on
or before the Effective Date which would subject DEC or the Center to the reasonable likelihood
of any fine or suspension of any license, permit, certificate, authorization or agreement,

4.11 Contracts; Significant Payors. Schedule 4.11 is a complete and accurate
list of all individual payors, or group of affiliated payors, that accounted for more than five
percent (5%) of the Center’s revenues in any two of the previous three (3) calendar years or is
expected to account for more than five percent (5%) of the Center’s revenues in the current
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calendar year or the next calendar year (“Significant Payors™).

Except as set forth in Schedule 4.11, all material contracts, agreements and
instruments, including, but not limited to, third party administrator agreements and agreements
with Significant Payors, to which DEC is a party, are in full force and effect; there have been no
cancellations thereof threatened nor outstanding disputes thereunder; and neither DEC nor to the
Owners” knowledge, any other party thereto has, breached any provision of, nor does there exist
any default by DEC or, to the Owners’ knowledge, any other party thereto, or event (including
the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby) which is, or with the giving of notice or the passage of time or both would
be reasonably likely to become, a breach or default under the:erms of any such contract,
instrument or agreement.

4.12  Accounts Receivable. All accc
whether reflected in the Financial Information or
services actually provided by DEC in the ordina
the Owners, are current and collectible in the ¢
their respective terms, but the Owners do not herel
receivables; and (iii) are not subject to any counte

(a) sets forth the names and titles of all employees

d the annual rate of compensation (including bonuses) being
e most recent practicable date. The employees listed on

the employees who are reasonably necessary to the continued
10w being conducted.

paid to each such e
Schedule 4.15(a) cons
operation of the Center as

(b) Schedule 4.15(b) hereto contains a list of each employment, bonus,
deferred compensation, pension, stock option, stock appreciation right, profit sharing or
retirement plan, arrangement or practice and each other agreement or fringe benefit plan,
arrangement or practice applicable to such employees, whether formal or informal, whether
legally binding or not and whether affecting one or more employees. Copies of each such
agreement or plan have heretofore been delivered to AmSurg. DEC has no commitment,
whether formal or informal, and whether legally binding or not (i) to create any additional such
agreement, plan, arrangement or practice; (ii) to modify or change any such agreement,
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arrangement, plan or practice; or (iii) to maintain for any period of time any such agreement,
arrangement, plan or practice, except as described on Schedule 4.15(b).

(c) Schedule 4.15(c) hereto contains a list of all material services
provided to DEC for which DEC contracts with third parties. Copies of each such material
agreement previously have been provided to AmSurg. Schedule 4.15(c) contains a description of
each such oral agreement.

4.16 Consents and Approvals. Except as set forth on Schedule 4.16, DEC has
obtained all consents, licenses, permits, approvals, authorizations, orders and agreements from
all third parties, including federal, state and local governmental tinits or any other entity,
necessary for the authorization, execution and performanceiof this Agreement, or for the
continued operation of the Center and governmental rei nt of the Center following the

hedule, exhibit, list,
this Agreement by

certificate or other instrument or document de
or on behalf of the Owners or DEC, contains
state any material fact required to be stated herein or therei 1 the statements,
i 1 or therein not m
event, condition or fact that DEC
aterially adversely affect the

and Owners have not withheld from ‘A
or Owners know, or have reasonable

NS AND WARRANTIES OF THE OWNERS

severally and not jointly, represents and warrants as follows:

5.1  Authority; Ownership. Such Owner has full authority to enter into and
carry out the provisions of this Agreement, and this Agreement, when executed, will constitute a
valid and binding legal obligation enforceable against him or her in accordance with its terms.

5.2  No Violation. The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the other
agreements executed in connection herewith by the Owners does not, and the consummation of
the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby will not (a) violate any provision of, or result in
the creation of any lien or security interest under, any agreement, indenture, instrument, lease,
security agreement, mortgage or lien to which such Owner is a party or by which any of such
Owner’s assets or properties are bound; (b) violate any order, arbitration award, judgment, writ,
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injunction, decree, statute, rule or regulation applicable to such Owner; or (¢) violate any other
contractual or legal obligation or restriction to which such Owner is subject.

5.3  Licenses and Health Care Matters. If such Owner is a physician, he or
she maintains a current license to practice medicine in the State of Connecticut, has not been
excluded from participation in the Medicare program or any other governmental health care
program for any reason, and has not been convicted of any crime in violation of any state or
Federal law related to health care matters. Such Owner has no knowledge of any circumstances
or conditions that could have a material adverse impact on the operations of the Center or the
medical practices of the Owners (other than conditions which might have a material adverse
effect on the health care industry in general). Such Owner knows'of no relationship of any
Owner that would violate the provisions of Section 7.7 her

5.4  Title to Purchased Interests, F
Purchased Interests being sold by such Owner to A
of all mortgages, pledges, liens, security interest
third parties, and no conditions exist which co
security interest, defect, charge, encumbrance o
Purchased Interests.

6.

ull power and authority to enter into this

S d carry out the transactions contemplated
formance by AmSurg of this Agreement and the

vlated hereby have been duly authorized and approved

ement, when executed, will constitute a legal, valid

nforceable against it in accordance with its terms.

. The execution and delivery of this Agreement by AmSurg
does not, and the consum 1 of the transactions contemplated hereby will not, (a} violate any
provision of, or result in the creation of any lien or security interest under, any agreement,
indenture, instrument, lease, security agreement, mortgage or lien to which AmSurg or any of its
affiliates s a party or by which any of their respective assets or properties are bound, which
violation or lien would have a material adverse effect on the ability of AmSurg to consummate
the transactions and perform the obligations contemplated hereby, or on the operations of the
LLC following the Closing Date; (b) violate any provision of the Charter or Bylaws of AmSurg
or any of its affiliates to the extent any such violation may have a material adverse effect on the
ability of AmSurg to consummate the transactions and perform the obligations contemplated
hereby, or on the operations of the LLC following the Closing Date; (c) violate any order,
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arbitration award, judgment, writ, injunction, decree, statute, rule or regulation applicable to
AmSurg or any of its affiliates, which violation would have a material adverse effect on the
ability of AmSurg to consummate the fransactions and perform the obligations contemplated
hereby, or on the operations of the LLC following the Closing Date; or (d) violate any other
contractual or legal obligation or restriction to which AmSurg or any of its affiliates is subject,
which violation would have a material adverse effect on the ability of AmSurg to consummate
the transactions and perform the obligations contemplated hereby, or on the operations of the
LLC following the Closing Date.

6.4  Litigation. There is no claim, litigation, investigation or proceeding
pending or, to AmSurg’s knowledge, threatened against AmSurgor any of its affiliates at law or
in equity or before any court, legislative or administrative; al or governmental agency
which questions the validity of this Agreement or which ely determined or publicly
disclosed, would have a material adverse effect on the

fact or omits
statements,

6.6 No Broker s Fee .
anything to cause or in ili gation stmen 'ankmg, brokerage finder’s,
agent’s or other fees, :

: >onsummation of the
not know of any claim by anyone for such a

3, as amended, and will acquire the
not with a view to a sale or distribution of thereof in
nended, and the rules and regulations thereunder any

ial, healthcare and busmess matters to be capable of

s investment in DEC, is able to bear the economic risks of its
EC, and is financially able to hold the Purchased Interests for
‘to suffer a complete loss of such investment.

investment and particip
an indefinite period of tim

7. COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS OF THE OWNERS
The Owners covenant and agree that from the Effective Date until the Closing,
and thereafter if so specified, they will fulfill the following covenants and agreements unless

otherwise consented to by AmSurg in writing;

7.1 Access; Further Assurances.
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(a) The Owners will accord to AmSurg, its counsel, accountants and
other representatives, from the Effective Date and at any time until the Closing, reasonable
access on prior written notice to all of the properties, books, contracts, commitments, financial
information and records of the Center, and will furnish AmSurg during such period with all such
information concerning the business and operations of the Center, as AmSurg reasonably may
request. At any time and from time to time after the Closing, at AmSurg’s request and expense
{(but without further consideration hereunder), the Owners agree to execute and deliver such
certificates and documents as may be reasonably required in connection with any audit of the
Center or its operations.

sing, as soon as reasonably
ter than the 15th day of the next
d statement of income for

(b} From the Effective Date until {
practicable after the end of each quarter, as applicable, but:
succeeding month, the Owners will deliver to AmSurg &

patient accounts receivable for the Center as at the
Financial Information”). In addition, as soon as.

onably practicable
ucceeding month, the'Qwners will deliver to

AmSurg a statement of (1) the number of proced
(iii) the cash collections, all with respect to the pri
Information™) (the Ongoing Quarterly Fi
Information are collectively referred
Ongoing Financial Information shall be:
practices of DEC.

request and expense (
deliver such other ins

eyance, assignment and delivery and
casonably deem necessary or desirable in

rg's. title to, the Purchased Interests, and to assist
ijoying all benefits with respect thereto.

event the transactions contemplated by this Agreement are
¢ Owners promptly will return to AmSurg all records and
information provided td rs from AmSurg, and shall cause DEC and the LLC to return
all records and informatio ided to any such entity from AmSurg, and the Owners will, and
shall cause DEC and the LLC to, treat all such records and information as confidential.

(b) Except as otherwise required by law (including in connection with
the CON application filed with DPH with respect to the transactions conteraplated hereby), the
Owners will not, and shall cause DEC and the LLC not to, disclose at any time to any other
person not an employee, agent or representative of AmSurg, DEC or the LLC (or a person
otherwise involved in the carrying out of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement), nor
make any public announcement of, the transactions or terms of the transactions contemplated by
this Agreement.
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{(c) The provisions of this Section 7.2 shall survive a termination of
this Agreement pursuant to Section 12.1 below.

7.3  Conduct of Business Pending the Closing. From the Effective Date until
the Closing, and except as otherwise consented to by AmSurg in writing, DEC shall not, and the
Owners shall cause DEC not to:

(a) fail to maintain in effect insurance coverage of the assets of the
Center at minimum levels consistent with past practices and as in effect immediately prior to the
Effective Date; or

aintain the assets of the Center
omply with all applicable
and (ii1) operate its business

(b) fail to use good faith efforts to
in their present condition, reasonable wear and tear ex
laws, rules and regulations of governmental agencies ot
as a going concern consistent with prior practice and in the ordin

shall arrange fo
and the LLC as named insureds;
of subparagraphs (a) and (b) with
fessional liability insurance). 1f

provided, however, that AmSurg may
respect to each type of insurance cover:
AmSurg implements subpara
with reasonable prio
expense, with a certifi
writing by AmSurg,

yvmers shall have the continuing obligation to
Schedules being delivered by the Owners pursuant to this

at the date of this A
Schedules.

7.7  Ownership and Investment Restrictions. No Owner or any affiliate of
any Owner shall, until the later of (i) five (5) years from the date of this Agreement, or (ii) with
respect to any Owner who is a member of the LLC, two (2) years after such Owner ceases to be a
member of the LLC:

(a) directly or indirectly have an ownership interest in, or manage,
lease, develop or otherwise have any financial interest in any business or entity competing or
planning to compete with the LLC (including, but not limited to, any ambulatory surgery center
or any physician office in which surgical procedures are performed and for which facility fees,
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tray fees or other fees in addition to standard professional fees are charged) within a twenty-five
(25) mile radius of the Center (the “Market Area™), or

(b) in the case of a physician, become an employee of a
hospital or an affiliate of a hospital that is located within the Market Area, or enter into any
contract or other arrangement (whether as a result of his or her employment or otherwise) that
requires or incentivizes him or her to perform procedures at any hospital or facility affiliated
with a hospital in the Market Area; provided that an Owner or affiliate of an Owner may become
an employee of a hospital or hospital affiliate and may receive compensation paid by such a
hospital or affiliate that does not require such Owner or affiliate:to perform ambulatory surgical
procedures at the employing hospital or affiliate and which ¢ mpensation is not based, in whole
or in part, on ambulatory surgery referrals to or procedures rmed at the employing hospital
or affiliate.

The foregoing shall not prohibit an; wner or any
owning shares of capital stock constituting les
stock of any corporation whose common stoc

iliate of any Owner from (i)
‘one percent (1% he outstandmg capital

n'7.7 does not requ
es at the Center or to refer
patients to the Center, and imposes no procedures are performed or

where referrals are made.

¢ the right to injunctive relief if there is such
. in the event any Owner or any affiliate of any Owner
Such person shall pay to the LLC, as liquidated

five (5) times the LLC Profit (as defined in the Operating
expense for the preceding twelve (12) calendar months,
incipal Indebtedness (as defined in the Operating
Agreement), with this tiplied by such person’s pro rata direct or indirect percentage
ownership interest in the *{or such person’s ownership interest in the LL.C immediately prior
to the termination of his or her membership in the LLC), it being acknowledged by the parties
that the damages to the LLC in such event would be difficult to ascertain.

damages, an
Agreement) plus
minus (b) the LLC’

This Section 7.7 shall terminate in its entirety upon a termination of this
Agreement in accordance with Section 12.1 below.

7.8 Section 754 Election. The Owners agree that the LLC will make an
election under § 754 of the Internal Revenue Code effective for the taxable period ending on the
Closing Date.
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7.9  Employment Agreements. From the date of this Agreement until
Closing, neither DEC nor the LLC shall enter into any employment agreement with any
employee without the prior written consent of AmSurg, which may be granted or withheld in
AmSurg’s sole discretion.

8. COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS OF AMSURG

AmSurg further covenants and agrees that from the Effective Date until the
Closing, unless otherwise consented fo by the Owners in writing, it will fulfill the following
covenants and agreements:

plated by this Agreement are
the Owners all records and
C, and shall cause its affiliates

(a) In the event the transactions g
not consummated for any reason, AmSurg promptly wi

to return all records and information provided to
LLC, and AmSurg will, and shall cause its aff
confidential.

contemplated by this Agreement), nor
terms of the transactions contemplated

nsimmate the transactions contemplated
lﬁlled or performed (unless expressly

. The'tepresentations and warranties made by the Owners in
contained in the Schedules attached hereto or in any
delivered by the Owners pursuant to this Agreement shall
f the time of the Closing as though such representations and
f the Closing.

be true when made ans
warranties were made at

9.2  Performance by the Owners. The Owners shall have performed and
complied with all covenants, agreements, obligations and conditions required by this Agreement
to be so complied with or performed by each of them.

9.3  Delivery of Documents. The Owners shall have delivered to AmSurg the

certificates, instruments and other documents required to be delivered by them pursuant to
Section 3.3(b).
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9.4  Material Adverse Effect. Since the date of this Agreement, there shall
not have occurred any event or condition of any character which has resulted in a material
adverse effect, or may reasonably be expected to result in a material adverse effect, on the
business, operations, financial condition or prospects of DEC, the LLC or the Center.

10. CONDITIONS TO THE OWNERS’ OBLIGATIONS

The Owners shall not be obligated to consummate the transactions contemplated
hereby unless each of the following conditions is fulfilled or performed (unless expressly waived
in writing by the Owners) prior to or at the Closing:

anties made by AmSurg in this
hereto or in any instrument,
reement shall be true when
ntations and warranties were

10.1 Compliance. The representations and:
Agreement and the statements contained in the Sched
list, certificate or writing delivered by AmSurg pursusdnt
made and at and as of the time of the Closing as theugh such rep
made at and as of the Closing.

1] ed and complied
complied

with or performed by AmSurg.

103  Delivery of Doc
certificates, instruments and other doe
Section 3.3(a).

ave delivered to the Owners the
vered by AmSurg pursuant to

11.

rs. The Owners, jointly and severally
and warranties contained in Article 5
shall be severally 11able for solely their own

ents and’expenses of attorneys, accountants and other
., “Losses™), directly or indirectly relating to, resulting from or

professional adv
arising out of:

Closing Date.

(b)  Any untrue representation, misrepresentation, breach of warranty
or non-fulfillment of any covenant, agreement or other obligation by or of any Owner contained
herein, any Schedule hereto or in any certificate, document or instrument delivered to AmSurg
pursuant hereto.

(c) Any tax liability of DEC or the LLC not previously paid, which
may at any time be asserted or assessed against DEC or the LL.C for any event or period prior to
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the Closing Date (regardless of whether the possibility of the assertion or assessment of any such
tax liability shall have been disclosed to AmSurg at or prior to the Closing).

(d)  Liability for any amounts owed by DEC or the LLC to any
governmental third party or private payors because of overpayments to DEC or the LLC for
services rendered to patients prior to the Effective Time, which liability is due to a recomputation
of rates, field audit adjustments, overpayments or otherwise.

(e) Any other Loss incidental to any of the foregoing.

11.2 Indemnmification by AmSurg. AmSu
indemnify and hold harmless the Owners, and shall reimbuzs
Losses directly or indirectly relating to, resulting from

(a)
or non-fulfillment of any covenant, agreement
herein, or in any certificate, document or ins

(b)
11.3  Procedure.

by agrees to defend,
Owners for, from and against

Sections 11.1 or 11.2
third party claim, des
expense to assume
party. The 1ndem111ﬁed

action or proceeding is a
party will have the right at its

for, all further defense : ird party claim, demand, action or proceeding; and (ii) the
maximum liability of the ifying party relating to such third party claim, demand, action or
proceeding shall be the amotint of the proposed settlement if the amount thereafter recovered
from the indemnified party on such third party claim, demand, action or proceeding is greater
than the amount of the proposed settlement.

(b)  Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Owner shall be required to
indemnify AmSurg for any amount in excess of his or her respective portion of the Purchase
Price.

(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing, (i) the Owners shall not be
obligated to make any indemnification under Section 11.1 unless the aggregate amount of Losses
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exceeds $50,000 (the “Basket™), and such indemnification with respect to such Losses shall be
made by the Owners only to the extent of such excess over the Basket; provided, that the Basket
shall not apply to any claim that would constitute a breach of the representation and warranty
contained in Section 4.19, and (ii)) AmSurg shall not be obligated to make any indemnification
under Section 11.2 unless the aggregate amount of Losses exceeds the Basket, and such
indemnification with respect to such Losses shall be made by AmSurg only to the extent of such
excess over the Basket.

12.  TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT; SURVIVAL

ate in its entirety upon written
ons contemplated by this

13, or such other date as the
nt to Section 9.4, provided that

12.1 Termination. This Agreement shall
notice from one party to the other in the event (i) that the
Agreement have not been consummated on or before
partics may mutually agree, (i) of a material adverse
the parties may agree to close over any such mat

breach within
rminated

reimburse DEC and the Owners for t
limitation, attorney’s fees, incurred b
transactions contemplated hereby.

behalf of any party here
Closing Date except. for

ectlon 11. 1(a) and Section 11.1(b) with
i contalned in Sections 4 6 and 4.9, with

1 by any party hereto of any other rights or the seeking of any
rties hereto.

other remedies against
13. MISCELLANEOUS

13.1 Expenses. Except as otherwise provided herein, all fees and expenses
incurred by DEC and the Owners, including without limitation legal fees and expenses, in
connection with this Agreement will be borme by the Owners and all fees and expenses incurred
by AmSurg, including without limitation legal fees and expenses, in connection with this
Agreement will be borne by AmSurg.
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13.2  Assignability; Parties in Interest. No party may assign, transfer or
otherwise dispose of any of its respective rights hereunder without the prior written consent of
the other parties hereto; provided, however, that with the prior written approval of a majority of
the Owners (such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, denied or delayed), AmSurg may
assign this Agreement to an affiliate. All the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall be
binding upon, shall inure to the benefit of and shall be enforceable by the respective heirs,
successors, assigns and legal or personal representatives of the parties hereto.

13.3  Entire Agreement; Amendments; Waiver. This Agreement, including
the exhibits, Schedules, lists and other documents and writings referred to herein or delivered
pursuant hereto, which form a part hereof, contains the entin rstanding of the parties with
respect to its subject matter. There are no restrictions, ag s, promises, warranties,
covenants or undertakings other than those expressly s rein or therein. This Agreement

signed by the party entitled to the benefits thereo
or times to require performance of an; T
provision hereof, shall in no manne
time to enforce the same.

If ta the

With a copy to:

Bernstein, Voipe & McKeg
105 Court Street

New Haven, CT 06902
Adttn: Michele M. Volpe, Esa.
Fax: 203-777-5806

If to AmSurg:

AmSurg Holdings, Inc.

20 Burton Hills Boulevard
Nashville, TN 37215

Attn: Christepher R. Kelly
Fax: (615) 665-0755
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With a copy to:

‘Bass, Berry & Sims PLC

150 Third Avenue South, Suite 2800
Nashville, TN 37201

Aftn; J. James Jenkins, Jr., Esqg.
Fax: (B15) 742-2736 -

or to such other address as any party may have furnished to the others in writing in accordance herewith, except that notices of
change of address shall only be effective upon receipt.

13.6  Section and Other Headings. The section and other headings contained
in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not in any way affect the meaning or
interpretation of this Agreement.

xecuted in any number of
=d. however, that the several

13.7 Counterparts. This Agreement ma

this Agreement, that they have relie
and that neither party has relied on th
expressly agree that there shall be no

prepared in whole or in i

enforced in accordan
laws rules.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOPF, the parties have duly executed this Agreement as of
the date first above written.
AMSURG HOLDINGS, INC.
By:

Name:
Title:

OWNERS:

Stuart Waldstreicher, MD

Peter Gardner, MD

Renald Cirilio, MD

William Pintauro, MD

Neda Khaghan, MD

Felice Zwas, MD

Nelson Bonheim, MD

Alan Selki
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EXHIBIT A

Stuart Waldstreicher, MD 12.5%

Peter Gardner, MD 12.5%

Ronaid Cirillo, MD 12,5%

Wiliiam Pintauro, MD 12.5%

Neda Khaghan, MDD 12.5% .
Felice Zwas, MD 12.5% '
Nelson Benheim, MD 12.5%

Alan Selkin, MD 12.5%
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EXHIBIT B
Stuart Waldstreicher, MD - T775%
Peter Gardner, MD 7.75%
Ronaid Cirilto, MD 7.75%
Wiliiam Pintauro, MD 7.75%
Neda Khaghzn, MD 7.75%
Felice Zwas, MD 7.75%
Nelson Bonheim, MD 7.75%
Alan Selkin, MD 7.75%
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EXHIBIT 3.3(a)(vi)
Operating Agreement of the LLC

[Atached]
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Copy of the Operating Agreement
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OPERATING AGREEMENT OF
DIAGNOSTIC ENDOSCOPY, LLC
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THIS OPERATING AGREEMENT (the
“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the ____ day of
, 2012, by and between AmSurg Holdings, Inc., a
Tennessee corporation ("AmSurg”), and each of the other
persons listed as ‘Owners” on the signature page to this
Agreement (‘Owners”} (each of AmSurg and Owners,
together with the other persons who may become members
under the terms of this Agreement, a “Member’ and
collectively, the “Mambers”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Members caused to be formed a
limited liability company under and pursuant to the Act (as
defined below) to conduct certain business as a limited
liabifity company and desire to set forth their mutual rights
and obligations in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Diagnostic Endoscopy, LLC, a
Connecticut limited liability company, recently merged with
and into the LLC, and the Owners have sold to AmSurg a
portion of their membership interesis in the LEC pursuant to
a Membership Interest Purchase Agreement, dated the date
hereof.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the
mutual promises, covenants and underiakings hereinafter
contained, and other good and valuable consideration, the
receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged,
the Members hereby agree as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS

When used in this Agreement, the followi
shali have the meanings set forth below:
1.1, “Act” means th
Limited Liability :Com
Sections 48-249-101

13 “Affiliated P
individual physician
indirectly through another*Entity has an
ownership interest in the LLC, is an
Immediate Family Member of any
individual who directly or indirectly through
another Entity has an ownership interest in
the LLC, or is a grantor, trustee or
beneficiary of any trust that is a Member.

1.4. “Agent” means any agent of the
LLC, including any officer, director,

employee, independent contractor, or agent
of a Member acting on behalf of the LL.C.

L5. “Agreement” means this Operating
Agreement, as amended from time to time.

1.6. “AmSurg” has the meaning set forth
in the introductory paragraph hereof.

1.7. “AmSurg Corp.” means AmSurg
Corp., a Tennessee corporation and the sole

cles of Organization” means
f Organization of the LLC filed
tary of State of the State of

ses, capital expenditures and
encies (which may include debt
service on LLC indebtedness and fees
ayable to Affiliates); provided, however,
at proceeds from the disposition of all or
ibstantially all of the LLC’s capital assets
shall not be included in Awvailable Cash
Flow.

1.10. “Board” means the Board of
Directors of the LLC.

1.11.  “Book Capital Account” has the
meaning given to such term in Section 4.3
hereof.

1.12.  “Capital Contribution” in respect
of any Member means the amount of all
cash and other property, tangible or
intangible, contributed by such Member to
the capital of the LLC. The initial capital
account balance for each Member shall be as
set forth on Exhibit A.

113, “Center” means the ambulatory
surgery center operated by the LLC and
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located in Stamford, Connecticut, including

the  real  property, or  leasehold
improvements, furniture, fixtures, the
Equipment, books, records, supplies,

accounts receivable, goodwill, other
intangibles and other assets used in ifs
operation.

1.14.  “Code” means the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended from time to
time, any corresponding provisions of any
successor legislation, and the regulations
adopted thereunder.

1.15.  “Director” means, individually, any
natural person serving on the Board.

1.16.  “Dissolution
meaning given to such term in Section 13.2
hereof.

1.17.  “Entity” means any co

Center.

1.19.  “Financial

claims to Medicare for se
by or at the direction of Owners, becoming
illegal, (b)the existence of a substantial
likelihood that the receipt of «cash
distributions from the LLC to Owners is or
will be found to be in violation of federal or
state law, or (c) the ownership by Owners of
Membership Interests in the LLC becoming
illegal.

Event” has the:

121, “Governance Rights” means all of
a Member’s rights as a member of the LL.C
other than Financial Rights and the right to
assign Financial Rights.

1.22.  “Immediate Family Member”
means an individual’s spouse, siblings,
lIineal ancestors and lineal descendants and
shall include step relations.

1.23. “Inf rmatmn has the meam'ng

means Diagnostic
a Tennessee limited

period
basis in
accepted
ided, that in

given to such term in Section 8.2 hereof.

1.27.  “Medical Director” means the
person appointed by Owners and approved
by the Board pursuant to Section 8.3.1 to
provide medical supervision and to
coordinate  professional and clinical
activities at the Center.

1.28. “Members” has the meaning set
forth in the introductory paragraph hereof.

1.29.  “Membership Interest” means a
Member’s interest in the LLC, which when
expressed as a percentage of all Membership
Interests in the LLC shall be equal to such
Member’s Membership Percentage. The
Membership Interest shall consist of (a) the
Member’'s  Financial = Rights, (b)the
Member’s right to assign Financial Rights to
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the extent permitted under this Agreement,
and (c) the Member’s Governance Rights.

1.30.  “Membership Percentage” means
the percentage interest of a Member as
shown on Exhibit A, as amended from time
to time as provided in Section 4.8 or 12.9
hereof or as otherwise required by this
Agreement or the Code.

1.31.  “New Member” has the meaning
given such term in Section 12.7 hereof.

132.  “Officers” means the President,
Vice Presidents, Treasurer, Secretary, and

any other person appointed to be an officer
by the Board of the LLC.

133, “Owners” has the meaning set fort
in the infroductory paragraph hereof.

1.34.  “Performance Impr
Chairman” means the person appe
Owners and approved by the B
provide oversight and coordinate®

135.  “Prime Rate? 1r
interest equal to the primi
from tune to_time by

1.37. “Responsil; e
meaning given to such
249-115(a)(6) of the Act.

138. “Successor” means a Member’s
executor, administrator, guardian,
conservator, other legal representative or
successor in interest.

Section 48-

1.39.  “Tax Capital Account” has the
meaning given to such term in Section 4.4
hereof.

1.40.  “Tax Matters Member” has the
meaning given to such term in Section 11.6
hereof and shall also mean the “tax matters
partner” as that term is used in the Code.

141, “Treasury Regulations” includes
proposed, temporary and final regulations
promulgated under the Code.

1.42. “Trlggermg Event” has the
meaning given to such term in Section 8.11

the Secretary of State of the
essee. This Agreement shall

upon execution by the
as of the date first above written.

Adoption of Agreement. The
Members hereby adopt this Agreement as
the operating agreement of the LLC, as the
rm “operating agreement” is used in the
Act, to set forth the rules, regulations and
provisions regarding the management of the
business of the LLC, the governance of the
LLC, the conduct of its business and the
rights and privileges of its members. The
operating agreement of the LLC shall be in
writing, and the terms of the operating
agreement shall be as set forth in this
Agreement.

23.  Name. The name of the LLC shall be
Diagnostic Endoscopy, LL.C. The LL.C may
adopt and conduct its business under such
assumed or trade names as the Members
may from time to time determine. The LI.C
shall file any assumed or fictitious name
certificates as may be required to conduct
business in any state.
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24.  Principal Place of Business. The
initial registered agent of the LLC shall be
Claire M. Gulmi. The initial registered
office and the principal executive office of
the LLC shall be 20 Burton Hills Boulevard,
Davidson County, Nashville, Tennessee
37215.

3. PURPOSES AND POWERS

3.1.  Purposes. The purposes of the LLC
shall be to own and operate the Center and
to carry on any and all activities necessary,
proper, convenient or advisable
connection therewith.

3.2, Powers. The LLC may exercise all

powers necessary or convenient to carry out

its business and affairs and to effectuate the
purposes  set forth in Sectlon 3. 1 Vhereof

practicing physician
the Center with reg
patient care. Further,

contributed capital to the LLC in the amount

set forth opposite such Member’s name on
Exhibit A hereto.

42.  Additional Contributions.
Members shall make additional Capital
Contributions as may be determined from
time to time by the Board in an amount
proportional  to  their = Membership
Percentages. The timing, amount and terms

of such additional Capital Contributions
shall be determined by the Board. The
Capital Contributions of each Member shall
be made on the same terms and conditions.

4.3, Book Capital Accounts. FEach
Member shall have a capital account to
which the fair market value of such
Member’s Capital Contribution shall be
credited (the “Book Capital Account™). Each
Member’s: share of the income, including

. Al
Member shall be charged
0ok Capital Account.

Any Capital Coi
Member or made out of *§

ax Capital Accounts. The capital
., for the Members for federal
. purposes (the “Tax Capital
all be maintained and adjusted
with the principles set forth in
Section 1.704-
1(b)(2)(1v and the items of income, profit,
_galn expenditures, deductions, losses,
istributions and contributions  which
trease or decrease such Tax Capital
s Accounts shall be those items which,
pursuant to such provision, affect the

balance of capital accounts.
Any Capital Contributions made solely by one
Member or made out of proportion to the Membership

Percentages shall be treated as a lean to the LLC and shall
not affect the balance of the Tax Capital Accounts.

4.5. LLC Loans. Subject to Section 7.3,
AmSurg or an Affiliate thereof may, from
time to time and as it deems necessary, lend,
or arrange for the LLC to borrow, additional
working capital sufficient to enable the LL.C
to carry on its business as contemplated by
Article 3 hereof.

Any loan by AmSurg or an Affiliate therecf to the
LLC made for working capital purposes shall be evidenced
by a promissory note which shall bear interest at a rate equal
to one-half percentage point over the Prime Rate and which
shall contain other terms substantially similar to those which
might be agreed {o with a non-affiliated lender. Any required
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manthly payments (including any past due amounts} under
any such loan by the LLC or any other party shall be made
before any distributions of Available Cash Flow are made to
the Members pursuant fo Section 6.3 hereof.

4.6, Withdrawal or Reduction of
Members’ Capital Contributions. No
Member shall have the right to withdraw
from the LL.C. A Member shall not receive
out of the LLC’s property all or any part of
such Member’s Capital Contributions except
as provided in Sections 6.3 and 13.3 hereof.

4.7. Interest and Preferential Rights.
Except with respect to any loans made
pursuant to Sections 4.3, 4.4 and 4.5 hereof,
no interest shall accrue on any Capital
Contributions and no Member shall have
any preferential rights with respect to
distributions or upon dissolution of the LLC.

4.8. Membership Interests
Amendments to Exhibit A. Eac
shall be credited with the Me

5.1. Organizational *
Member shall bear its own expenses
incurred in connection with the preparation,
review, and negotiation of this Agreement,
the  Membership  Interest  Purchase
Agreement and any other documents
contemplated hereunder.

52.  Operating Expenses. The LLC will
reimburse the Members for reasonable travel
expenses incurred in connection with

performing  their  respective  duties
hereunder; provided that such expenses shall
not exceed $20,000 per vear without the
prior approved by the Board.

6. ALLOCATION OF INCOME
AND LOSS AND
DISTRIBUTIONS

6.1, Allocation of Net Taxable Income
Tax Credits. Except as
ections 6.2 and 6.5, all income

2

the LLC includable for federal,

ared for federal income tax purposes
ong the Members pursuant to

account the variation between the basis of
such property and its fair market value at the
time of contribution.

Any elections or other decisions relating to such
allocations shall be made by the Tax Matters Mermber in any
manner that reasonably reflects the purpese and intention of
this Agreement. Except as otherwise provided in such
Section 1.704-3(d) of the Treasury Regulations, the Capital
Accounts of the Members shalt be adjusied in accordance
with Section 1.704-1(b)}{2Xiv)(g) of the Treasury Regulations
for allocations to the Members of income, gain, loss and
deduction (inciuding depreciation, depletion, amortization or
other cost recovery} as computed for book purposes, with
respect to the property contributed; and the amount of book
depreciation, depletion or amortization for a period with
respect to an item of contributed property shall be the
amount that bears the same relationship to the book value of
such property as the depreciation (or cost recovery
deducticn), depletion or amortization computed for tax
purpcses with respect to such property for such period bears
to the adjusted tax basis of such property. If such property
has a zero adjusied tax basis, the book depreciation,
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depletion or amortization may be determined under any
reasonable method selected by the Tax Matters Member.

References in this Section 8,2 to beok and tax
depreciation, depletion, amortization, and gain or loss with
respect to property that has an adjusted tax basis that differs
from its book value include, under analogous rules and
principles, the unrealized income or deduction with respect
fo acoounts receivable, accounts payable and cther accrued
but unpaid items.

6.3. Distribution of Available Cash
Flow. Except as provided in Section 4.5, the
LLC shall distribute Available Cash Flow.
Such distributions shall be made in monthly
installments within fifteen (15) days after
the end of each menth and shall be made to
all Members pro rata in proportion to the
respective Membership Percentages of the

Members at the time of each distribution.

6.4, Consequences of Distributions.
Upon the determination to distribute funds
in any manner expressly providedsin this
Article 6, made in good faith, no*
shall incur liability on account

business, which in
loss to the LLC

balance of t
after allocatio
logs in the

of assets distributed 1
Section 13.3).

‘required by

7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

71, Number and Term. The LLC shall
bave a Board consisting of two (2) AmSurg
Directors and two (2) Owner Directors.
Each Director shall hold office for a period
of one (1) year or until such Director’s
earlier resignation, removal or death. There

shall be no limit on the number of years a
Director can serve on the Board.

7.2. Duties. Except as  otherwise
specifically set forth in this Agreement, the
Board shall have ultimate authority with
respect to the LLC’s operations, including,
but not limited to, physician credentialing,
granting of privileges and approval of
operating policies and procedures of the
Center.,

exchange, lease or
fer all or substantially

wof the LLC, or any
with a value in

Dissolve, liguidate, cease
ns or wind up the affairs of

33. Merge or consolidate the
LILC with or into another entity,
reorganize or recapitalize the LLC,
or cause the LLC to enter into a joint
venture or other business
combination with another entity;

73.4. Incur  indebtedness for
borrowed funds or refinancing of
borrowed funds on behalf of the LLC
in excess of $25,000 or aggregate
indebtedness in excess of $50,000 in
one (1) year;

7.3.5.  On behalf of the LLC, enter
into an agreement to make any single
expenditure or lease in excess of
$25,000 or aggregate annual
expenditures in excess of $50,000;

73.6. Establish or change in any
material respect the operating
policies and procedures of the

Page 145 of 171




DRAFT Operating Agreement of Diagnostic Endoscopy, LLC

Center, except for policies and
procedures relating to corporate and
regulatory compliance, employment
matters and financial reporting
matters of general applicability to the
ambulatory surgery centers affiliated
with AmSurg;

737. Hire or discharge the
administrator of the Center;

7.3.8. On behalf of the LL.C, enter
into an agreement with an Affiliate
of any Member, or terminate, extend,
renew, amend or modify in any
respect any such agreement;

7.3.9. Select or change the name:

under which the Center is operated
or the Iocation of the Center;

7.3.10. Except as permi
Section  7.3.4,
indebtedness of the LLC wh
Board approved;

Voluntaxy declaratlon: of bankruptcy,

msolvency or assignment for the
benefit of creditors by the LLC;

7.3.15. Authorize or approve any
strategic plan or business plan for the
LLC or any additions or conversions
to the Center which constitute
substantial changes in service (as
defined by applicable law) or that

would require the filing of an
application for certificate of need;

73.16. Enter into a settlement
agreement with respect to any
litigation or dispute requiring the
LLC to pay, pursuant to which the
LLC will receive, or pursuant to
which the LLC will waive, or the
waiver of, a contractual claim having
¢ in excess of $25,000 (other
disputes regarding accounts
vable that arise in the ordinary

the LLC’s Articles
tion or this Agreement.

The AmSurg Directors

of

=sha11 be ¢lected by AmSurg, and the Owner

Directors shall be elected by Owners

holding a majority of the Membership

rests held by the Owners. Any vacancy
ceurring on the Board for any reason shall
be filled by the Member that originally
appointed such Director. A Chairman of the
Board shall be elected by the Board at the
first meeting of the Board held in each fiscal
year.

7.5. Quorum and Voting. A quorum of
the Board shall consist of a majority of the
AmSurg Directors and a majority of the
Owner Directors. If a quorum is present
when a vote is taken, the affirmative vote of
a majority of the AmSurg Directors and a
majority of the Owner Directors present
shall be the act of the Board, unless the
Articles of Organization or this Agreement
requires the vote of a greater number of
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Directors. Each Director shall have one vote
on each matter considered by the Board.

7.6. Regular Meetings of the Board.
Regular meetings of the Board shall be held
quarterly at such places, within or without
the State of Connecticut, on such dates and
at such times as the Board may determine
from time to time.

77.  Meeting by Telephone. Any or all
Directors may participate in a regular or
special meeting of the Board by conference
telephone or any other means of
communication by which all Directors
participating may simultaneously hear each

other during the meeting. A Director .2

participating in a meeting by this means i
deemed to be present in person at the
meeting.

7.8. Action on Written Consen
required or permitted to be take

a meeting,
required to approve
to the taking of 3
meeting and approve §

action in any

75, Notice of

48 hours’ prior notice to all Directors of the
date, time and place of the meeting. The
notice need not state the purpose of the
meeting.

8. MEMBERS

8.1. Medical Malpractice Insurance.
Each Owner shall maintain at all times
medical malpractice insurance complying
with the Medical Staff Bylaws of the Center.

8.2. Ownership and Investment
Restrictions. Neither any Owner nor any
Affiliated Physician, nor any Affiliate of any
Owner or Affiliated Physician shall:

have any direct or indirect
ership interest in, or manage,
develop or otherwise have any

fray fees or other fees in
ion to standard professional fees

mile radius of the Center (the

tket Area™), or

8.22. in the case of a physician,
become an employee of a hospital or
an Affiliate of a hospital that is
located within the Market Area, or
enfer into any contract or other
arrangement (whether as a result of
his or her employment or otherwise)
that requires or incentivizes him or
her to perform procedures at any
hospital or facility affiliated with a
hospital in the Market Area;
provided, however that an Owner or
Affiliated Physician may become an
employee of a hospital or hospital
Affiliate and may receive
compensation paid by such a hospital
or hospital Affiliate that does not
require such Owner or Affiliated
Physician to perform ambulatory
surgical procedures at the employing
hospital or hospital Affiliate and
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which compensation is not based, in
whole or in part, on ambulatory
surgery referrals to or procedures
performed at the employing hospital
or hospital Affiliate,

in each case described in Sections
8.2.1. and 8.2.2 untif the later of (i) five (5) years from the
date of this Agreement, or (i) two (2) years after such. Owner
{or with respect to an Affiiated Physician, the Qwner with
whom such Affiliated Physician is affiliated) ceases io be a
Member of the LLC.

The foregeing shall not prohibit any Owner or
Affiliated Physician, nor any Affiliate of an Owner or Affiliated
Physician, from (i) owning shares of capital stock constituting
less than 1% of the ouistanding capital stock of any
corporation whose common stock is traded on a national
securities exchange, (ii) practicing medicine or performing
surgical procedures at any facility, or (i} receiving a
reasonable fee in exchange for providing medical director or
call coverage services to a tertiary hospital. The parties
acknowledge and agree that this Section 8.2 does not
require physician Cwners or Affiliated Physicians to perform
surgical procedures at the Center or to refer patients to the
Center, and Iimposes ne¢ restrictiens on where such
procedures are performed or where referrals are ma

Each Owner who is a physician and ead]
Physician acknowledges and agrees that the enforc;
the provisions of this Section 8.2 against him or h
not prevent such person from engaging in his
professien, or the practice of medici

the ascertainment of dam
this Section 8.2 would be dif]
Members, in additicn to all

shalt have the right to injunctivi
breach. Notwithstanding the for
physician Owner
physician

damages, ™3
Profit plus

muitiplied by such O iin the LLC (or
such- Owner's owne immediately
prior to the termination of in the LLC),
it being acknowledged by the i mages to the

LLC in such event would be diffi

8.3. Services Provider Owners. As
additional consideration for his or her
Membership Interests and without further
charge to the LLC other than the expenses
outlined in Section 5.2 hereof, Owners shall
provide the Center with:

83.L A Medical Director
acceptable to the Board, who will
perform the duties and
responsibilities assigned from time to

time by the Board, including, but not
limited to:

83.1.1 Assisting in  the
selection of suitable
treatment modalities for all
patients of the Center;

8.3.1.2 Devising clinical
procedures  which, when
implemented by the Center,
will assure adequate
monitoring of patients and
the treatment process;

.3.1.3  Directing,

-dinating and reporting to
the" Board on all medical
Center’s

g procedures
which, when implemented by
the Center, will assure
1) adequate training of nurses
d other staff in appropriate
treatment techniques, and
(ii) the supervision of all non-
physician staff at the Center;

8.3.1.5 Devising clinical
procedures  which, when
tmplemented by the Center,
will assure the availability of
a patient care policy and
procedures manual and other
written materials that reflect
current professional standards
and assisting in the periodic
review and revision thereof:

8.3.1.6 Developing and
maintaining professional
memberships and  active
vigibility in the local
community  through  the
provision  of  consulting,
educational and  related
services in a  manner
consistent with the role of
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Medical  Director  which
promotes the positive
visibility of the Center in the
community;

8.3.1.7 Devising the medical
policy statements of the
Center, presenting the
statements for the approval of
the Board and upon securing
Board approval,
implementing and monitoring
the policies;

8.3.1.8 Assisting the LLC in
attracting qualified
physicians to the medical
staff of the Center and
recommending to the Board
that qualified physicians be
granted clinical pr
the Center;

directives ncerning  the
medical standards of patient
care required at the Center,
and reporting to the Board
any known  deficiencies
therein;

8.3.1.11 Accepting appropriate
and reasonable medical staff
duties and assignments at the

Center including (1) acting as
the liaison between the
medical staff and the Board,
(ii) appointing physicians to
serve as members and
chairmen of medical staff
committees, and (iii) serving
on all committees of the
Center; and

8.3.1.12 Participating in long
and short range planning for
the Center, reviewing the
Center’s operating budget,
d, where appropriate,
Ing recommendations on

ce Improvement
g. to the Board,
o will perform “the duties and
ponsibilities assigned from time to
by the Board or its designee,
2. but not limited to:

3.2.1 Overseeing the
performance  improvement
program and all
corresponding activities of
the Center;

8322 Assisting in  the
development and revision of
indicators  necessary  to
adequately  evaluate care
provided by the Center and
that meet or exceed
governmental requirements;

8.3.2.3 Directing the review
of data summaries of all
identified indicators, as well
as information from other
sources regarding the quality
of care provided by the
Center;

8.3.2.4 Directing the
development of educational
programs based on the needs
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identified through committee
activities and  supporting
department-wide  education
on  continuous  process
improvement principles;

8.3.2.5 Overseeing the
credentialing and
recredentialing process for
the Center’s medical staff;

8.3.2.6 Overseeing and
administering the risk
management program for the

Center;

8.3.2.7 Overseeing and
administering medica
malpractice issues related to
the Center;

Owner

Center or the medical practices of Owners
(other than conditions which might have a
material adverse effect on the health care
industry in general). Each Member hereby
represents that he, she or it, has not been
excluded from participation in the Medicare
program or any other governmental health
care program for any reason and has not
been convicted of any crime in violation of

any state or Federal law related to health
care matters.

8.5.  Meetings. Meetings of the Members,
for any purpose or purposes, may be called
by the President, the Board, AmSurg,
Members holding a majority of AmSurg’s
Membership Interests, or Members holding
a majority of the Owners’ Membership
Interests, by giving 48 hours’ prior notice to

yove any such
of such action

saction taken. The LLC shall
“bute copies of any such
Members but the failure of the
ribute copies of such action shall
not void or otherwise affect the validity of
such action in any manner. A meeting also
ay take place by telephone conference call
or any other form of ¢lectronic

- communication through which the Members

may simultaneously hear each other. A
Member participating in a meeting by this
means is deemed to be present in person at
the meeting.

8.7. Record Date. For the purpose of
determining Members entitled to notice of or
to vote at any meeting of Members or any
adjournment thereof, or Members entitled to
receive payment of any distribution, or in
order to make a determination of Members
for any other purpose, the date on which
notice of the meeting is mailed or the date
on which the resolution declaring such
distribution is adopted, as the case may be,
shall be the record date for such
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determination of Members. When a
determination of Members entitled to vote at
any meeting of Members has been made as
provided in this Section 8.7, such
determination  shall apply to any
adjournment thereof.

8.8. Quorum. Members holding a
majority of the AmSurg Membership
Interests and a majority of the Owners’
Membership Interests, represented in person,
shall together constitute a quorum at any
meeting of Members.

8.9. Required Vote; Manner of Acting.
Except as otherwise provided in Section 8.7
above,
affirmative vote of the holders of a majority
of the AmSurg Membership Interests and a
majority of the Owners’ Membership
Interests present and entitled to vot
item of business shall be the ac
Members.

The Recipient Members w “not discuss or
disclose any of the Information to any third
party or take any action that could
compromise the confidentiality of the
Information to any third party without the
prior written consent of the Disclosing
Members. The Recipient Members shall,
upon termination of their membership in the
LLC, promptly return to the Disclosing

if a quorum 1s present, the

Members all Information in such person’s
possession, including without limitation all
policy, procedure and program manuals and
related documents, and such person shall not
make or retain any copies thereof. By their
execution of this Agreement, each Recipient
Member acknowledges that the Information
is proprietary and contains specialized
knowledge and data that constitutes valuable
intellectualsproperty.

8.11. oering Events.

Each of the following events
e deemed a “Iriggering
or purposes of this Section

Terminating Owner or the
Affiliated Physician of such
Terminating Owner;

1.2 such Terminating

or the Affiliated
Physician of such
Terminating  Owner (A)

becomes eligible for full
benefits under a long-term
disability policy, or (B) the
Board determines in good
faith that such Terminating
Owner or the Affiliated
Physician of such
Terminating Owner has been
unable, due to physical or
mental illness or incapacity,
to perform the duties of his
medical practice consistent
with past practice with
reasonable  accommodation
for a continuous period of
sixty (60) days or an
aggregate of ninety (90) days
during any consecufive 12-
month period;
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8.11.1.3 the cessation of the
practice of medicine by such
Terminating Owner or the
Affiliated Physician of such
Terminating Owner on a full-
time basis;

8.11.1.4 the relocation of the
practice of such Terminating
Owner or the Affiliated
Physician of such
Terminating Owner outside
of the Market Area;

8.11.1.5 such Terminating
Owner or the Affiliated
Physician of such
Terminating Owner no longe
maintaining a current license
to practice medicine_in the
State of Connectit
foregoing not

subsection shall be applied
solely to the ex-spouse of the
Terminating Owner or the
Affiliated Physician of such
Terminating Owner;
provided, however, that in the
event the LLC exercises its
right to purchase any of the
Terminating Owner’s

Membership Interest pursuant
to this subsection, the
Terminating Owner or the
Affiliated Physician of such
Terminating Owner  shall
have an option to repurchase
such membership interest for
the same purchase price paid
by the LLC in accordance
with Section 8.11.2;

8.11.1.7 a Terminating Owner
(A) makes an assignment for

the benefit of creditors or

dmits in writing his inability
16 pay debts generally as they
due, (B) applies to
fibunal  for  the
.of a trustee or
ny substantial
part of his assets, (C)
commences any voluntary

. proceeding under any

ankruptcy, reorganization,
arrangement, insolvency,
readjustment of debt,
dissolution or other
liquidation laws of any
jurisdiction, (D) becomes the
subject of any involuntary
proceedings and such
Terminating Owner indicates
his approval, consent or
acquiescence, or (E) becomes
the subject of an order
appointing a trustee or
receiver, adjudicating him
bankrupt or insolvent, or
approving a petition in any
involuntary proceeding, and
such order remains in effect
for ninety (90) days;

8.11.1.8 the exclusion of such
Terminating Owner or the
Affiliated Physician of such
Terminating Owner by the
Centers for Medicare &

Page 152 of 171




DRAFT QOperating Agreement of Diagnostic Endoscopy, LLC

Medicaid Services or the
state Medicaid agency from
participation in the Medicare
or Medicaid program for any
reason;

8.11.1.9 the conviction of such
Terminating Owner or the
Affiliated Physician of such
Terminating Owner of a
felony in violation of any
state or federal law related to
healthcare matters;

8.11.1.10the violation of the
provisions of Section 8.2 by

such Terminating Owner or .
the Affiliated Physician of =

such Terminating Owner; and

8.11.1.11 the determinati
AmSurg and the
holding a majority

percentage beneficiak
the Affiliated Physician or his or her
Immediate Family Member in the
Terminating Owner, with respect to a
Terminating Owner who is not an
individual (the “Subject Interest™).
The Owners shall purchase the
Subject Interest proportionately,
based on a fraction, the numerator of
which shall be the percentage

Membership Interest held by each
remaining Owner and the
denominator of which shall be the
aggregate percentage Membership
Interests held by all remaining
Owners. The aggregate purchase
price for the Subject Interest
pursuant to this Section 8.11.2 shall
be payable in cash and determined as

81121 If  the  Triggering
Event is one described in
ections 8.11.1.1 through
11.1.7 and Section

1,1.11, an amount equal to

following “the Triggering
Event Date plus the LLC’s
interest expense for the
. twelve (12) calendar months
immediately preceding the
Triggering Event Date, minus
(i) the LLC’s outstanding
Principal Indebtedness as of
the Triggering Event Date,
with this amount multiplied
by the selling Terminating
Owner’s pro rata percentage
ownership interest in the
LLC.

81122 If the Triggering
Event is one described in
Sections 8.11.1.8 and
8.11.1.9, the purchase price
shall be equal to 50% of the
amount determined n
accordance  with  Section
8.11.2.1.

8.1123 If the Triggering
Event is described in Section
8.11.1.10, the purchase price
shall be One Dollar ($1.00).
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In the event the purchase of the Subject Interest is
from a Terminating Owner who is not an
individual, such purchase price shall be paid by
the Terminating Owner to the Affiliated Physician
or his or her Immediate Family Member in
redemption of his or her full beneficial ownership
interest in the Terminating Owner.

8.11.3. The Terminating Owner shall
give the LLC and the other Owners
prompt written notice of the
occurrence of a Triggering Event,
and such Terminating Owner’s
Membership Interest shall terminate
as of the date of the Triggering
Event. The purchase price for the
Terminating Owner’s Membership
Interest as described in Section
8.11.2 shall be paid in a lump sum &
cash to the Terminating Owner
within sixty (60) days following the
first anniversary of the Trig
Date. )

8.11.4. In the event one or moreg
the Owners breach the Provisi

Owmer’s ownership: interest in LL.C
pursuant to Section 8.11.2 and may
subsequently thereafter transfer such
ownership interest to  another
physician in the Market Area,
provided, however that such
physician shall be reasonably
acceptable to the Members. Any
such physician shall be treated as an

Owmner on the same terms as the
other Owners.

8.12. Fiduciary Duty. Each Owner and
Affiliated Physician and each Affiliate of an
Owner or Affiliated Physician shall have a
fiduciary duty to act at all times in a manner
such Person reasonably believes to be in the
best interest of the LLC, in good faith and
with the care an ordinarily prudent person in

of Officers. The
a President and may
Vice Presidents, a

ment

of whom will Affiliates of
to serve as the officers of the LI.C.

The Officers shall serve for
> term  until removed and

93.1. General. Subject to the
provisions of this Agreement, the
management of the business affairs
of the LLC shall rest with the
President, who shall have all the
authority which may be possessed by
a president pursuant to the Act, and
such  additional  authority as
otherwise conferred by law or is
necessary or advisable in the
discharge of the duties of the
President under this Agreement. The
President shall perform his or her
duties to the best of his or her ability
and shall use his or her best efforts to
carry out the business of the L.I.C.

932. Powers. Subject to the
provisions of Section 7.3 and those
powers reserved to the Members and
the Board by this Agreement or the
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Articles of  Organization, the
President may, on behalf of and at
the cost, expense and risk of the LLC
and in accordance with the operating
and capital budgets of the LLC:

9.32.1 On behalf of the LLC,
spend the capital and net
income of the LLC in the
exercise of any rights or
powers possessed by the

President hereunder;

9322 Make capital
expenditures on behalf of the
LLC; '

9323 Cause the LLC to:

lease, acquire, own, manage
and operate the Cemer and
enter into ag
containing  such
provisions and condi
the Presulent may

through others contracts of
liability, casualty and other
insurance which the President
deems advisable for the
protection of the LLC or for
any purpose convenient or
beneficial to the LLC;

9.3.2.7 On behalf of and for
the benefit of the LLC, incur
indebtedness;

9328 Sell or otherwise
dispose of, upon such terms
and conditions as the
President may deem
advisable, appropriate or
convenient, any of the assets
of the LLC that do not
constitute all or substantially
all of the LLC’s assets;

3.2.9 Establish bank
ounts in the name and on
LLC and
signatories

9.3.2.10 Invéstzin  short-term
debt obligations of federal
and state governments and
their agencies, commercial
aper and certificates of

deposit of commercial banks,

savings bank or savings and
loan associations and “money
market” mutual funds, such
funds as are temporarily not
required for the purposes of
the LLC’s operations; and

9.3.2.11 Delegate all or any of
his/her duties hereunder and,
mn furtherance of any such
delegation, appoint, employ
or contract with any person
(including Affiliates of the
Members) for the transaction
of the business of the LLC,
which persons may, under the
supervision of the President,
act as consultants,
accountants, attorneys,
brokers, escrow agents, or in
any other capacity deemed by
the President necessary or
desirable, and pay
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appropriate fees to any of
such  persons. Without
limiting  the  foregoing,
AmSurg may delegate to
AmSurg Corp. the authority
to negotiate and execute
agreements with payors on
behalf of the LL.C.

04.  Duties. AmSurg shall provide
management services (the “Management
Services™) to the LLC. AmSurg, through the
President, shall consult in and oversce the
administrative operations of the Center and,
subject to the terms of this Agreement and
the general direction and control of the
Board, coordinate all business and
administrative activities pertaining to the
Center, including, but not in any way limited
to, the following: :

9.4.1.  Assist the Center in opx
in an efficient and busines
manner;

94.2. Coordi
lease of eqg
pharmaceutica
purchases

P

Center, and that all
appropriate and
accreditation 4 for the

Center’s operations are obtained;
9.4.4. Coordinate, with the support
of the Medical Director and the
Board, ongoing marketing programs
to increase community and payor
awareness of the Center;

9.4.5. Negotiate the amount and
method of reimbursement that the
Center will receive from all

appropriate third party payors, both
public and private;

946. Establish, maintain, revise
and administer, with the support and
approval of the Board, the overall
charge structure of the Center and
arrange for payment of such charges
by others, when appropriate;

Arrange and  negotiate

by the Board, all
bolicies and  operating

rporate and regulatory compliance,
mployment matters and financial
orting matters that are applicable
AmSurg Affiliates, including
, which shall be approved by
urg and shall not be subject to
d approval),

949. Recruit, hire, supervise,
discipline and  discharge, in
conjunciion with the Medical
Director, all persons working in the
Center and providing direct patient
care, as needed, and recruit new
physician Owners;

9.4.10. Train Center personnel with
respect to all aspects of the Center’s
operations, including but not limited
to administrative, clinical, financial
and marketing matters;

9.4.11. Arrange for the purchase by
the LLC of necessary insurance
coverage for the Center;

94.12. Establish and administer
accounting procedures and controls
and systems for the development,
preparation and keeping of records
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and books of accounting related to
the business and financial affairs of
the Center:

9.4.13. Oversee the preparation of
the annual report and tax information
returns required to be filed by the
LLC, and deliver a copy of same to
the Members in a timely manner as
needed;

9.4.14. Furnish the LLC in a timely
fashion monthly operating reports
and other reports reasonably
requested by the Board or any
Director;

9.4.15. Prepare for Board review all
capital and annual operating budgets
as needed; and

9.4.16. Perform all duti
required of it in good faith
reasonable diligence SO

efficiently

quality heal
9.5. Compensat
Services.

maximum yearly pay
AmSurg of $300,00t
made on or before the
month.

; day of each

For purposes of this Agreement,
“Net Profit” is means the revenue of the
LLC less all expenses (other than the
management fee described in this Section
9.5) of the LLC (determined in accordance
with generally accepted accounting
principles consistently applied).

9.6. Right to Rely Upon the Authority
of the President. No person dealing with
the President shall be required to determine
the President’s authority to make any
commitment or undertaking on behalf of the
LLC, nor to determine any fact or
circumstance bearing upon the existence of
its authority. In addition, no purchaser of
any property of the LL.C shall be required to
sole and excluswe authority of

residents (if an
in the management of the LLC,
sperform such other duties as the
from time to time prescribe.

. The Secretary shall be
for recordmg the minutes of all

“Board and Member meetings. The Secretary
shall  have  the

responsibility  of
thenticating records of the LLC and
eiving notices required to be sent to the
ecretary and shall perform such other

duties as the Board may from time to time

prescribe.

9.6.  Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have
custody of the LEC’s funds and securities,
shall keep or cause fo be kept full and
accurate  account of  receipts and
disbursements in books of the LLC, shall
disburse or cause to be disbursed the funds
of the LLC as required in the ordinary
course of business, and shall perform such
other duties as may be incident to his or her
office or as prescribed by the Board.

9.10.  Limitation on Liability. An Officer
shall not be liable for any action taken as an
Officer, or any failure to take action as an
Officer, except to the extent that such
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Officer’s conduct failed to comply with the
standards set forth in Section 48-249-115 of
the Act.

9.11.  Resignation. Any Officer of the
LILLC may resign at any time by giving
written notice to the Members. The
resignation of any Officer shall take effect
upon receipt of notice thereof or at such later
time as shall be specified in such notice; and
unless otherwise specified therein, the
acceptance of such resignation shall not be
necessary to make it effective.

9.12.  Compensation and
Reimbursement. No Officer shall have any
right to compensation for services

performed on behalf of the LLC except as *

determined from time to time by the Board.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, an Officer
shall have the right to be reimburse
LLC for any reasonable out-o
expenses incured by such Offic
connection with any servi
such Officer on behalf ofi

10. INDEMNIFICA

101.  Authority to Indemnify. The LLC
shall indemnify, and upon request shall
advance reasonable expenses to, an
individual made a party to a proceeding
because such individual is or was a
Responsible Person, to the full extent
permitted by law, against liability incurred
in the proceeding if the Responsible Person
satisfies the following standard of conduct:

10.1.1. The Responsible Person’s
conduct was in good faith and the
Responsible  Person  reasonably
believed (a) in the case of conduct in
the Responsible Person’s official
capacity with the LLC, that his or her
conduct was in the best interest of
the LLC and (b)in all other cases,
that his or her conduct was at least
notz:opposed to the LLC’s best
interest; and

In the case of any criminal
eeding, the Responsible Person

Authority to
1red by applicable
mdemmfy a

: edmg charging improper
fit to such Responsible Person,
" not involving action in the
Responsible Person’s official capacity, in
which the Responsible Person was adjudged
tble on the basis that personal benefit was
improperly received by such Responsible

~ Person.

The indemnification and advancement of
expenses granted pursuant te this Article 10 shall net be
deemed exclusive of any cther rights to which a Responsible
Person seeking indemnification or advancement of expenses
may be entitled, whether contained in this Article 10, the
Avrticles of Organization, the Act, a resolution of the Board, or
an agreement providing for such indemnification; provided,
however, that no indemnification may be made to or on
behalf of any Responsible Persen if a judgment or cther final
adjudication adverse ic the Responsible Person establishes
his or her iability.

10.2.1. For any breach of duty of
loyalty to the LLC or its Members;

10.22. For acts or omissions not in
good faith or which involve
intentional misconduct or a knowing
violation of law; or
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1023. For any liability for unlawful
distributions incurred under
Section 48-249-307 of the Act.

103. Advances for Expenses. To the full
‘extent permitted by law, the indemnification
and advances provided for herein shall
include reasonable expenses (including
attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and
amounts paid in settlement. If the LLC
advances expenses to a Responsible Person
pursuant to this Article 10 and it is
subsequently  determined  that  the
Responsible Person is not entitled to
indemnification, the Responsible Person will

repay such advances within fifteen (15) days

of such determination.

10.4. Indemnification of  Officers,
Employees and Agents. An Officer,
employee, independent contractor

is  entitled to indemnification
advancement of expense
as a Responsible Perso
indemnify and ad
Officer, employee, iide
or Agent who is not a

the extent i
policy, b

and an executed copy
currently in effect, shall tained at the
principal executive office of the LLC, and
each Member shall have access thereto at all
reasonable times,

112.  Fiscal Year. The fiscal vear of the
LLC shall be the calendar year.

11.3.  Tax Status; Elections.
Notwithstanding any provision hereof to the
contrary, solely for purposes of the federal

'available

income tax laws, each of the Members
hereby recognizes that the LLC will be
subject to all provisions of Subchapter K of
Chapter 1 of Subtitle A of the Code;
provided, however, the filing of a U.S.
Partnership Return of Income shall not be
construed to extend the purposes of the LLC
or expand the obligations or liabilities of the
Members. Upon the transfer of an interest in
the LLC or:in the event of a distribution of
'S “property, the Tax Matters
ay, but is not required to, elect
Section 754 of the Code to

In addition, the LLC will make
to each Member unaudited
onthly financial and operating reports,
cluding monthly financial highlights for
the Center, an unaudited balance sheet,
income statement, and statement of cash
flows for the previous month, an accounts
receivable analysis as of the end of the prior
month, and trend reports for the trailing
twelve months.

All such financial statements shall be prepared on
an accrual basis of accounting in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles consistently applied. The
LLC shall also furnish to each Member not later than ninety
(90) days after the end of each fiscal year whatever
information may be necessary for Members to file their
federal income tax returns. The LLC will also make available
{o each Member upon requesi a copy or summary of all state
and/or local tax returns which are filed by the ELC.

11.5. Banking. All funds of the LI.C shall
be initially deposited in a separate bank
account or accounts or in an account or
accounts of a savings and loan association as
shall be determined by the Board, but such
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funds may be invested as provided in
Section 9.3.2.10 hereof.

11.6. Tax Matters Member. AmSurg
shall be the Tax Matters Member within the
meaning of the Code.

12. ASSIGNMENT AND
TERMINATION OF
MEMBERSHIP INTERESTS
AND ADMISSION OF NEW
MEMBERS

12.1.  Assignment of  Membership
Interests. No assignment of all or any part
of a Membership Interest in the LLC
(including any Financial Rights, Governance
Rights or other rights pertaining to a
Membership Interest) shall be made except
as follows:

12.1.1. Subject to the provis
Section 12.2 hereof, a Membe:
assign all or any part of
Member’s Membe

herein,
any part o
Rights in the
a simultaneous
Governance Rights and other rights
pertaining to the entire Membership
Interest to which such Financial
Rights relate pursuant to this
Article 12;

12.1.4. Except as otherwise provided
herein, Governance Rights may not
be assigned to another person except
pursuant to a  simultaneous

Financial
ursuant to

assignment of the Financial Rights
and other rights pertaining to the
entire Membership Interest to which
such Governance Rights relate
pursuant to this Article 12;

12.1.5. AmSurg may assign all or
any part of its Membership Interest
to an Affiliate of AmSurg, to another
Member, or to a physician that meets
dentialing requirements of the
without the consent of any
ber; provided that in each case
urg and the assignee give
otice of such transfer,
r sale to the LLC, (it)

requested by the Board, the
nee has delivered an opinion of
i5el to the LLC, in form and
nee reasonably satisfactory to
LIC, to the effect that such
r is either exempt from the
requlrements of the Securities Act
and the applicable securities laws of
any state or that such registration
requirements have been complied
with, (ii1) the assignee executes a
joinder to this Operating Agreement
and agrees in writing to be bound by
the terms hereof, and (iv) such
physician  shall be reasonably
acceptable to the Members.. Upon
the satisfaction of the conditions set
forth in the preceding sentence and
the making of the assignment, the
LLC will cause Exhibit A hereto to
be amended in accordance with
Section 12.9 hereof and the assignee
will become a Member holding the
Membership Interest so assigned;
and

12.1.6. An Owner may assign all or
any part of its Membership Inferest

Page 160 of 171




DRAFT Cperaling Agreement of Diagnostic Endoscopy, LLC

to a frust or family limited
partnership created for the benefit of
any of the Owner or his or her
Immediate Family Members, and all
or any part of such Membership
Interest 50 assigned may
subsequently be re-transferred to
such Owner without the consent of
any Member, provided that in each
case (i) the Owner and the
assignee/assignor give written notice
of such transfer, assignment or sale
to the LLC (ii) such transfer, sale or
assignment 1s in compliance with the
Securities Act (as  hereinafier

defined), and all applicable state

securities laws, and, if requested by
the Board, the assignee has delivered
an opinion of counsel to the LLC, in
form and substance
satisfactory to the LLC, to th
that such transfer is either ¢
from the 1 nts  of °

Member holding Membership
Interest so assigned. In the event of
a transfer of a Membership Interest
by an Owner to a trust or family
limited partnership as provided in
this Section 12.1.6, the Affiliated
Physician of such trust or family
limited partnership shall retain all

voting and governance rights of an
Owner set forth in this Agreement.

12.1.7. The LLC need not recognize
any assignment of all or any part of a
Membership Interest other than an
assignment described in
Sections 12.1.1 through 12.1.6
hereof. Any other assignment or
atfempted assignment shall be void.
signment shall be effective
written notice thereof has been
ided to the LLLLC and any other
le requirements set forth in

Membership
[ember. A Member
{ y: portion of such
s Membership Interest to another
i-.if: (a) the assignee accepts such
. (b) the assignor and the
written notice of such
LLC, and (c) the

“satisfaction’of the conditions specified in the

foregoing sentence, the LLC will cause
hibit A hereto to be amended to the extent
quired by Section 12.9 hereof and the
ssignee will become the holder of the
Membership Interest so assigned.

123.  Assignment of  Membership
Interest with Consent of Other Members.
If an Owner (the “Transferor’”) desires to
transfer, assign or sell all or any portion of
his or her Membership Interest (the “Offered
Interests™) to a physician that meets the
credentialing requirements of the Center (the
“Transferee™), the Transferor shall obtain
from the Transferee a bona fide written offer
to purchase the Offered Interests, stating the
terms and conditions upon which the
purchase is to be made and the consideration
offered therefor (the “Offer”). The
Transferor shall give notice to the LLC and
the remaining Member(s) of his or her
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intention to sell, furnishing a copy of the
entire Offer (the “Notice™). In such event:

12.3.1.  Within thirty (30) days of the
receipt of Notice (the “Owner Option
Period™), each Owner other than the
Transferor may exercise an option to
purchase the Offered Interests upon
the same terms and conditions and
for the same consideration stated in
the Offer, on a basis pro rata to their
Membership Percentage (or on a
basis pro rata to the interest of those
Owners exercising this option to
purchase.) The Owners shall exercise
such options by giving written notice

both to the Transferor and each other:

Member within the Owner Option
Period. Should an Owner fail to give
written notice within the:'
Option Period, the Owner

remaining Offered
case of two or more other Owners,
each such other Owner’s option shall
be to purchase the amount all such
other Owners may determine by
agreement among themselves, or if
they cannot agree, by one or more
successive  allocations in  the
proportion that the Membership
Interest owned by each of the

eligible other Owners bears to the
total Membership Interests owned by
all such eligible other Owners. Such
other Owners shall exercise such
options by giving written notice both
to the Transferor and each other
Member within the Over-Allotment
Period. Should an Owner fail to give
written notice within the Over-
Allptment Period, the Owner shall be
ned to have waived such option.

If the Owners do not exercise
tions to purchase all of the

r the date the LL.C

ice from each
Jwner other thani the Transferor
waiving their options (the “LLC
ion Period”), the LLC may
se an option te purchase the
Offered Interests proposed
¢ sold by the Transferor, upon
rms and conditions and for the
same consideration stated in the
Offer. The LLC, at the direction of
AmSurg, shall exercise such option
by giving wriften notice both to the
Transferor and each other Member
within the LLC Option Period.
Should the LLC fail to give written
notice within such LLC Option
Period, the LLC shall be deemed to
have waived such option.

12.34. Notwithstanding  anything
contained herein to the contrary, the
rights under this Section 12.3.1 may
be waived with respect to any
proposed transfer or assignment by
an Owner and the LLC provided that
such transfer or assignment is
approved by the Board and the
Members elect to waive their rights
under this Section 12.3.
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12.3.5. If the right of first refusal
options set forth above are forfeited
or waived, then within ten (10} days
after the expiration of the last option
period granted above, the Transferor
may transfer the Offered Interests to
the Transferee named in the Notice
upon the terms specified therein,
provided (i) such Transferor has
provided the Notice set forth in this
Section 12.3, (ii) such transfer, sale
or assignment is in compliance with
the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the “Securities Act™), and
all applicable state securities laws,
and, if requested by the Board, such
Transferor has delivered an opinion
of such Transferor’s counsel to the
LILC, in form and substance
reasonably satisfactory to
to the effect that such tran
either exempt from the requi
of the Securifie

the making of
LLC will cause E
be amended in accordance with
Section 12.9 hereof and the assignee
will become a Member holding the
Membership Interest so assigned.

12.4.  Termination of a Membership
Interest. Notwithstanding any provisions to
the contrary contained in the Act, a
Member’s Membership Interest shall be

terminated only on the application of the
LLC or another Member as described in
Section 48-249-503(a)(6) of the Act. In the
event a Member’s Membership interest is
terminated:

12.4.1. If the business and existence
of the LLC are not continued, the
Member whose Membership Interest
is terminated is entitled to receive the
er’s distribution pursuant to

value of the
Member’s * Membership
Interest on a going concern
basis as determined by the
LLC within 90 days of the
rmination date, or

12422 The wvalue of the
Member’s Membership
Interest on a liquidation basis
as determined by the LLC
within 90 days of the
termination date.

If a Member’s Membership Interest is
terminated in contravention of this
Agreement or the Articles of Organization,
the Member forfeits its Governance Rights
and shall be liable fo the other Members for
damages incurred by the other Members and
the LLC as a result of the wrongful
termination. Such damages may be offset
against any amount to be paid to the
terminating Member. Any payment to a
terminating Member shall be paid to the
terminating Member within six (6) months
of the determination of the amount of the
payment.
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12.5.  Restrictions on Assignment. No
Member shall be permitted to assign such
Member’s Membership Interest, Financial
Rights or Govemance Rights if such
assignment would result in the LLC being
taxed for federal income tax purposes as an
association taxable as a corporation or
would constitute a violation of any
applicable federal or state law. Each of the
Members hereby agrees and acknowledges
that the restrictions on assignment contained
in this Article 12 are not unreasonable in
view of the nature of the parties and their
relationships to one another and the nature
of the business of the LLC.

12.6.  Rights and Obligations of Former
Members. A Member who assigns all of the
Governance Rights of such Member or
whose Membership Interest is
terminated shall cease to be a
provided, however, that such &
Member or any Successor shall ren
liable to the LLC for any.: ‘bl'?
Member for unla s
Section 48-249-307

approved by

shall receive t of the
Membership Inte by the
New Member, as de the Board

(the “New Member [
periods beginning on and
anniversary of the date of this Agreement:

127.1. If AmSurg’s Membership
Percentage, at the time any New
Member is to be admitted, is greater
than 51%, then each of AmSurg and
the Owners, collectively, shall
transfer to such New Member 50%
of the Membership Interest to be

acquired by such New Member, with
each individual Owner transferring
its or his pro rata share of such 50%
on the basis of its or his then-current
Membership Interest as a percentage
of the Membership Interests held by
all  Owners, until AmSurg’s
Membership Percentage is reduced
to 51%; provided, however, that in
nt will AmSurg be required to
; any portion of its
bership Interest to the New
ember that would result in
i Membership Percentage
y such transfer falling

embership Interest as a
of the Membership
cests held by all Owners, of the
Membership Interest that would have
otherwise been transferred to the
New Member by AmSurg.

127.2. If AmSurg’s Membership
Percentage, at the time any New
Member is to be admitted is equal to
51%, then each Owner shall transfer
to the New Member his or her pro
rata share, on the basis of such
Owner’s then-current Membership
Interest as a percentage of the
Membership Interests held by all
Owners, of the New Member
Interest.

127.3. All proceeds corresponding
to the transfer of any Membership
Interest to a New Member pursuant
to this Section 12.7 shall belong
exclusively to the party transferring
such Membership Inferest, and, for
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the avoidance of doubt, neither the
LLC nor any other Member shall
have any right to such proceeds.

Notwithstanding anything contained herein
to the contrary, the Members acknowledge
and agree that it is the Members’ intention
that AmSurg will always own a 51% or
greater Membership Interest in the LLC.

12.8.  Government Regulation. If a
Fundamental Regulatory Change should
occur, AmSurg or its Affiliates or assigns
may, at their option, purchase some or all of
the Membership Interests of Owners for a
purchase price equal to (a) three (3) times
the LLC Profit plus the LLC’s interest
expense for the preceding twelve (12)
calendar months (if the Center has not been
in operation for a full twelve (12).months,
the last six (6) months of LLC Profi
annualized for this calculation),
(b)the LLC’s outstanding Pri
Indebtedness, with this amount multip!
by the Membership I r

purchased hereundet

AmSurg, with
counsei to
AmSurg
CONCuUr,
health

: bershlp lnterest i
this Sectio

In the event
and the exercise by A :
above, the purchase pnce
purchased shall be determine
hereinafter set forth:

12.8.1. Owners shall be paid 20% of
the purchase price (net after
reduction for any obligations owed
by any Owner to the LLC), in cash
and 80% by AmSurg Corp.’s non-
negotiable promissory note payable
in four (4) approximately equal
annual installments of principal,
commencing twelve (12) months

in the manner

after the closing, together with
interest at a rate equal to one-half
percentage point over the Prime
Rate.

The note shall contain provisions for
(a) the acceleration of the entire unpaid balance of
principal and accrued interest at the option of the
holder in the event of defauit in payment of any
principal or interest when due, (b) the payment of
reasonabie attorneys’ fees in the event of default,
and (c) prepayment, without penalty, of alt or any
he unpaid principal, any prepayment being
ied to then accrued inferest,

O If in dispute, all
rminations of LLC  Profit
od under this Section 12.8 shall

. made shall be

83. If an Owner’s Membership
est is acquired pursuant to this
ion 12.8, such Owner will be
ed a pro rata share of the
ailable Cash Flow allocated to
,Membersh1p Interest for the
month in which AmSurg purchases
the Membership Interest based upon
the number of days during such
month prior to such purchase in
relation to the total number of days
in such month. Such distribution
shall be made within ninety (90)
days after the end of such month.

12.8.4. No payment other than those
specifically provided for hercin shall
be due or payable with respect to the
Membership Interest of any Owner.
Any debt due by the LLC to any
Owner shall be payable according to
its terms.

12.8.5. Any closing of the purchase
of an Owner’s Membership Interest
pursuant to this Section 12.8 shall be
held at the principal office of the
LLC within thirty (30) days
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following the exercise by AmSurg of
its option to purchase such
Membership Interest as described
above.

At the closing, AmSurg shall pay, upon
the terms specified hereinabove, the determined
value of such Membership Interest to such Owner,
after receiving appropriate releases and
satisfactions.

12.86. AmSurg may transfer or
assign any of its rights to purchase
the Membership Interest of an
Owner to AmSurg’s Affiliates or

assigns.

1287. Hf AmSurg or its Affiliate
purchases some or all of the
Membership Interest of an Owner
pursuant to  this  Section 12.8,
AmSurg will use its best efforts to
have such Owner released :

appropriate portion of
Indebtedness, if any, guaran
such Owner.
Owner is not

assignment or f
Interest described
12.1.6 hereof, (b) the
Member under Sectio 7 hereof, or
(c) any purchase of a Menmbership Interest
pursuant to Section 12.8 hereof.

12.10. Pledge of Membership Interest.
No pledge of an Owner’s interest may be
made without the approval of AmSurg. The
pledge of or the granting of a seccurity
interest, lien or other encumbrance in or
against any or all of a Member’s
Membership Interest shall not constitute an

assignment or transfer of such Membership
Interest for purposes of this Article 12 or
cause such Member to cease to be a Member
or to cease to have the power to exercise any
of its rights or powers as a Member. Any
such pledgee shall not be a Member and
shall not be entitled to any rights of a
Member, other than the right to receive
profit and loss allocations and distributions
to the extent permitted by applicable law,

pledgee becomes a Member
Section 12.3 hereof. In any
reclosure of or exercise of other
edies with respect to such
inferest, lien or other
ng 111 an Assignment: of
Interest  shall
signment subject to the

DISSOLUTION, WINDING UP,
“AND TERMINATION OF THE
LLC’S EXISTENCE

Term. The term of the LLC shall
ntinue until earlier terminated in
accordance with the provisions of this
Agreement. The Members intend for the
term of the LLC, and their involvement in
the operation thereof, to continue until the
Members mutually agree otherwise. No
Member shall take any action unilaterally to
terminate the LELC or withdraw as a
Member.

13.2.  Events Causing Dissolution and
Winding Up. The LLC shall be dissolved
and its affairs wound up only upon the
occurrence of the following events
(individually, a “Dissolution Event™):

13.2.1. At any time with the prior
approval of those Members holding
100% of the voting power and 100%
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of the Membership Interests in the

LLC; or

13.2.2. Termination of this
Agreement pursuant to Section 14.12
hereof.

133.  Winding Up Affairs on
Dissolution. Upon dissolution of the LLC,
the Officers or other persons required or
permitted by law to carry out the winding up
of the affairs of the LLC shall promptly
notify all Members of such dissolution; shall
wind up the affairs of the LLC; shall prepare
and file all instraments or documents
required by law to be filed to reflect the

dissolution of the LLC; and, after collecting

the debts and obligations owed to the LL
and after paying or providing for the
payment of all liabilities and obligations of
the LLC, shall distribute the asse
LLC in accordance with Section®
determining the final balance of th
Capital Accounts, assets
are distributed in kind

market value and allog
pursuant to Sections 6.

Agreement, no Me;
heirs, representativ
or assigns, will a
partition whatever of the“assets of the LLC
or any interest therein whether now owned
or hereafter acquired, and each Member
waives all rights of partition provided by
statute or principles of law or equity,
including partition in kind or partition by
sale. The Members agree that irreparable

. damage would be done to the goodwill and

reputation of the LLC if any Member should
bring an action in a court to dissolve the

LLC. The Members agree that this
Agreement provides fair and just provisions
for payment and liquidation of the interest of
any Member in the LLC, and fair and just
provistons to prevent a Member from selling
or otherwise alienating its interest in the
LLC. Accordingly, each Member hereby
waives and renounces its right to such a
court decree of dissolution or to seek the
by court of a liquidator or

commumcatlon
be given by any

11. if  delivered in writing,
rsonally to the person to whom it

by certified or
', overnight courier

the Member or Director reflected in
the records of the LLC.

’ Any such notice shall be deemed fo be given as of
{he date so delivered, if delivered personally, as of the date
on which the same was deposited in the United States mail,
postage prepaid, addressed and sent as aforesaid, or on the
date received if sent by overnight courier services or
etectronic facsimite.

14.2.  Section Captions. Section and other
captions contained in this Agreement are for
reference purposes only and are in no way
intended to describe, interpret, define or
himit the scope, exfent or intent of this

Agreement or any provision hereof.

143.  Applicable Law. This Agreement
and the rights of the Members shall be
governed by and construed and enforced in
accordance with the laws of the State of
Tennessee. '

144. Severability. In case any onc or
more of the provisions contained in this
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Agreement or any application thereof shall
be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any
respect, the validity, legality and
enforceability of the remaining provisions
contained herein and any other application
thereof shall not in any way be affected or
impaired thereby. Without limiting the
foregoing, the Members agree that in the
event a court or arbitrator with appropriate
jurisdiction determine that the geographic
area and/or the time restrictions set forth in
Section 8.2 hereof are unenforceable as a
matter of law, then the court or arbitrator
may modify the unenforceable provision in
order to make it enforceable and such
modification will be deemed to be valid
amendment to this Agreement to which each
Owner and his or her Affiliates will be
bound.

145.  Binding Effect. Except a
otherwise provided to the contrary,
Agreement shall be binding upon, and
to the beneﬁt of, the Members and th

Membership Interests any respect to
Exhibit A hereto, unde “circumstances
set forth in Sections 4.8 and 12.9 hereof. In
the event that the parties hereto agree fo
admit a New Member pursuant to
Section 12.7 hereof, the parties will amend
this Agreement accordingly.

14.8.  Counterparts. This Agreement may
be executed in counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed an original but all of which
shall constitute one and the same instrument.

14.9.  Interpretation in Accordance with
Requirements for Partnership Tax
Treatment. The LLC is intended to be
treated as a partnership for federal income
tax purposes, and this Agreement shall be
interpreted in a manner consistent with such
intended tax treatment.

14.10. Arbitration. All disputes arising
under this Agreement shall be resolved by
binding ration pursuant to the rules of
the an Health Lawyers Association
lution Service (“AHLA™) then

such arbitration
determined by the

cannot agree, by the arbitrators.
ators shall apply the substantive

‘ThHe.Members may, if they are able
to do so, agree upon one arbitrator;
otherwise, there shall be three arbitrators
lected to resolve disputes pursuant to this
ction 14.10, one named in writing by each
Member party to the arbitration proceeding

* within thirty (30) days after notice of

arbitration is served upon any Member by
another Member and a third arbitrator
selected by the two arbitrators selected by
the Members within fifteen (15) days
thereafter,

If the two arbitrators cannot seiect a third arbitrator
within such fifteen (15) days, either Member may request
that the AHLA select such third arbitrator. If one Member
does not choose an arbitrator within thity (30} days, the
ather Member shall request that the AHLA name such other
arbitrator. No one shall serve as arbitrator who is in any way
financially interesied in this Agreement or in the affairs of
any Member.

Each of the parties to the arbitration shall pay its
own expenses of arbitration and one-half of the expenses of
the arbitratars. If any position by any party to the arbitration,
or any defense or objection thereto, is deemed by the
arbitrators to have been unreasonable, the arbitrators shali
assess, as part of their award against the unreasonable
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Member or reduce the award to the unreasonable Member,
all or part of the arbitration expenses {including reasonabie
attorneys’ fees) of the ather Member and of the arbitrators.

14.11. Access to Books and Records by
Governmental Officials. Upon written
request of the Secretary of Health and
Human Services or the Comptroller General
or any other duly authorized representatives
thereof, each Member shall make available
to the Secretary those contracts, books,
documents and records necessary to verify
the nature and extent of the cost of providing
its services to the Center. Such inspection
shall be available up to four (4) years after
such services are rendered. If any Member
carriecs out any of the duties of this
Agreement through subcontract with a value
of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) or more
over a twelve (12) month pBI’lOd w1th a

in such subcontract. If a request froi
Secretary or his representatlve IS serve
Member, that Member ;

14.12. Limited
Agreement shall be

has any materi
Agreement, then t
the Agreement sh

rencgotiation of the affected term or terms
of this Agreement, upon written notice to the
other Member, to remedy such condition.

The Members expressly recognize that upon
request for renegotiation, each Member has a duty and
obligation to the others only to renegotiate the affected
term(s) in good faith and, further, each Member expressly
agrees that ifs consent to proposals submitted by the other
Members during renegotiation efforts shall not be
unreasonably withheld. Should the Members agres to
amend this Agreement fo renegctiate the term or terms so
affected, the Members shall use their best efforis fo cause

such renegotiated terms to be approved by the Board and
the Members.

Should the Members be unable to renegotiate the
fem or terms so affected so as to bring itthem into
compliance with the statute, regulation, agency or judicial
decision, interpretation, pronouncement, guidance or other
reason that rendered itthem unlawful or unenforceable
within sixty (60) days of the date on which notice of a desired
renegotiation is given, then the Members shall be entitled,
after the expiration of said sixty (60) day peried, to terminate
this Agreement upon thirty (30) additional days written notice
to the other Members.

14.13.  Intesrated
constitutes

Agreement. This
the entire

at there shall be no presumptlon created
. Member having prepared in whole or in

[Remainder of page intentionally left biank]

Page 169 of 171




DRAFT Operafing Agreement of Diagnostic Endoscopy, LLC

CERTIFICATE

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned hereby
agree, acknowledge and certify that the foregoing
Agreement constitutes the Operating Agreement of
Diagnostic Endoscopy, LLC adopted by the Members.

AMSURG HOLBINGS, INC.

By:
Name:
Title:

OWNERS:

Stuart Waldstreicher, M.D.

Peter Gardner, M.D.

Ronald Cirille, M.D.

William Pintauro, M.D.

Neda Khaghan, M.D.

Felice Zwas, M.D.

Nelson

Alan Selkin, M.
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EXHIBIT A
Member Name and Address Capital Account Balance Membership Percentage - |
AmSurg Heldings, Inc. 62%

20 Burton Hills Boulevard
Nashville, TN 37215
FEIN: 62-1595888

Stuart Waldstreicher, M.D.

SSN:

Peter Gardner, M.D.

SSN;

Ronald Cirille, M.D.

SSN:

William Pintaure, M.D.

SSN:

Neda Khaghan, M.D.

SSN:

Fefice Zwas, MD

SSN:

Nelson Bonh

SSN;

Alan Selkin,

SSN:

100%
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
Office of Health Care Access

September 21, 2012 VIAFAX ONLY
Stuart Waldstreicher, M.D, Robert McCullough
Member Vice President, Development
- Diagnostic Endoscopy Center, LLC AmSurg Corporation
778 Long Ridge Road 20 Burton Hills Boulevard
Stamford, CT 06902 Suite 500

Nashville, TN 37215-6105

RE:  Certificate of Need Application; Docket Number: 12-31772-CON
Diagnostic Endoscopy Center, LL.C and AmSurg Corp. d/b/a AmSurg Holdings, Inc.
Proposal to Change Ownership of Diagnostic Endoscopy Center, LL.C

Dear Dr. Waldstreicher and Mr. McCullough:

On August 22, 2012, the Office of Health Care Access (“OHCA™} received your Completeness
Letter responses in the Certificate of Need (“CON™) application filing of Diagnostic Endoscopy
Center, LLC (*Center”) and AmSurg Corp. d/b/a AmSurg Holdings, Inc. (“AmSurg”™) (Center
and AmSurg are herein collectively referred to as “Applicants™), proposing to change ownership
of the Center by way of AmSurg acquiring a 62% ownership interest in the Center for
$12,583,950.

OHCA has reviewed the Completeness Letter Responses and requests the following additional
information pursuant to General Statutes §19a-639a(c):

1. Please provide a copy of Schedule 4.15(a) as referenced in the Membership Interest
Purchase Agreement.

2. Provide the names of each anticipated member of Diagnostic Endoscopy, LLC and,
for each, identify the state of medical licensure.

An Equal Opportunity Employer
410 Capitol Ave,, MS#13HCA, P.O.Box 340308, Hartford, CT 06134-0308
Telephone: (860) 418-7001 Toll-Free: 1-800-797-9688
Fax: (860) 418-7053




Diagnostic Endoscopy Center, LLC September 21, 2012
Docket Number: 12-31772-CON Page 2 of 2

In responding to the questions contained in this letter, please repeat each question before
providing your response. Paginate and date your response (e.g., each page in its entirety).
Information filed after the initial CON application submission (e.g. completeness response letter,
prefile testimony, late file submissions and the like) must be numbered sequentially from the
Applicants’ document preceding it. Please reference “Docket Number: 12-31772-CON.” Submit
one (1) original and five (5) hard copies of your response. In addition, please submit a scanned
copy of your response including all attachments on CD in an Adobe format {.pdf) and in an MS
Word format.

If you have any questions concerning this letter, please feel free to contact me at (860) 418-7012.

Sincerely,

M/ %%M@/?/ Aoz peed

Steven W. Lazarus
Associate Health Care Analyst
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BERSHTEIN, VOLPE & McKEON P.C.
ATTORNEYS AT LAW '
105 COURT STREET, THIRD FLOOR
NEW HAVEN, CONNECTICUT 06511
203-777-5800

Y Michele M. Volpe
Dlrect Dial (203) 7776995

September 25, 2012
Via Overnight Mail

Steven W. Lazarus

Associate Health Care Analyst
State of Connecticut

Office of Health Care Access

410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA
P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, Connecticut 06134-0308

Re:  Certificate of Need Application; Docket Number: 12-31772-CON
Diagnostic Endoscopy, LLC and AmSurg Corp. d/b/a AmSurg Holdings, Inc.
Proposal to Change Ownership of Diagnostic Endoscopy, LLC

Dear Mr. Lazarus:

Enclosed please find the response to the additional information requested by OHCA on
September 21, 2012 regarding the Certificate of Need Application for the change of ownership
of Diagnostic Endoscopy LLC. Enclosed is one (1) original and five (5) hard copies of the
responses and a CD of the responses and documents in Adobe format (.pdf) and MS Word
format.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or require additional information.

Enclosures

S:\doch1 2 5701-573500125728 DEC {CON re AmSurg TIaJ]sactlou)\Completeness Questions (from OHCA 9.21.12%Ltr to OHCA transmitting Completeness Questions
#2 v.2 (KGG 9.25.12).docx




BERSHTEIN, VOLPE & McKEON P.C.
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
105 COURT STREET, THIRD FLOOR
NEW HAVEN, CONNECTICUT 06511
203-777-5800
Fax: 203-777-5806

Michele M. Yolpe
Direct Dial (203) 777-6995

September 25, 2012

Steven W. Lazarus

Associate Health Care Analyst
State of Connecticut

Office of Health Care Access

410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA
P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, Connecticut 06134-0308

Re:  Certificate of Need Application; Docket Number: 12-31772-CON
Diagnostic Endoscopy, LLC and AmSurg Corp. d/b/a AmSurg Holdings, Inc.
Proposal to Change Ownership of Diagnostic Endoscopy, LLC

Dear Mr. Lazarus:

Below are the responses to the request for additional information sent by OHCA on September
21,2012.

1. Please provide a copy of Schedule 4.15(a) as referenced in the Membership Interest
Purchase Agreement.

Please see Attachment O for a copy of Schedule 4.15(a) of the Membership Interest
Purchase Agreement. Please note confidential salary information has been
redacted.

2. Provide the names of each anticipaied member of Diagnostic Endoscopy, LLC and, for
cach, identify the state of medical licensure.

Please sce Attachment P for a list of all the anticipated members of Diagneostic
Endescopy, LLC and the state of medical licensure.
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If you should require additional information, please contact our office and we will ensure that
such information is forthcoming. Thank you.

Very truly yours, -~
e

A2

ichéle M. Volp

s

MMV/ikgg
Enclosures
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Attachment O

Copy of Schedule 4.15(a) of the Membership Interest Purchase Agreement

M%m INTEREST PURCHASE AGREEMENT
1L Schedols 4.15(2) Pageiof 2
Bstwesn A;%aSnrg Boldings, e, and Diagnostic Endoscopy LLC

; Employees
Attached:
For Diegnostic Eedoscopy ILC
Tiiagnoetic Bndoscopy 04.15(d) (Bmployees) 7/2/2012 11:24 AR
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Attachment P

Anticipated Members of Diagnostic Endoscopy and State of Medical Licensure

Anticipated Member State of Medical Licensure
Nelson A. Bonheim, M.D. Connecticut
Ronald I. Cirillo, M.D. Connecticut
Peter W. Gardner, M.D. Connecticut
Neda Khaghan, M.D. Connecticut
William M. Pintauro, M.ID. Connecticut
Alan E. Selkin, M.D. Connecticut
Stuart Waldstreicher, M.D. Connecticut
Felice R. Zwas, M.D. Connecticut
Darlene Negbenbor, M.D. Connecticut
Neal J. Schamberg, M.D. Connecticut
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
Office of Health Care Access

January 17, 2013 VIA FAX ONLY
Stuart Waldstreicher, M.D. Robert McCullough

Member Vice President, Development

Diagnostic Endoscopy Center, LL.C AmSurg Corporation

778 Long Ridge Road 20 Burton Hills Boulevard

Stamford, CT 06902 Suite 500

Nashville, TN 37215-6105

RE:  Certificate of Need Application, Docket Number 12-31772-CON
Diagnostic Endoscopy Center, LLC and AmSurg Corp. d/b/a AmSurg Holdings, Inc.
Proposal to Change Ownership of Diagnostic Endoscopy Center, LLC
Interrogatories

Dear Dr. Waldsteicher and Mr. McCullough:

Please address the following questions to be filed with the Office of Health Care Access
(*OHCA”) regarding your Certificate of Need (“CON”) proposal filed with OHCA.:

1. OHCA has an obligation to inform other divisions within the Department of Public Health of
potential violations concerning applicable law. If OHCA were to grant this application,
would the physician owners be subject to disciplinary action under the corporate practice of
medicine doctrine?

2. Please provide a legal analysis supporting your position with respect to the corporate practice
of medicine doctrine.

3. Does AmSurg Corp d/b/a Amsurg Holdings, Inc. have any concluded, pending or threatened
legal action against it in Connecticut or any other jurisdiction involving the corporate
practice of medicine doctrine?

The response to these interrogatories must be submitted to OHCA no later than 12:00 pm, on
Thursday, February 7, 2013. If you are unable to meet the specified time for filing the
interrogatories, you must request a time extension in writing, detailing the reasons for not being
able to meet the specified deadline.

An Equal Opportunity Employer
410 Capitol Ave., MS#13HCA, P.O.Box 340308, Hartford, CT 06134-0308
Telephone: (860) 418-7001 Toll-Free: 1-800-797-9688
Fax: (860) 418-7053




Diagnostic Endoscopy Center, LLC . January 16, 2013
Interrogatories, Docket 12-31772-CON Page 2 of 2

Please contact Steven W. Lazarus, Associate Health Care Analyst at (860) 418-7012, if you have
any questions concerning this request.

Sincerely,

B inq__-ﬂ___ﬂ_ﬁte
Staff Attorney -
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BERSHTEIN, VOLPE & McKEON P.C.
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
105 COURT STREET
THIRD FLOOR
NEW HAVEN, CT 04517 i
{203) 777-5800 Fax: {203) 777-5806

FAX TRANSMISSION ~

FAX #: (860) 418-7053 DATE: February 4, 2013

TO: Kevin T. Hansted, Staff Attorney PAGES: 7, including this page
Steven Lazarus, Associate Health Care Analyst
State of Connecticut
Department of Public Health ,
Division of Office of Health Care Access

FROM: Michele M. Volpe MATTER #: 125728

SUBJECT: Certificate of Need Application; Docket Number: 12-31772-CON
Diagnostic Endescopy, LLC and AmSurg Corp. d/b/a AmSurg Holdings, Inc.
Proposal to Change Ownership of Diagnostic Endoscopy, LLC

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE
Flease note that the information contained in this fax is confidential and privileged and is intended anly feor
use by the named receiver. If you have received this fax in error, please call 203-777-5800. Any use of
this fax or its contents, including any dissemination or cepying, is prehibited. Attorneys recaiving this fax
in error are directed to review ABA formal ethics opinion no, 92-368,

COMMENTS:

Please see the attached correspondence.

Thank veu.
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BERSIHTEIN, VOLPE & McKEON P.C,
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
105 COURT STREET, THIRD FLOOR
NEW HAVEN, CONNECTICUT 06511
203-777-5800
Fax; 205-777-5806

Michela M. Volpe
Direct Dial (203) 777-68%5
February 4, 2013 ‘
Via Federal Express
and Facsimile (860) 418-7053

Kevin T. Hansted
Staff Attorney
State of Connecticut SR+
Department of Public Health ’ N
Office of Health Care Access

410 Capitol Avenue, MS#I3HCA
Hartford, Connecticut 06134

Re:  Cenificate of Need Application; Docket Number: 12-31772-CON
Diagnostic Endoscopy, LLC and AmSurg Corp. d/b/a AmSurg Holdings, Inc.
Proposal 1o Change Cwnership of Diagnostic Endoscopy, LLC

Dear Attorney Hansted:

Enclosed please tind the responses to the interro gatories requested by the Office of Health Care
Aceess on January 17, 2013 regarding the Certificate of Need Application for the change of
ownership of Diagnostic Endoscopy TLC. Enclosed is one (1) original and five (5) copies of the
responsss and a CD of the responses and documents in Adobe format (.pdf) and MS Word
format.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or require additional information.

Thark you.

Very truly yours, ., T
{.\“ e _//y " N /’/
gl ?ffy e
Klieltle M. Volpe

MMV /bt
Enclosures
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BERSHTEIN, VOLPE & McKECN B.C.
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
105 COURT STREET, THIRD FLOOR
NEW HAVEN, CONNECTICUT 06511
203-777-5800
Fax: 203-777-5806

Michele M. Volpe
Direct Dial (203} 777-6985

February 4, 2013
Via Pederal Express
and Facsimile (860) 418-7053

Kevin T. Hansted

Staff Attorney

State of Connecticut ,
Department of Publie Health
Office of Health Care Access

410 Capitol Avenue, MS#I3HCA
Hartford, Connecticut 06134

Re:  Certificate of Need Application; Docket Number: 12-31772-CON
Diagnostie Endoscopy, LLC and AmSurg Corp. d/b/a AmSurg Holdings, Inc.
Proposal to Change Ownership of Diagnostic Endoscopy, LLC

Dear Attorney Hansted:

Below are the responses to the interrogatories sent by the Office of Health Care Access on
January 17, 2013. |

INTERROGATORY:

1. OHCA has an ohligation to inform other divisions within the Department of Public
Health of potential viclations concerning applicable law. If OHCA were to crant
this application, would the physician owners be subject to disciplinary action under
the corporate practice of medicine doctrine?

RESPONSE:
No. The physician owners of Diagnostic Endosecopy LLC, or the proposed successor
thereio (“Diagnostic Endoscopy™), would not be subject to disciplinary action under the

corporate practice of medicine (“CPM™) doctrine if OHCA grants this Certificate of Need
Application, Docket Number 12-31 772-CON.
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INTERROGATORY:

2. Please provide a legal analysis supporting your position with respect to the
corporate practice of medicine doctrine.

RESPONSE:

The CPM doctrine does not apply to ambulatory surgery facilities (“ASCs”) because
ASCs do not render professional services or practice medicine. The CPM doctrine regulates the
practice of medicine under the physician licensing statute, General Statutes § 20-9, not the
operation of ASC facilities licensed under General Statutes § 19a-493b. Section 19a-493b
recognizes that corporations may be “joint” owners of ASCs, and OHCA and the Department of
Public Health (“Department”) have previously approved the applications of a number of
carporately-owned ASCs. In addition, throughout the country, it is widely-accepted that ASCs
may be owned by corporate entities and such ownership does not violate the CPM doctrine.

ASCs are regulated by Connecticut General Statutes §19a-4930, which expressly
contemplates ownership of ASCs by corporations. The CPM doctrine. which arises from the
physician licensure statute. is not implicit in §19a-293b. nor does its rationale apply to Heensed.
regulated facilitibts. The CPM doctrine was developed to protect the public from corporate
middlemen interfering with physicians’ medical j udgment.! ASCs are facilities utilized by
independent physicians. who decide whether and where o perform procedures, and the licensed
physicians maintain contrel over all medical professional decision making. Diagnostic
Endoscopy operates a licensed, regulated ASC, and the CPM doctrine does 1ot apply to it.

Diagnostic Endoscopy was formed under the general provisions of Commecticut’s lirmited
lability statute, § 34-119(a), not the provisions of §§ 34-119(b) or (¢} which apply to LLCs that
render “professional services.” The ASC was then licensed by the Department and approved by
OHCA pursuant to General Statutes § 19a-493b. It is well-established that ASCs licensed
pursuant to § 196-493b may be owned by non-physicians, including corporate entities. OHCA
hzs approved the applications of at least nine ASCs that are not whollv-owned by physicians. In
addition, mlmerc}us facilities in Connecticut are owned by corporate entities. The “corporate
practice of medicine doctrine,” which is based upon the statute prohibiting unlicensed
individuals and entities from engaging in the practice of medicine or surgery, does not apply to
Diagnostic Endoscopy at all because Diagnostic Endoscopy does not render professional services
or practice medicine. Diagnostic Endoscopy cwns a facility (i.e. a building, equipment, and
support staff) at which licensed physicians perform procedures. All of the physicians who own
or utilize the facility practice medicine out of their own separate medical practices.

' See Mendlinger v. Conn. State Dental Comumn'n,, No. CV(E20516918, 2003 Conn. Super. LEXIS 3477, at
#6-7 (Conn, Supez. Ct. Dec. 17, 2003), rev’d on other grounds, 84 Conn. App. 639 (2004)("Traditionally
the prohibition on the carporate practice of medicine stemmed from a perceived need to protect the public
from the commercial exploitation of the practice of medicine. It has been said to be against publia policy
to permit a middleman to intervene for profit in establishing the professional relationship bstween
members of the madical profession and members of the public. . .. The basic raticnale of the corporate
practice prohibiti&n [is] the potential for a secondary and divided loyalty to the patient.”} (Citations
omitted; internal quotation marks omitted).
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Some staes, such as California, have explicitly adopted the CPM doctrine in their
statutes or case law. The CPM docirine has not been codified in Connecticut’s General Statutes,
nor has it been explicitly adopted in Connacticut’s appellate-level case law. Seme Connecticut
cases have applied a similar doctrine under the licensing statutes for individual optometrists and
dentists, General Statutes §§ 20-133a, 20-122, and 20-123 2 The CPM doctrine was also cited
in an old Attorney General Opinion {from the 1950s. The foregoing authority does not, however,
apply to ASCs, which are licensed under General Statutes § 19a-493b, not the statutes regulating
individual practitioners, and which do not engage in the practice of medicine.

The dentistry/oprometry cases considered professionals whose dental or optometry
practices were owned by non-professionals, and who were employees of the non-professional
owners. Diagnostic Endoscopy does not cmploy any of the physicians who own an ipterest in or
perform surgery-at the ASC. Notably, none of the cases sanctioned physibians for investing in
medical facilities similar to ASCs. One Connecticut dentistry case even draws a distinction
between corporate ownership of the facility where a dentist practices, and corporate ownership of
the practice itsell. OCA v. Christie, 415 F. Supp.2d 115 (D. Conn. 2006). In OCA4, the court
held that an arrangement was not illegal where a corporate entity owned the facility and i1s
physical assets, but the dentist owned and exerted control over the practice’s professional assets.
The court reasonsd:

Moreover, Plaintiffs do not own Dr. Christie’s practice. Although they “own’ the Old
PC, which includes the physical assets of the practice (e.g., fumiture, equipment,
leasehold), Dr. Christie 1s ithe sole shareholder of the New PC, which owns the
practice’s professional assets {e.g., patlent contracts, provider agresments). Dr.
Christie remains engaged in the practice of dentistry, free from any right of Plaintiffs
to control, direct or intrude . . .

OCA ». Christie, 415 F. Supp.2d, at 125-26 (internal citations omitted).

The liceasing statute for ASCs expressly contemplates thet they may be owned by
corporations. General Statutes §19a-493b(b) states: “No entity, individual, firm, parmership.
eorporation, limited liability company oI association, other than a hospital, shall individually
or jointly establish or operate an outpatient surgical facilicy in this staie without complying
with chapter 368z, except as otherwise provided by this section, and obtaining a license within
the time specified in this subsection from the Department of Public Health for such facility
pursuant to the provisions of this chapter . . . (Emphasis added). The language of the statute

! See, e.g., Mackv. Saars, 150 Conn, 200 (1963) (optometry); Obuchowski v. Dental Cortn'n, 149 Conn.
257 (1962) (dentistyy); Lieberman v, Conn. State Bd. of Examiners in Optameiry, 130 Conn, 344 (1943)
(optometry).

398 Conn. Att, Gen. Op, 248 (Dec. 3, 1954).

4 oo Lieherman, 130 Conm., at 351-53 (optometrist was emploved by a corporaticn, and received salary
and commissions from his unlicensed corporate employer); Obuchowski, 149 Conn., at 264-65 (dental
practice was owned by a dental hygienist who emploved the plaintiff and controlled the practice); see also
Mendlinger, 2003 Conn. Super. LEXIS 3477, at *6-7 (dental practice owned for 5 years by widow of
decezased dentist)
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acknowledges that various business entities, including corporations, may “jointly establish”
outpatient surgical facilities. The only prerequisites are compliance with Chapter 368z and
obtaining a license.

As noted above, Diagnostic Endoscopy 18 an OHCA-approved licensed facility, which
already has complied in full with §19a-493b(b). OHCA has approved the applications of at least
nine ASCs with non-physician owners. See, .8, OptiCare/HEALTHSOUTH Final Decision,
Docket No. 01-505 {proposed wansfer of ownership and operation of ambulatory surgical center
to Tennessce partnership approved), Wilion Pain Management Final Decision, Docket No. 02-
554 (proposed development of freestanding pain management center by for-profit limited
liability company approved); Wilton Pan Management Expansion Final Decision, Docket Na.
04-30251-CON ‘same); HEALTHSOUTH Surgery Center of Bridgeport Final Decision, IDocket
No. 06-20008-MDF (partial ownership and management of ambulatory surgery center by private
corporation approved); HealthSouth Corporation and ASC Acquisition LLC Final Decision,
Docket No, 07-30955-CON {proposed transfer of ownership of several ambulatory surgery
centers to private investment partnership approved), Wilton Surgery Center/Stamford Health
System/National Surgical Care Final Decision, Docket No. 07-30994-CON (proposed transter of
ownership of outpatient surgical facility to entity partially owned by national developer and
operator of ambulatory surgery centers approved); North Haven Pain Medieine Center Final
Decision, Dacket Mo. 09-31320-CON (proposed expansion of services offered by ambulatory
surgery center owned by for-profit limited liability company approved); Surgery Center of
Fairfield County Final Decision, Docket No. 09-31298-CON (proposed termination of operations
al outpatient surgical center owned by for-profit entity approved); and Surgery Center of
Fairfield County-Final Decision, Docket No. 103-31638-CON (proposed transfer of operations of
outpatient surgical center owned by for-profit entity approved).

Finally, throughout the country, it is widely accepted that corporations may own ASCs,
even in states where the CPM doctrine is robust. California has explicitly adopted the CPM
doctrine,” and it is widely considered to be among the strongest proponents of the doctrine.
Nevertheless, California permits entities that are not whally-owned by licensed physicians to
operate surgical clinics pursuant to California Health and Safety Code § 1204(b)(1). AmSurg
Corp. and its subsidiaries currently own and operate twenty-one surgical centers n Calitorniz.

INFERROGATORY:

3. Does AwSurg Corp d/b/a Amsurg Holdings, Inc. have any concluded, pending or
fhreatened legal action against it in Connecticut or any other jurisdiction involving
the corporate practice of medicine doctrine?

RESPONSE:

AmSurg Corp. and its subsidiaries have no concluded, pending or threatened legal action against
them in Connecticut or any other jurisdiction involving the CPM doctrine.

5 See People ex rel. Stare Board of Medical Examiners v. Pacific Healih Corp., 12 Cal. 2d 156 (Cal.
1938). ‘
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If you should require additional information, please contact our office and we will ensure that
such information is forthcoming. Thank you.

MMV/bt

Sdtoch12 ST01-STSON 25728 DEC (CON re AmSurg TransactionNOHCA Interropaiories {.17.13 (re Corp Practice o7 Medicine DoatringYResponse 1o OMCA

interrogatonies 1.17,13 (Fical 2.04.13).docx
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